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         The aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant, as of June 30, 2007 was approximately $258,218,713 based upon
the last sale price reported for such date on the Global Market of the NASDAQ Stock Market. For purposes of this disclosure, shares of common stock held by
persons who beneficially own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of common stock and shares held by officers and directors of the Registrant have been
excluded because such persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This determination is not necessarily conclusive. As of February 29, 2008, 31,884,264 shares of
the registrant's common stock, $0.01 per value, were outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

         Portions of the registrant's proxy statement to be delivered to stockholders in connection with the registrant's 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held on or about June 3, 2008 are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Form 10-K. The registrant intends to file its proxy statement within 120 days after
its fiscal year end.
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Part I

        This Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents incorporated herein by reference contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which include, without limitation, statements about the market
for our technology, our strategy, competition, expected financial performance and other aspects of our business identified in this Annual Report, as well as other
reports that we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Any statements about our business, financial results, financial condition and
operations contained in this Annual Report that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. Without limiting the
foregoing, the words "believes," "anticipates," "expects," "intends," "plans," "projects," or similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. Our actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors,
including the risk factors described in Part I., Item 1A, "Risk Factors," and elsewhere in this report. We undertake no obligation to update publicly any
forward-looking statements for any reason, except as required by law, even as new information becomes available or other events occur in the future.

Item 1.    Business

Company Overview

        We design, develop, market and license embedded memory and analog/mixed-signal intellectual property, or IP, used by the semiconductor industry and
electronic product manufacturers. We have developed a patented semiconductor memory technology, called 1T-SRAM, which offers a combination of high
density, low power consumption and high speed at performance and cost levels that other available memory technologies do not match. We license this
technology to companies that incorporate, or embed, memory on complex integrated circuits, or ICs, such as system-on-chips, or SoCs.

        We signed our first license agreement related to our 1T-SRAM technologies at the end of the fourth quarter of 1998 and recognized licensing revenue from
our 1T-SRAM technologies for the first time in the first quarter of 2000. Since then, we have introduced improved and enhanced versions of our technology,
such as 1T-SRAM-R, 1T-SRAM-M, and 1T-SRAM-Q.

        We generate revenue from the licensing of our memory technology, and our customers pay us fees for licensing, non-recurring engineering services,
royalties, and maintenance and support. Royalty revenues are typically earned under our license agreements when our licensees manufacture or sell products that
incorporate any of our technologies. Generally, we expect our total sales cycle, or the period from our initial discussion with a prospective licensee to our receipt
of royalties from the licensee's use of our technologies, to run from 18 to 24 months. Historically, the portion of our sales cycle from the initial discussion to the
receipt of license fees may run from six to 12 months, depending on the complexity of the proposed project and degree of development services required.

        In 2005, we began delivering our 1T-SRAM CLASSIC Memory Macro products to licensees. These macros are silicon-proven, high-density solutions
offering customers rapid memory block integration into their SoC designs. They are pre-configured and require minimal additional customization.

        In July 2007, we purchased several analog/mixed-signal integrated circuit designs, intellectual property, related assets and two subsidiaries employing
approximately one-hundred engineers in Romania and China from Atmel Corporation, or Atmel, and LSI Design and Integration Corporation, or LDIC. The first
of the acquired analog/mixed-signal technologies that we expect to license to customers is a mixed signal technology solution for SoCs used in high-definition
blue laser digital versatile disc, or DVD, players. Other technologies that we acquired include technologies to be used in SoCs for gigabit ethernet networking
and serial interface applications for computing and storage.

        We were founded in 1991 and reincorporated in Delaware in September 2000.
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Industry Background

        The personal computer, wireless communications, networking equipment and consumer electronics markets are characterized by intensifying competition,
rapid innovation, increasing performance requirements and continuing cost pressures. To manufacture electronic products that achieve optimal performance and
cost levels, semiconductor companies must produce integrated circuits that offer higher performance, greater functionality and lower cost.

        Two important measures of performance are speed and power consumption. Higher speed integrated circuits allow electronic products to operate faster,
enabling the performance of more functions. Reducing the power consumption of integrated circuits contributes to increased battery life and reduced heat and
electro-magnetic field, or EMF, generation in electronic products. Reduced power consumption also enables integrated circuit designers to overcome costly
design hurdles, such as meeting the thermal limitations of low-cost packaging materials.

        In addition to offering high-performance products, semiconductor companies must produce integrated circuits that are cost effective. High-density integrated
circuits require less silicon, thus reducing their size and cost. Cost reductions also can be achieved by simplifying the integrated circuit's manufacturing process
and improving the manufacturing yield.

        To avoid the high cost of substantial redesign, semiconductor companies typically use technology that is scalable, which means it can be readily
incorporated into multiple generations of manufacturing process technologies. Process technology generations are distinguished in terms of the dimension of the
integrated circuit's smallest topographical features, as measured in microns (one millionth of a meter) or nanometers (one billionth of a meter). The
semiconductor industry has continuously developed advanced process technologies that enable the reduction of silicon area on integrated circuits and
consequently lower costs.

Importance of Integration

        For decades, the semiconductor industry has continuously increased the value of integrated circuits by improving their density, power consumption, speed
and cost. The main driver for these improvements has been the success of shrinking the size of the basic semiconductor building block, or transistor. Transistors
have become small enough to make it economical to combine multiple functions, such as microprocessors, graphics, memory, analog components and digital
signal processors, on a SoC. Highly integrated circuits such as SoCs often offer advantages in density, power consumption, speed and cost that cannot be
matched using separate, discrete integrated circuits. SoCs are essential for most electronic products, such as cellular phones, video game consoles, portable media
players, communication and networking equipment and internet appliances, to achieve increasing performance requirements at a reasonable cost.

        For many large volume IC market opportunities, semiconductor companies and integrated device manufacturers,or IDMs, are developing and using a single
complex SoC to replace two or three integrated circuits. Development costs for these complex SoCs continue to escalate at a rapid rate due to the use of lower
process technology solutions (e.g., 65nm and below) resulting in greater demand for license semiconductor intellectual property, or IP. Semiconductor companies
and IDMs prefer to purchase verified IP from either an IP vendor, such as us, or a foundry, that manufactures their integrated circuits. Foundries may have their
own internally developed IP or license the IP from an IP vendor.

Importance of Embedded Memory

        Historically, semiconductor companies implemented memory by using stand-alone integrated circuits. Rather than using stand-alone memory chips, many
semiconductor companies today are
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embedding memory on SoCs in order to optimize performance and power consumption. At the same time, the increasing sophistication of electronic products is
driving a rapid increase in the amount of memory required. The amount of embedded memory area on an SoC continues to grow due to the increasing complexity
of embedded applications and the rich multimedia capabilities they support requiring more data and program code storage with corresponding system price and
size constraints. These constraints dictate that more information is processed in local memories on the chip rather than in discrete external memory devices.

        The high cost of incorporating the memory component represents a major challenge to achieving high levels of integration. As embedded memories account
for an increasing percentage of the size of a highly integrated circuit, they are often the slowest or limiting function in the circuit. Not only must integrated
circuits contain a larger amount of embedded memory, this memory must be dense enough to be economically attractive and must offer sufficiently high speed
and low power consumption. In many applications, embedded memory has become a crucial design consideration for determining the overall cost and
performance of highly integrated circuits and the growing number of electronic products in which they are incorporated. In addition, embedded memory density
requirements are continually increasing.

        The most common form of embedded memory today is implemented using traditional static random access memory, or SRAM. This technology is in the
public domain and can be designed by any semiconductor company. As memory requirements increase, however, traditional SRAM becomes more expensive
compared to the total cost of the integrated circuit because it requires a substantial amount of silicon area due to its low density and consumes a significant
amount of power when operating at high speeds.

        To overcome the density limitations of traditional SRAM, some SoC manufacturers have utilized embedded dynamic random access memory, or embedded
DRAM. While embedded DRAM is denser than traditional SRAM, it is dramatically slower. Manufacturing embedded DRAM also requires additional process
steps and results in lower yields, which translate into increased manufacturing time and cost. Additionally, because of its more complex interface requirements,
embedded DRAM is more difficult to incorporate on integrated circuits, leading to a higher risk of failure. As integrated circuit designers have experimented with
embedded DRAM, they have discovered that these limitations of embedded DRAM preclude its use in many applications. Therefore, traditional SRAM
continues to be the most widely used technology for embedded memory. One of the major challenges for the semiconductor industry today is to find an
embedded memory solution that combines high-density, low-power consumption, high-speed and low cost.

Importance of Embedded Analog and Mixed-Signal Technology

        As semiconductor companies and IDMs develop more complex SoCs, they increasingly desire to integrate and embed analog and mixed-signal IP onto these
SoCs. Historically, analog and mixed-signal IP was omitted from complex SoCs. Traditionally semiconductor developers hand-craft and optimize this IP to lower
process geometries using highly trained design teams because the design of analog ICs involves the complex and critical placement of various circuits. Silicon
verified IP can greatly reduce the risk of this complicated integration and dependence on individual design engineers. Integration of analog/mixed-signal IP has
accelerated in recent years as IDMs have been able to reduce system costs and printed circuit board size, while improving system performance. As a result,
semiconductor companies and IDMs continue to develop application specific SoCs directed at addressing specific market opportunities, such as game consoles,
mobile phone application processors, and personal media players.
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Our Solution

        Our innovative 1T-SRAM technologies provide major advantages over traditional SRAM in density, power consumption and cost, making it more
economical for designers to incorporate large amounts of embedded memory in their designs. In addition, our 1T-SRAM technologies offer all the benefits of
traditional SRAM, such as high-speed, simple interface and ease of manufacturability. Our 1T-SRAM technologies can achieve these advantages while utilizing
standard logic manufacturing processes and providing the simple, standard SRAM interface that designers are accustomed to.

High Density

        The high density of our 1T-SRAM technologies stems from the use of a single-transistor, or 1T, which is similar to DRAM, with a storage cell for each bit
of information. Embedded memory utilizing our 1T-SRAM technologies is typically two to three times denser than the six-transistor storage cells used by
traditional SRAM. Increased density enables manufacturers of electronic products, such as cellular phones, video game consoles and digital cameras and
camcorders, to incorporate additional functionality into a single integrated circuit, resulting in overall cost savings.

Low Power Consumption

        Embedded memory utilizing our 1T-SRAM technologies can consume as little as one-half the active power and generates less heat than traditional SRAM
when operating at the same speed. This facilitates longer battery life, reduces system level heat dissipation costs and enables reliable operation using lower cost
packaging.

High Speed

        Embedded memory utilizing our 1T-SRAM technologies typically provides speeds equal to or greater than the speeds of traditional SRAM, particularly for
larger memory sizes. Our 1T-SRAM memory designs can sustain random access cycle times of less than three nanoseconds.

Demonstrate Manufacturing Process Independence

        We have been able to implement our technology with minimal changes to the standard logic process flow. 1T-SRAM's portability, or the ease with which it
can be implemented in different semiconductor manufacturing facilities, has been proven operational in the fabrication of chips at the world's largest independent
foundries, including Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., or TSMC, United Microelectronics Corporation, or UMC, Chartered Semiconductor
Manufacturing Ltd., or Chartered, and Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation, or SMIC. It has also been proven in the manufacturing processes
of integrated device manufacturers, such as Fujitsu Limited and NEC Electronics. 1T-SRAM's scalability, or the ease with which it can be implemented in
different generations of manufacturing processes, has already been demonstrated in the fabrication of chips in 0.25 micron, 0.18 micron, 0.15 micron, 0.13
micron, 90nm, and 65nm process generations, with smaller geometries under development. We expect our technology to continue to scale to future process
generations. This portability and scalability provides for wide availability, inexpensive implementation and quick product time to market for our licensees and
has demonstrated our success with the large foundries.

Our Strategy

        Our strategy is to increase our percentage coverage of embedded IP in targeted SoCs. We believe the high growth connected consumer, converged mobile,
and embedded computing market segments provide significant growth opportunities for our embedded memory and analog/mixed-signal IP. We
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intend to achieve this goal by continuing to license our technology on a non-exclusive and worldwide basis to foundries, IDMs and semiconductor companies.

        The following are integral aspects of our strategy:

Target Large and Growing Markets

        We target the large and growing market for SoC applications requiring large embedded memories, which are in excess of one megabyte, with our 1T-SRAM
technologies that offer chip designers improved performance in embedded memories thus optimizing the cost and performance of the SoC.

        Although our 1T-SRAM technologies are applicable to many markets, we presently focus on the rapidly growing consumer electronics and communications
sectors. These sectors increasingly require embedded memory solutions with higher density, lower power consumption, higher speeds and lower cost. We also
will focus over the longer term on other markets that are projected to achieve strong, long-term growth.

        For example, we believe there is significant opportunity for embedded SRAM memory in the small-to-medium-sized liquid crystal display driver IC market.
Historically, the SRAM required by display driver interface, or DDI, applications has been provided by using a separate SRAM IC. We believe that embedded
1T-SRAM embedded on an SoC can provide significant cost savings due to its higher density and reduced active power consumption.

Work Closely with Semiconductor Companies and Foundries to Deliver Optimal Technology Solutions

        We work closely with semiconductor companies and foundries to gain broad and detailed insight into their and their customers' current and next-generation
technology requirements. This insight helps us identify trends and focus our development efforts on optimizing our technology solution, resulting in shorter
product time to market and lower costs. We plan to continue to qualify and license our technology with the leading IDMs and foundries in order to provide a
wide range of manufacturing choices for our customers.

Extend our Technology Offerings

        Our goal is to continue to enhance our 1T-SRAM technologies and increase our share of the embedded memory market. We will continue to develop our
technology in order to offer even higher-density, lower-power consumption, higher-speed and lower-cost solutions for our licensees. As such, we continue to
invest heavily in research to develop more advanced memory technologies, including our 1T-FLASH non-volatile memory.

        In addition, our two analog/mixed-signal and firmware design teams located in Romania and China are developing verified analog/mixed-signal integrated
circuit IP that semiconductor companies and IDMs can embed into SoCs. We believe this new analog/mixed-signal capability will be an important component in
our diversification strategy to address an increasing number of critical IP blocks within an SoC for applications such as:

•
high-definition DVD players;

•
gigabit Ethernet, or GbE, networking applications, including wireless networks, voice-over-Internet protocol and network switches; and

•
computing and storage devices requiring serial interfaces to enable high-speed connectivity and data transfer.
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Licensing and Distribution Strategy

        We offer our technology on a non-exclusive and worldwide basis to semiconductor companies, electronic product manufacturers, foundries, intellectual
property companies and design companies through product development, technology licensing and joint marketing relationships.

        We license our technology to semiconductor companies who incorporate our technology into integrated circuits that they sell to their customers. In addition,
we engage in joint marketing activities with foundries, intellectual property companies and design companies to promote our technology to a wide base of
customers. These distribution channels have broadened the acceptance and availability of our technology in the industry. As our technology becomes available
through an increasing number of channels, we believe it will be less likely that customers will have to alter their procurement practices in order to acquire our
technology. We intend to continue to expand significantly this base of strategic relationships to further proliferate our technology.

Project Licenses

        We form product development and licensing relationships directly with semiconductor companies. In these relationships, the prospective licensee's
implementation of our 1T-SRAM technologies typically includes customized development. Usually, these relationships involve both engineering work to
implement our technology in the specified product and licensing the technology for manufacture and sale of the product. Although the precise terms contained in
our 1T-SRAM macro development and license agreements vary, every agreement provides for the payment of contract fees to us at the beginning of the contract
and the joint development of specifications and initial product design and engineering. Contract fees include licensing fees, development fees for customizations
based on the achievement of specified development milestones and royalties. The vast majority of our contracts allow billing between milestones based on work
performed. If we perform the contracted services, usually the licensee is obligated to pay the license fees even if the licensee cancels the project prior to
completion. The agreements often also provide for the payment of additional contract fees if we provide engineering or manufacturing support services related to
the manufacture of the product. Provisions in all of our license agreements require the payment of royalties to us based on the future sale or manufacture of
products utilizing our 1T-SRAM technologies. Generally, our licenses grant rights on a non-exclusive, non-transferable basis, limited to the use of our
technology as modified for the project covered by the license agreement. Our license agreements generally have a fixed five-year term and are subject to renewal.
Each new project requires a separate agreement or an addendum to modify an existing agreement.

        We have license agreements with many companies, including, but not limited to, Agere Systems, Inc., Agilent Technologies, Analog Devices, Inc.,
Broadcom Corporation, eSilicon Corporation, Fujitsu Limited, Hitachi, Ltd., Kawasaki Micoroelectronics, Inc., LG Electronics, Inc., LSI Logic Corporation,
Marvell Semiconductor, Inc., Matsushita Communication Industrial Co., Ltd., National Semiconductor Corporation, NEC Electronics Corporation,
Nexuschips Co. Ltd., Open-Silicon, Inc., Philips Semiconductors, Inc., Pixelworks, Inc., Pixim, Inc., Progate Group Corporation, SMIC, Sanyo
Electric Co., Ltd., Sony Corporation, TSMC, UMC, Via Technologies, Inc., and Yamaha Corporation.

Design Licenses

        We offer directly to our licensees customized memory designs to meet their specific design parameters. We also offer a variety of options for optimizing the
design specification in order to improve performance and cost effectiveness.

        Companies also can license standard off-the-shelf memory designs from us, known as CLASSIC Macros. These readily available verified standard memory
designs can assist the licensee in getting its SoC quickly to market.
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Technology Licenses

        We also offer our technology to semiconductor companies and foundries through 1T-SRAM technology license agreements, under which we grant the
licensee the additional right to create and modify 1T-SRAM designs to offer to its own customers. The contract fees associated with these arrangements require
the licensee to pay us to port our technology to its manufacturing process and develop a template design that the licensee will be able to use to generate future
designs. These agreements also may obligate the licensee to pay contract fees upon the achievement of specified development milestones and may provide for the
payment of additional contract fees for engineering or manufacturing support services. Royalties are payable based on the future sale or manufacture of products
utilizing our 1T-SRAM technologies. The licenses are non-exclusive and non-transferable and authorize the licensee to modify designs for its customers from the
template design that we provide under the agreement. Typically, the template design applies only to a specified manufacturing process generation. The licensee
may add future process generations to the license agreement for additional contract fees.

Research and Development

        Our ability to compete in the future depends on improving our technology to meet the market's increasing demand for higher performance and lower cost
requirements. We have assembled a team of highly skilled engineers whose activities are focused on developing even higher density, lower power consumption,
higher speed and lower cost memory designs. We expect to continue to focus our research and development efforts by extending our 1T-SRAM and 1T-FLASH
technologies to smaller process geometries, porting our technology to additional foundries and semiconductor manufacturing facilities and developing new
memory technologies, such as the DDI macros. We also expect to continue to invest in our acquired analog/mixed-signal technology and engineering teams.

        As of December 31, 2007, we employed 154 individuals in engineering and research and development. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005, research and development expenditures totaled approximately $12.0 million, $8.2 million and $5.8 million, respectively.

Sales and Marketing

        As of December 31, 2007, we had 20 sales and marketing personnel managing and supporting our licensing activities. Our sales and marketing personnel
are located in the United States, Japan and Korea. The sales personnel manage the negotiation of license agreements, provide technical support during the sales
cycle to licensees and administer the contracts.

        Our overall revenue has been highly concentrated, with a few customers accounting for a significant percentage of our total revenue. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, NEC represented 70% of total revenue and for the year ended December 31, 2006, NEC and Fujitsu represented 27% and 25% of total
revenue, respectively.

Intellectual Property

        We regard our patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets and similar intellectual property as critical to our success, and rely on a combination of patent,
trademark, copyright, and trade secret laws to protect our proprietary rights. As of December 31, 2007, we held 85 U.S. and 47 foreign patents on various aspects
of our memory technology, with expiration dates ranging from 2011 to 2025. We currently have 44 pending patent applications in the U.S. and abroad. There can
be no assurance that others will not independently develop similar or competing technology or design around any patents that may be issued to us, or that we will
be able to enforce our patents against infringement.
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        The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. Our licensees or we might, from
time to time, receive notice of claims that we have infringed patents or other intellectual property rights owned by others. Our successful protection of our patents
and other intellectual property rights are subject to a number of factors, particularly those described in Part I, Item 1A. "Risk Factors."

Competition

        The markets for our products are highly competitive. We believe that the principal competitive factors are:

•
density and cost;

•
power consumption;

•
speed;

•
portability to different manufacturing processes;

•
scalability to different manufacturing process generations;

•
reliability and low manufacturing costs;

•
interface requirements;

•
the ease with which technology can be customized for and incorporated into customers' products; and

•
level of technical support provided.

        In order to remain competitive, we believe we must continue to provide higher density, lower power consumption, higher speed and lower cost technology
solutions. Our 1T-SRAM technologies compete primarily with traditional SRAM, which is currently the preferred choice for embedded memory solutions in
SoCs requiring less density, and embedded DRAM. Companies providing traditional SRAM embedded memories include ARM Holdings PLC and Virage Logic
Corporation. Embedded DRAM is primarily offered by DRAM suppliers, who utilize their own manufacturing process to compete in the semiconductor foundry
business. Suppliers of embedded DRAM include substantial competitors such as Toshiba Ltd. and IBM, among others.

        Not all embedded memory applications benefit sufficiently from technological advantages offered by our 1T-SRAM technologies to justify the increased
cost to the licensee, however. Our licensees and prospective licensees can meet their current needs for embedded memory using other memory solutions with
different cost and performance parameters. For example, our technologies are not suitable for replacing lower-cost traditional DRAM memory chips if higher
access speed is unnecessary. In addition, alternative solutions may be more cost-effective for memory block sizes of less than 1 megabit, or applications in which
the embedded memory portion is less than 20% of the total chip area.

        Moreover, some companies assess greater uncertainty and risk in relying on our newly established 1T-SRAM technologies. As a result, our ability to
compete effectively may be limited because such companies may prefer to use more established traditional memory solutions that are freely available without a
license.

        Our recently developed 1T-FLASH technology, requires significant analysis by customers on the qualification data of this technology to address the risk
versus other established technologies. However, we believe our 1T-FLASH technology achieves higher density and can be used in widely accepted
semiconductor manufacturing processes. Our 1T-FLASH technology competes with technology of other IP vendors and internally developed technologies of
IDMs.
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        Our recently acquired analog/mixed-signal technology requires significant analysis by customers on the qualification data of this technology to address the
risk versus other established technologies. Our analog/mixed-signal technology competes with technology of other IP vendors, semiconductor companies and
internally developed technologies of IDMs.

Employees

        As of December 31, 2007, we had 184 employees, consisting of 154 in research and development and engineering, 20 in sales and marketing and 10 in
finance and administration. We believe our future success depends, in part, on our ability to continue to attract and retain qualified technical and management
personnel, particularly highly skilled design engineers involved in new product development, for which competition is intense. We believe that our employee
relations are good.

Available Information

        Our website address is www.mosys.com. The information in our website is not incorporated by reference into this report. Through a link on the Investor
section of our website, we make available our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed
with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Executive Officers

        The names of our executive officers and certain information about them are set forth below:

Name

 

Age

 

Position(s) with the Company

Leonard Perham  64 President and Chief Executive Officer
James W. Sullivan  39 Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Didier Lacroix  49 Vice President of Worldwide Sales

        Leonard Perham,    Mr. Perham was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer on November 8, 2007. Mr. Perham was one of the original investors
of MoSys and served on our Board of Directors from 1991 to 1997. Since retiring from Integrated Device Technology, Inc., or IDT, in 2000, where he served as
Chief Executive Officer from 1991 to 2000 and President and board member from 1986. In his role at IDT, one of our early investors, Mr. Perham served on our
board of directors from 1991 to 1997. Mr. Perham has served as chairman of the board of directors of NetLogic Microsystems, a fabless semiconductor company,
and has been a venture partner with AsiaTech Management, a venture capital firm. Prior to joining IDT, Mr. Perham was President and CEO of Optical
Information Systems, Inc., a division of Exxon Enterprises. He was also a member of the founding team at Zilog Inc. and held management positions at
Advanced Micro Devices and Western Digital. Mr. Perham received a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from Northeastern University.

        James W. Sullivan,    Mr. Sullivan became our Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer on January 18, 2008. From July 2006 until January
2008, Mr. Sullivan served as Vice President of Finance & Chief Financial Officer at Apptera, Inc., a venture-backed company providing software for mobile
advertising, search and commerce. From July 2002 until June 2006, Mr. Sullivan was the Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer at 8x8, Inc., a
leading provider of voice over Internet protocol communication services. Mr. Sullivan's prior experience includes various positions at
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. He received a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from New York University and is a Certified Public Accountant.
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        Didier Lacroix,    Mr. Lacroix became our Vice President of Worldwide Sales in February 2008. From July 2006 until December 2007, Mr. Lacroix served
as Senior Vice President of Worldwide Sales and Marketing of Chipidea Microelectronica S.A., a company acquired by MIPS Technologies, Inc. From July 2005
until July 2006, he was co-founder of and principal at NanoZilla LLC of Los Gatos, a management consulting firm devoted to the adoption of electronic
miniaturization technologies. From September 2002 until June 2005, he was Chief Executive Officer and Vice President of Sales of Discera, Inc., a fabless
analog semiconductor company. Previously, Mr. Lacroix was Vice-President and General Manager of MEMSCAP's wireless business. He also held management
positions at Synopsys, Inc. and Cadence Designs Systems. Mr. Lacroix holds a Master of Science degree in electrical engineering from California Institute of
Technology, and a Diplome d'Ingenieur from Ecole Superieure d'Ingenieurs en Electronique et Electrotechnique.

        Departure of a Named Executive Officer.    Dhaval Ajmera, one of our named executive officers in 2006, resigned as our Vice President of Strategic
Accounts. Mr. Ajmera has agreed to remain as an employee on a part-time basis until July 2008. Under the terms of an employee agreement and release dated
March 12, 2008, we agreed to continue to pay Mr. Ajmera his current base salary until July 2008 and the vesting of his stock options ceased immediately.

Item 1A.    Risk Factors

If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition could suffer significantly.

Our success depends upon the semiconductor market's acceptance of our 1T-SRAM technologies.

        The future prospects of our business depend on the acceptance by our target markets of our 1T-SRAM technologies for embedded memory applications and
any future technology we might develop. We have not achieved substantial or rapid growth in our 1T-SRAM technology licensing revenue since we began
selling and marketing the technology and cannot be assured of realizing such growth in the future. Our memory technology is intended to allow our licensees to
develop embedded memory integrated circuits to replace other embedded memory technology with different cost and performance parameters. Our memory
technologies utilize fundamentally different internal circuitry that is not widely known in the semiconductor industry. Therefore, one of our principal challenges,
which we might fail to meet, is to convince a substantial percentage of SoC designers to adopt our technology instead of other memory solutions, which may
have proven effective in their products. Our analog and mixed/signal designs compete with those of larger well established semiconductor manufacturers and IP
providers. We have invested significant resources to expand our embedded IP technology offerings for the SOC market, but may not introduce these new
technology offerings successfully or obtain significant revenue from them.

        An important part of our strategy to gain market acceptance is to penetrate new markets by targeting market leaders as licensees of our technology. This
strategy is designed to encourage other participants in those markets to follow these leaders in adopting our technology. If a high-profile industry participant
adopts our technology for one or more of its products but fails to achieve success with those products, or is unable to successfully implement our technology,
other industry participants' perception of our technology could be harmed. Any such event could reduce the number of future licenses of our technology.
Likewise, if a market leader were to adopt and achieve success with a competing technology, our reputation and licensing program could be harmed.
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Our lengthy licensing cycle and our licensees' lengthy product development cycles make the operating results of our licensing business difficult to
predict.

        We anticipate difficulty in accurately predicting the timing and amounts of revenue generated from licensing our technologies. The establishment of a
business relationship with a potential licensee is a lengthy process, generally taking from three to nine months, and sometimes longer during slower periods in
our industry. Following the establishment of the relationship, the negotiation of licensing terms can be time-consuming, and a potential licensee may require an
extended evaluation and testing period.

        Once a license agreement has been executed, the timing and amount of licensing and royalty revenue from our licensing business remain difficult to predict.
The completion of the licensee's development projects and the commencement of production are subject to the licensee's efforts, development risks and other
factors outside our control. Our royalty revenue will depend on such factors as the success of the licensee's project, the licensee's production and shipment
volumes, the timing of product shipments and when the licensee reports to us the manufacture or sale of products that include our technologies. All of these
factors will prevent us from making predictions of revenue with any certainty and could cause us to experience substantial period-to-period fluctuations in our
operating results.

        None of our licensees are under any obligation to incorporate our technology in any present or future product or to pursue the manufacture or sale of any
product incorporating our technology. A licensee's decision to complete a project or manufacture a product is subject to changing economic, marketing or
strategic factors. The long development cycle of a licensee's products increases the risk that these factors will cause the licensee to change its plans. In the past,
some of our licensees have discontinued development of products incorporating our technology. Although in most cases their decisions were based on factors
unrelated to our technology, it is unlikely that we will receive royalties in connection with those products. We expect that occasionally our licensees will
discontinue a product line or cancel a product introduction, which could adversely affect our future operating results and business.

If the market for SoC integrated circuits does not expand, our business will suffer.

        Our ability to achieve sustained revenue growth and profitability in the future will depend on the continued development of the market for SoC integrated
circuits, particularly those requiring embedded memory sizes of one megabit or more. In addition, our ability to achieve design wins with customers is dependent
upon the growth of embedded memories required in SoCs. SoCs are characterized by rapid technological change and competition from an increasing number of
alternate design strategies such as combining multiple integrated circuits to create a System-in-a-Package.

        We cannot be certain that the market for SoCs will continue to develop or grow at a rate sufficient to support our business, or that if such growth does occur,
that it will lead to significant growth in our business. SoC providers depend on the demand for products requiring SoCs, such as cellular phones, game consoles,
PDAs, digital cameras, DVD players and digital media players to name a few. The demand for such products is uncertain and difficult to predict and depends on
factors beyond our control. If the market fails to grow or develops more slowly than expected, our business will suffer.

The semiconductor industry is cyclical in nature and subject to periodic downturns, which can negatively affect our revenue.

        The semiconductor industry is cyclical and has experienced pronounced downturns for sustained periods of up to several years. To respond to any downturn,
many semiconductor manufacturers and their customers will slow their research and development activities, cancel or delay new product developments, reduce
their workforces and inventories and take a cautious approach to acquiring new
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equipment and technologies. As a result, our business has been in the past and could be adversely affected in the future by an industry downturn, which could
negatively impact our future revenue and profitability. Also, the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry may cause our operating results to fluctuate
significantly from year-to-year, which may tend to increase the volatility of the price of our common stock.

We have a history of losses and are uncertain as to our future profitability.

        We recorded an operating loss of $13.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 and ended the period with an accumulated deficit of $14.7 million. In
addition, we recorded operating losses of $8.5 million and $5.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. We may continue to incur
operating losses for the foreseeable future, and such losses may be substantial. We will need to increase revenues in order to generate sustainable operating profit.
Given our history of fluctuating revenues and operating losses, we cannot be certain that we will be able to achieve profitability on either a quarterly or annual
basis in the future.

Our investments in adjustable rate securities are subject to risks which may cause losses and affect the liquidity of these investments.

        As of February 29, 2008, we held $9.2 million of municipal notes investments, classified as short-term investments, with an auction reset feature (adjustable
rate securities) whose underlying assets were primarily in student loans. All our adjustable rate securities have a AAA credit rating. Auctions for all of these
adjustable rate securities have recently failed. An auction failure means that the parties wishing to sell their securities could not do so as a result of a lack of
buying demand. As a result of auction failures, our ability to liquidate and fully recover the carrying value of our adjustable rate securities in the near term may
be limited or not exist. These developments may result in the classification of some or all of these securities as long-term investments in our consolidated
financial statements in future reporting periods. If the issuers of these adjustable rate securities are unable to successfully close future auctions and their credit
ratings deteriorate, we may in the future be required to record an impairment charge on these investments. We may be required to wait until market stability is
restored for these instruments or until the final maturity of the underlying notes (up to 40 years) to realize our investments' recorded value.

We might be unable to deliver our customized technology within an agreed technical specification in the time frame demanded by our licensees, which
could damage our reputation, harm our ability to attract future licensees and adversely impact operating results.

        Many of our licenses require us to deliver a customized memory block or analog/mixed-signal macro, within an agreed technical specification by a certain
delivery timetable. This requires us to furnish a unique design for each customer, which can make the development schedule difficult to predict and involves
extensive interaction with our customers' engineers. From time to time, we have experienced delays in delivering our customized memory technology that meets
the agreed technical specifications, which can result from slower engineering progress than we originally anticipated or there might be factors outside of our
control, such as the customer's delay in completing verification of the customer's integrated circuit. Such delays may affect the timing of recognition of revenues
and collection of amounts due from a particular project and can adversely affect our operating results and financial condition.

        In addition, any failure to meet our customers' timetables, as well as the agreed upon technical specifications of our customized memory technology could
lead to the failure to collect, or a delay in collecting royalties and licensing fee payments from our licensees, damage our reputation in the industry, harm our
ability to attract new licensees and negatively impact our operating results. Furthermore, a customer may assert that we are responsible for delays and cost
overruns and demand
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reimbursement for some of its costs, which we may elect to reimburse in whole or in part in order to address the customer's concerns.

Our business model relies on royalties as a key component in the generation of revenues from the licensing of our technologies, and if we fail to realize
expected royalties our operating results will suffer.

        We believe that our long-term success is substantially dependent on the receipt of future royalties. Royalty payments owed to us are calculated based on
factors such as our licensees' selling prices, wafer production and other variables as provided in each license agreement. The amount of royalties we will receive
depends on the licensees' business success, production volumes and other factors beyond our control. This exposes our business model to risks that we cannot
minimize directly and may result in significant fluctuations in our royalty revenue and operating results from quarter-to-quarter. We cannot be certain that our
business strategy will be successful in expanding the number of licensees, nor can we be certain that we will receive significant royalty revenue in the future. If
we are unable to generate significant royalty revenue in the future, our future operating results, financial condition and business would suffer.

Our revenue has been highly concentrated among a small number of licensees and customers, and our results of operations could be harmed if we lose a
key revenue source and fail to replace it.

        Our overall revenue has been highly concentrated, with a few customers accounting for a significant percentage of our total revenue. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, one customer represented 70% of total revenue and for the year ended December 31, 2006, our two largest customers represented 27% and
25% of total revenue, respectively. We expect that a relatively small number of licensees will continue to account for a substantial portion of our revenue for the
foreseeable future.

        Our royalty revenue also has been highly concentrated among a few licensees, and we expect this trend to continue for the foreseeable future. In particular, a
substantial portion of our licensing and royalty revenue in 2007, 2006 and 2005 has come from the licenses for integrated circuits used by one electronics
manufacturing company. Royalties earned from the production of this company's gaming devices incorporating our 1T-SRAM technology represented 41%, 16%
and 14% of total revenue in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. This manufacturer faces intense competitive pressure in the video game market, which is
characterized by extreme volatility, costly new product introductions and rapidly shifting consumer preferences, and we cannot be certain whether their sales of
products incorporating our technology will increase or decrease beyond prior or current levels.

        As a result of this revenue concentration, our results of operations could be impaired by the decision of a single key licensee or customer to cease using our
technology or products or by a decline in the number of products that incorporate our technology that are sold by a single licensee or customer or by a small
group of licensees or customers.

Our revenue concentration may also pose credit risks, which could negatively affect our cash flow and financial condition.

        We might also face credit risks associated with the concentration of our revenue among a small number of licensees and customers. As of December 31,
2007, one customer represented 56% of total trade receivables. Although trade receivables from this customer were subsequently collected, our failure to collect
receivables from any customer that represents a large percentage of receivables on a timely basis, or at all, could adversely affect our cash flow or results of
operations and might cause our stock price to fall.
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Anything that negatively affects the businesses of our licensees could negatively impact our revenue.

        The timing and level of our licensing and royalty revenues are dependent on our licensees and the business environment in which they operate. Licensing
and royalty revenue are the largest source of our revenues; anything that negatively affects a significant licensee or group of licensees could negatively affect our
results of operations and financial condition. Many factors beyond our control influence the success of our licensees, including, for example, the highly
competitive environment in which they operate, the strength of the markets for their products, their engineering capabilities and their financial and other
resources.

        Likewise, we have no control over the product development, pricing and marketing strategies of our licensees, which directly affect the licensing of our
technology and corresponding future royalties payable to us from our licensees. Our royalty revenues are subject to our licensees' ability to market, produce and
ship products incorporating our technology. A decline in sales of our licensees' royalty-generating products for any reason would reduce our royalty revenue. In
addition, seasonal and other fluctuations in demand for our licensees' products could cause our operating results to fluctuate, which could cause our stock price to
fall.

We rely on semiconductor foundries to assist us in attracting potential licensees, and a loss or failure of these relationships could inhibit our growth and
reduce our revenue.

        Part of our marketing strategy relies upon our relationships and agreements with semiconductor foundries, such as TSMC, UMC, Chartered, and SMIC
among others. These foundries have existing relationships, and continually seek new relationships, with companies in the markets we target, and they have
agreed to utilize these relationships to introduce our technology to potential licensees. If we fail to maintain and expand our current relationships with these
foundries, we might fail to achieve anticipated growth. Our relationship with these foundries is not exclusive, and they are free to promote or develop other
embedded memory technologies, including their own. The foundries' promotions of alternative technologies reduce the size of our potential market and may
adversely affect our revenues and operating results.

        Additionally, we rely on third-party foundries to manufacture our silicon test chips, to provide references to their customers and to assist us in the focus of
our research and development activities. If we are unable to maintain our existing relationships with these foundries or enter into new relationships with other
foundries, we will be unable to verify our technologies for their manufacturing processes and our ability to develop new technologies will be hampered. We
would then be unable to license our intellectual property to fabless semiconductor companies that use these foundries to manufacture their silicon chips, which is
a significant source of our revenues.

Our embedded memory technology is unique and the occurrence of manufacturing difficulties or low production yields, if not corrected, could hinder
market acceptance of our technology and reduce future revenue.

        Complex technologies like ours could be adversely affected by difficulties in adapting our 1T-SRAM and 1T-FLASH technologies to our licensees' product
designs or to the manufacturing process technology of a particular foundry or semiconductor manufacturer. Some of our customers have experienced lower than
expected yields when initially integrating our design into their SoC. We work closely with our customers to resolve any design or process issues in order to
achieve the optimum production yield.

        Any decrease in manufacturing yields of integrated circuits utilizing our technology could impede the acceptance of our technology in the industry. The
discovery of defects or problems regarding the reliability, quality or compatibility of our technology could require significant expenditures and resources to fix,
significantly delay or hinder market acceptance of our technology, reduce anticipated revenues and damage our reputation.
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Our failure to compete effectively in the market for embedded memory and analog/mixed-signal technology could reduce our revenue.

        Competition in the market for embedded memory and analog/mixed signal solutions is intense. Our licensees and prospective licensees can meet their need
for embedded memory and analog/mixed signal solutions by using traditional memory solutions with different cost and performance parameters, which they may
internally develop or acquire from third-party vendors. In recent years, the demand for applications for which our 1T-SRAM technologies provide distinct
advantages has not experienced significant growth. If alternative technologies are developed that provide comparable system performance at lower cost than our
1T-SRAM technologies for certain applications and/or do not require the payment of comparable royalties, or if the industry generally demonstrates a preference
for applications for which our 1T-SRAM technologies do not offer significant advantages, our ability to realize revenue from our 1T-SRAM technologies could
be impaired. Our analog/mixed signal solutions compete with those of other designers and developers of SoCs, as well as those of semiconductor manufacturers
whose product lines include processors for embedded and non-embedded applications.

        We might be challenged by competitive developers of alternative technologies who are more established, benefit from greater market recognition and have
substantially greater financial, development, manufacturing and marketing resources than we have. These advantages might permit these developers to respond
more quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes in licensee requirements. We cannot assure you that future competition will not have a material
adverse effect on the adoption of our technology and our market penetration.

We have invested significant resources to expand our embedded IP technology offerings for the SOC market, but we might not successfully introduce
these new technology offerings or obtain significant revenue from them.

        We have and will continue to invest significant financial and personnel resources in new embedded IP technology offerings for the SoC market, including
our 1T-FLASH and analog/mixed-signal technologies. To date, substantially all of our revenue has been generated from our 1T-SRAM technologies. We intend
for our new embedded IP technologies under development to significantly increase our revenues and expand our business with existing and new customers.
These technology offerings require further development and have not been silicon verified or tested in production or commercial use, however, and, as with our
existing 1T-SRAM technologies, these new embedded IP technologies are inherently complex. Our success with those new technologies will depend on many
presently uncertain factors, including:

•
the total investment required before we can determine their commercial viability;

•
our ability to demonstrate silicon verified IP in customer product applications;

•
our ability to generate revenues in excess of development costs incurred;

•
the extent to which we may create new proprietary IP to establish entry barriers for our competitors;

•
acceptance of these technologies by our customers and the ease of integrating them with their existing or future SOC designs;

•
overall demand for these new embedded technologies and the willingness of customers to pay significant NRE fees and royalties in order to
license them from us;

•
the length of the sales cycle, which has taken up to 24 months in the case of our existing 1T-SRAM technology; and
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•
the potential introduction by our competitors of alternative products with better or comparable features or at a lower price.

        Any of these factors could adversely affect our ability to successfully introduce these new embedded IP technologies and generate significant revenue from
them. If we fail to achieve our objectives for these technologies it may affect our cash flows and results of operations adversely and result in a material decline in
the trading price of our common stock. In addition, even if we successfully license these new technologies to customers and they do not work as anticipated, our
reputation and ability to do business in the marketplace could be affected adversely.

Our failure to continue to enhance our technology or develop new technology on a timely basis could diminish our ability to attract and retain licensees
and product customers.

        The existing and potential markets for memory and analog/mixed-signal products and technology are characterized by ever increasing performance
requirements, evolving industry standards, rapid technological change and product obsolescence. These characteristics lead to frequent new product and
technology introductions and enhancements, shorter product life cycles and changes in consumer demands. In order to attain and maintain a significant position
in the market, we will need to continue to enhance our technology in anticipation of these market trends.

        In addition, the semiconductor industry might adopt or develop a completely different approach to utilizing memory and analog/mixed signal technology for
many applications, which could render our existing technology unmarketable or obsolete. We might not be able to successfully develop new technology, or adapt
our existing technology, to comply with these innovative standards.

        Our future performance depends on a number of factors, including our ability to—

•
identify target markets and relevant emerging technological trends, including new standards and protocols;

•
develop and maintain competitive technology by improving performance and adding innovative features that differentiate our technology
from alternative technologies;

•
enable the incorporation of enhanced technology in our licensees' and customers' products on a timely basis and at competitive prices;

•
implement our technology at future manufacturing process generations; and

•
respond effectively to new technological developments or new product introductions by others.

        Since its introduction in 1998, we have introduced enhancements to our 1T-SRAM technology designed to meet market requirements. However, we cannot
assure you that the design and introduction schedules of any additions and enhancements to our existing and future technology will be met, that this technology
will achieve market acceptance or that we will be able to license this technology on terms that are favorable to us. Our failure to develop future technology that
achieves market acceptance could harm our competitive position and impede our future growth.

Any claim that our products or technology infringe third-party intellectual property rights could increase our costs of operation and distract
management and could result in expensive settlement costs or the discontinuance of our technology licensing or product offerings. In addition, we may
incur substantial litigation expense, which would adversely affect our profitability.

        The semiconductor industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property rights or positions, which has resulted in often
protracted and expensive litigation. For example, on March 31, 2004, we were sued by UniRAM Technology, Inc. in United States District Court for the
Northern District of California based on claims of patent infringement and
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misappropriation of trade secrets that were allegedly disclosed by UniRAM to TSMC, which allegedly improperly provided them to us. In the fourth quarter of
2006, we settled this litigation and paid $2.4 million to UniRAM. Our licensees or we might, from time to time, receive notice of claims that we have infringed
patents or other intellectual property rights of others. Litigation against us, particularly patent litigation such as the UniRAM suit, can result in significant
expense and divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel, whether or not the litigation has merit or results in a determination adverse to us.

Royalty amounts owed to us might be difficult to verify, and we might find it difficult, expensive and time-consuming to enforce our license agreements.

        The standard terms of our license agreements require our licensees to document the manufacture and sale of products that incorporate our technology and
generally report this data to us after the end of each quarter. We have implemented a royalty audit process, in which we audit licensees' records on a rotation plan
in accordance with the terms of the agreement, to attempt to verify the information provided to us in the royalty reports, these audits can be expensive and time
consuming, and potentially detrimental to the business relationship. A failure to fully enforce the royalty provisions of our license agreements could cause our
revenue to decrease and impede our ability to maintain profitability.

We might not be able to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights, which could impair our ability to compete and reduce the value of our
technology.

        Our technology is complex and is intended for use in complex SoCs. A very large number of new and existing products utilize embedded memory, and a
large number of companies manufacture and market these products. Because of these factors, policing the unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult
and expensive. We cannot be certain that we will be able to detect unauthorized use of our technology or prevent other parties from designing and marketing
unauthorized products based on our technology. In the event we identify any past or present infringement of our patents, copyrights or trademarks, or any
violation of our trade secrets, confidentiality procedures or licensing agreements, we cannot assure you that the steps taken by us to protect our proprietary
information will be adequate to prevent misappropriation of our technology. Our inability to protect adequately our intellectual property would reduce
significantly the barriers of entry for directly competing technologies and could reduce the value of our technology. Furthermore, we might initiate claims or
litigation against third parties for infringement of our proprietary rights or to establish the validity of our proprietary rights. Litigation by us could result in
significant expense and divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel, whether or not such litigation results in a determination favorable to us.

Our existing patents might not provide us with sufficient protection of our intellectual property, and our patent applications might not result in the
issuance of patents, either of which could reduce the value of our core technology and harm our business.

        We rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secret laws and confidentiality procedures to protect our intellectual property rights. As
of December 31, 2007, we held 85 patents in the United States, which expire at various times from 2011 to 2025, and 47 corresponding foreign patents, which
expire at various times from 2012 to 2022. In addition, as of December 31, 2007, we had 12 patent applications pending in the United States and 32 pending
foreign application, and we have not received any notices of allowance with respect to these applications. We cannot be sure that any patents will issue from any
of our pending applications or that any claims allowed from pending applications will be of sufficient scope or strength, or issued in all countries where our
products can be sold, to provide meaningful protection or any commercial advantage to us. Also, competitors might be able to design around our patents. Failure
of our patents or patent applications to provide meaningful
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protection might allow others to utilize our technology without any compensation to us and impair our ability to increase our licensing revenue.

The discovery of defects in our technology could expose us to liability for damages.

        The discovery of a defect in our technologies could lead our licensees to seek damages from us. Some of our license agreements include provisions waiving
implied warranties regarding our technology and limiting our liability to our licensees. We cannot be certain, however, that the waivers or limitations of liability
contained in our license contracts will be enforceable.

Our failure to manage the expansion of our operations could reduce our potential revenue and threaten our future profitability.

        The size of our company has increased substantially as we have grown from 43 employees in January 2001 to 184 employees in December 2007, largely
due to the acquisition of two design teams in Romania and China in the third quarter of 2007. The efficient management of our planned expansion of the
development, licensing and marketing of our technology, including through the acquisition of other companies will require us to continue to:

•
implement and manage new marketing channels to penetrate different and broader markets for our memory and analog/mixed-signal
technologies;

•
manage an increasing number of complex relationships with licensees and co-marketers and their customers and other third parties;

•
expand our capabilities to deliver our technologies to our customers;

•
improve our operating systems, procedures and financial controls on a timely basis;

•
hire additional key management and technical personnel; and

•
expand, train and manage our workforce and, in particular, our development, sales, marketing and support organizations.

        The significant expansion of our foreign operations has resulted in increased difficulty, expense and risk in managing such operations. We cannot assure you
that we will adequately manage our growth or meet the foregoing objectives. A failure to do so could jeopardize our future revenues, adversely impact our results
of operations and cause our stock price to fall.

If we fail to retain key personnel, our business and growth could be negatively affected.

        Our business has been dependent to a significant degree upon the services of a small number of executive officers and technical employees. The loss of any
key personnel could negatively impact our technology development efforts, our ability to delivery under our existing agreements, our ability to maintain strategic
relationships with our partners, and obtain new customers. We generally have not entered into employment or non-competition agreements with any of our
employees and do not maintain key-man life insurance on the lives of any of our key personnel.

Our failure to successfully address the potential difficulties associated with our international operations could increase our costs of operation and
negatively impact our revenue.

        We are subject to many difficulties posed by doing business internationally, including:

•
foreign currency exchange fluctuations;

•
unanticipated changes in local regulation;

•
potentially adverse tax consequences, such as withholding taxes;
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•
political and economic instability; and

•
reduced or limited protection of our intellectual property.

        Because we anticipate that licenses to companies that operate primarily outside the United States will account for a substantial portion of our licensing
revenue in future periods, the occurrence of any of these circumstances could significantly increase our costs of operation, delay the timing of our revenue and
harm our profitability.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws or Delaware law might delay or prevent a change of control transaction and depress the
market price of our stock.

        Various provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws might have the effect of making it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or
discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire, control of our company. These provisions could limit the price that certain investors might be willing to
pay in the future for shares of our common stock. Certain of these provisions eliminate cumulative voting in the election of directors, limit the right of
stockholders to call special meetings and establish specific procedures for director nominations by stockholders and the submission of other proposals for
consideration at stockholder meetings.

        We are also subject to provisions of Delaware law which could delay or make more difficult a merger, tender offer or proxy contest involving our company.
In particular, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any business combination with any
interested stockholder for a period of three years unless specific conditions are met. Any of these provisions could have the effect of delaying, deferring or
preventing a change in control, including without limitation, discouraging a proxy contest or making more difficult the acquisition of a substantial block of our
common stock.

        Our board of directors may issue up to 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock without stockholder approval on such terms as the board might determine. The
rights of the holders of common stock will be subject to, and might be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of any preferred stock that might be issued
in the future.

Our stockholder rights plan could prevent stockholders from receiving a premium over the market price for their shares from a potential acquirer.

        We have adopted a stockholder rights plan, which entitles our stockholders to rights to acquire additional shares of our common stock generally when a third
party acquires 15% of our common stock or commences or announces its intent to commence a tender offer for at least 15% of our common stock. In 2004, we
amended our stockholder rights plan twice; once, in connection with the proposed acquisition of us by Synopsys, Inc, and a second time to permit the acquisition
of shares representing more than 15% of our common stock by a brokerage firm that manages independent customer accounts and generally does not have any
discretionary voting power with respect to such shares. Notwithstanding amendments of this nature, our intention is to maintain and enforce the terms of this
plan, which could delay, deter or prevent an investor from acquiring us in a transaction that could otherwise result in stockholders receiving a premium over the
market price for their shares of common stock.

Potential volatility of the price of our common stock could negatively affect your investment.

        We cannot assure you that there will continue to be an active trading market for our common stock. Recently, the stock market, as well as our common
stock, has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations. Market prices of securities of technology companies have been highly volatile and frequently
reach levels that bear no relationship to the operating performance of such companies.
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These market prices generally are not sustainable and are subject to wide variations. If our common stock trades to unsustainably high levels, it is likely that the
market price of our common stock will thereafter experience a material decline. In the second half of 2007, our board of directors approved a stock repurchase
program. This program as well as any future program could impact the price of our common stock and increase volatility.

        In the past, securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following periods of volatility in the market price of its securities. We
could be the target of similar litigation in the future. Securities litigation could cause us to incur substantial costs, divert management's attention and resources,
harm our reputation in the industry and the securities markets and negatively impact our operating results.

Any acquisitions we make, such as our recent asset purchase from Atmel Corporation, could disrupt our business and harm our financial condition.

        As part of our growth strategy, we might consider opportunities to acquire other businesses or technologies that would complement our current offerings,
expand the breadth of our markets or enhance our technical capabilities. To date, we purchased assets from Atmel Corporation and LDIC in 2007 and acquired
ATMOS in 2002. In 2004, we commenced the shutdown of the Atmos operations. Acquisitions present a number of potential challenges that could, if not
overcome, disrupt our business operations, negatively affect our operating results and cash flows and reduce the value to us of the acquired company or assets
purchased, including:

•
uncertainty related to future revenues;

•
increased operating expenses and cost structure;

•
integration of the acquired employees, operations, technologies and products with our existing business and products;

•
focusing management's time and attention on our core business;

•
retention of business relationships with suppliers and customers of the acquired business;

•
entering markets in which we lack prior experience;

•
retention of key employees of the acquired business; and

•
amortization of intangible assets, write-offs, stock-based compensation and other charges relating to the acquired business and our
acquisition costs.

Item 1B.    Unresolved Staff Comments

        None.

Item 2.    Properties

        Our principal administrative, sales, marketing, support and research and development functions are located in a leased facility in Sunnyvale, California. We
currently occupy approximately 26,000 square feet of space in the Sunnyvale facility, the lease for which extends through June 2010. We have leased
approximately 19,000 square feet of space in Ontario, Canada, which has been sublet to a third party for the term of the lease, which expires in April 2008. We
have leased office space in Seoul, South Korea for our engineering design center and in Tokyo, Japan for our sales office. We have also leased space for our
research and development facilities in Iasi and Bucharest, Romania and Shanghai, China. We believe that our existing facilities are adequate to meet our current
needs.

22

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



Item 3.    Legal Proceedings

        The Company is not a party to any material legal proceeding which would have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations. From time to time we may be subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. These claims, even if not meritorious, could
result in the expenditure of significant financial resources and diversion of management efforts.

Item 4.    Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

        No matter was submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report.
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Part II

Item 5.    Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

        Our common stock is listed on the Global Market of the NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol MOSY and prior to August 1, 2006 was quoted on the
NASDAQ National Market. The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices of our common stock for each period indicated.

Quarter ended

 

High

 

Low

December 31, 2007  $ 7.41 $ 4.71
September 30, 2007  $ 8.83 $ 6.05
June 30, 2007  $ 9.06 $ 7.85
March 31, 2007  $ 9.60 $ 7.31
December 31, 2006  $ 9.81 $ 6.44
September 30, 2006  $ 8.20 $ 5.65
June 30, 2006*  $ 9.30 $ 7.57
March 31, 2006*  $ 8.86 $ 5.32

*
As quoted on the NASDAQ National Market

        We had 26 shareholders of record as of February 29, 2008.

Dividend Policy

        We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and presently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to fund the development and
growth of our business and, therefore, do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

        On August 28, 2007, we announced a repurchase program for up to $19.5 million of our outstanding common stock over the next 12 months. As of
December 31, 2007, we had repurchased approximately 883,000 shares of common stock for approximately $5.0 million. All shares repurchased were retired in
2007. Repurchases of our common stock during 2007 were as follows:

Period

 

Total Number of
Shares

Repurchased

 

Average Price
Paid Per Share

 

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as

Part of a Publicly
Announced Plan

 

Maximum Dollar
Value of Shares that

May Yet be
Repurchased Under

the Plan (in thousands)

August 2007  27,370 $ 6.47 27,370 $ 19,323
September 2007  71,443 $ 6.49 71,443 $ 18,859
         
 Total Q3 2007  98,813 $ 6.49 98,813   
         
October 2007  30,078 $ 6.49 30,078 $ 18,664
November 2007  460,855 $ 5.61 460,855 $ 16,078
December 2007  293,589 $ 5.45 293,589 $ 14,477
         
 Total Q4 2007  784,522 $ 5.59 784,522   
         
 Total 2007  883,335 $ 5.69 883,335   
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Stock Performance Graph

        The following graph compares cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock with that of the S&P 500 Index and the S&P Technology Sector
Index from 2002 through 2007. The comparison assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2002 in our common stock, the stocks included in the
S&P 500 Index and the stocks included in the S&P Technology Sector Index.

        The comparisons shown in the graph below are based upon historical data, and we caution that the stock price performance shown in the graph below is not
indicative of, nor intended to forecast, the potential future performance of our common stock. Information used in the graph was obtained from Standard and
Poor's website, a source believed to be reliable, but we are not responsible for any errors or omissions in such information.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return

  

12/31/2002

 

12/31/2003

 

12/31/2004

 

12/31/2005

 

12/31/2006

 

12/31/2007

MOSYS, INC.  100.00 70.94 51.57 45.53 76.57 40.15
S & P 500  100.00 126.38 137.75 141.88 161.20 166.89
S & P TECHNOLOGY SECTOR  100.00 146.55 149.68 150.25 161.81 186.95

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plan

        See Item 12.—Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

Item 6.    Selected Condensed Financial Data

        The selected financial data presented below is derived from our consolidated financial statements that are included under Item 8. The selected financial data
should be read in conjunction with our
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financial statements and notes related to those statements and with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations"
included herein.

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007(1)

 

2006(2)

 

2005(3)

 

2004(4)

 

2003

 

  

(In thousands, except per share data)

 
Net revenue  $ 14,334 $ 14,909 $ 12,282 $ 10,821 $ 19,233 
Cost of net revenue   2,737  1,498  1,986  2,268  3,187 
       
Gross profit   11,597  13,411  10,296  8,553  16,046 
Operating expenses   24,613  21,926  15,880  22,012  15,173 
       
Income (loss) from operations   (13,016)  (8,515)  (5,584)  (13,459)  873 
Interest, other income and expenses   4,520  3,286  2,591  11,578  1,914 
       
Income (loss) before income taxes   (8,496)  (5,229)  (2,993)  (1,881)  2,787 
Income tax benefit (provision)   (25)  (109)  11  (26)  (279)
       
Net income (loss)  $ (8,521) $ (5,338) $ (2,982) $ (1,907) $ 2,508 
       
Net income (loss) per share:                 
 Basic  $ (0.27) $ (0.17) $ (0.10) $ (0.06) $ 0.08 
 Diluted  $ (0.27) $ (0.17) $ (0.10) $ (0.06) $ 0.08 
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share:                 
 Basic   31,994  31,298  30,534  30,750  30,504 
 Diluted   31,994  31,298  30,534  30,750  30,998 

Allocation of stock-based compensation to cost of net revenue
and operating expenses:                 
 Cost of net revenue  $ 495 $ 225 $ — $ — $ — 
 Research and development   1,162  993  —  44  148 
 Selling, general and administrative   2,109  1,528  36  24  311 
       
  $ 3,766 $ 2,746 $ 36 $ 68 $ 459 
       

(1)
Includes a $1.0 million charge for acquired in-process research and development and $0.4 million of amortization of acquired intangible assets from
asset acquisitions.

(2)
Includes a $2.4 million litigation settlement.

(3)
Includes restructuring charges of $0.1 million.

(4)
Includes restructuring charges of $0.6 million.

  

Year Ended December 31,

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2004

 

2003

  

(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:                
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments  $ 64,961 $ 81,807 $ 68,650 $ 62,349 $ 41,365
Working capital   66,262  84,698  68,179  62,535  44,426
Total assets   98,797  103,760  103,637  104,582  106,892
Deferred revenue   201  619  1,309  501  506
Long-term obligations   —  54  196  239  13
Stockholders' equity   96,292  100,915  99,332  100,408  103,511

26

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



Item 7.    Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

        This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and notes included in this report.

Overview

        We design, develop, market and license memory intellectual property, or IP, used by the semiconductor industry. Our patented memory solutions include
1T-SRAM and 1T-FLASH high-density alternatives to traditional volatile and non-volatile embedded memory. We license these technologies to companies that
incorporate, or embed, memory on complex integrated circuits, such as Systems on Chips, or SoCs. We have also sold memory chips based on our 1T-SRAM
technologies, but we ceased actively selling them in 2004. We do not expect to make and sell memory chips in the future.

        Our customers include semiconductor companies, IDMs, and foundries. We generate revenue from the licensing of our IP, and our customers pay us fees for
licensing, non-recurring engineering services, royalties and maintenance and support. Royalty revenues are typically earned under our license agreements when
our licensees manufacture or sell products that incorporate any of our technologies. Generally, we expect our total sales cycle, or the period from our initial
discussion with a prospective licensee to our receipt of royalties from the licensee's use of our technologies, to run from 18 to 24 months. The portion of our sales
cycle from the initial discussion to the receipt of license fees may run from six to 12 months, depending on the complexity of the proposed project and degree of
development services required.

        In 2005, we began delivering our 1T-SRAM CLASSIC Memory Macro products to licensees. These macros are silicon-proven, high-density solutions
offering customers rapid memory block integration into their SoC designs. They are pre-configured and require minimal additional customization, and we believe
they will enable us to increase our penetration of the market for very dense, low power, high speed embedded memory applications.

        In July 2007, we entered into an asset purchase agreement and a transition services agreement with Atmel Corporation (Atmel) with respect to the purchase
of several analog/mixed-signal integrated circuit designs and related assets from Atmel, including the rights to acquire an Atmel subsidiary located in Romania
that employed 58 people and another Atmel subsidiary located in Shanghai, China that employed 45 people at the time of purchase. Under the agreement, we
made a cash payment of $1.0 million, assumed net liabilities of acquired subsidiaries, and agreed to reimburse certain pre-closing operating expenses for a total
purchase price of approximately $1.4 million.

        In August 2007, we acquired intellectual property and other assets from LSI Design and Integration Corporation (LDIC) in a transaction related to the Atmel
acquisition. We acquired this technology and related assets in exchange for 500,000 shares of the Company's common stock with the grant-date fair value of
$7.07 per share. Of the 500,000 shares issued by us for the LDIC acquisition, $2.1 million (which represents the 300,000 shares valued at $7.07) has been
recorded as intangible assets and the other 200,000 shares have been reserved for future distribution to employees and are being recognized as compensation
expense over the vesting period. We recorded the fair value of the 300,000 shares as part of the asset purchase consideration. In addition, the agreement calls for
an earn-out payment equal to 25% of the license and royalty revenues generated by us from the integrated circuit designs acquired from Atmel and LDIC that are
recognized in the first 12 calendar months following the closing date. Any such payments will be recorded as additional purchase consideration when earned.
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Sources of Revenue

        We generate two types of revenue: licensing and royalties.

        Licensing.    Our license agreements involve long sales cycles, which makes it difficult to predict when the agreements will be signed. In addition, our
licensing revenues fluctuate from period-to-period, and it is difficult for us to predict the timing and magnitude of such revenue from quarter-to-quarter.
Moreover, we believe that the amount of licensing revenue for any period is not necessarily indicative of results in any future period. Our future revenue results
are subject to a number of factors, particularly those described in Part I, Item 1A. "Risk Factors."

        Our licensing revenue consists of fees for providing circuit design, layout and design verification and granting a license to a customer for embedding our
technology into its product. License fees generally range from $100,000 to several million dollars per contract, depending on the scope and complexity of the
development project, and the extent of the licensee's rights. The licensee generally pays the license fees in installments at the beginning of the license term and
upon the attainment of specified milestones. The vast majority of our contracts allow for milestone billing based on work performed. Fees billed prior to revenue
recognition are recorded as deferred revenue.

        Royalty.    Each of our license agreements provides for royalty payments at a stated rate. We negotiate royalty rates by taking into account such factors as
the anticipated volume of the licensee's sales of products utilizing our technologies and the cost savings to be achieved by the licensee through the use of our
technology. Our license agreements generally require the licensee to report the manufacture or sale of products that include our technology after the end of the
quarter in which the sale or manufacture occurs.

        As with our licensing revenue, the timing and level of royalties are difficult to predict. They depend on the licensee's ability to market, produce and sell
products incorporating our technology. Many of the products of our licensees that are currently subject to licenses from us are consumer products, such as
electronic game consoles, for which demand can be seasonal and generally highest in the fourth quarter. For a discussion of factors that could contribute to the
fluctuation of our revenues, see Part I, Item 1A. "Risk Factors—Our lengthy licensing cycle and our licensees' lengthy product development cycle will make the
operating results of our licensing business difficult to predict," and "—Anything that negatively affects the businesses of our licensees could negatively impact
our revenue."

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

        Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Report describes the significant accounting policies and methods used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

        We have identified the accounting policies below as some of the more critical to our business and the understanding of our results of operations. These
policies may involve estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Although we believe our judgments
and estimates are appropriate, actual future results may differ from our estimates, and if different assumptions or conditions were to prevail, the results could be
materially different from our reported results.
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Revenue Recognition

General

        We generate revenue from the licensing of our IP, and customers pay fees for licensing, development services, royalties and maintenance and support.
During 2004, we phased out sales of our proprietary memory chips and completed our final shipment of such products in early 2005. We apply the principles of
SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, "Revenue Recognition," and recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or
performance has occurred, fees are fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Evidence of an arrangement generally consists of agreements.
When sales arrangements contain multiple elements (e.g., license and services), we apply the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 00-21 (EITF 00-21), "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables," to determine the separate units of
accounting that exist within the agreement. If more than one unit of accounting exists, the agreement consideration payable to us is allocated to each unit of
accounting using either the relative fair value method or the residual fair value method as prescribed by EITF 00-21. Revenue is recognized for each unit of
accounting when the revenue recognition criteria of SAB No. 104 have been met for that unit of accounting.

Licensing

        Licensing revenue consists of fees earned from license agreements, development services and support and maintenance. For license agreements that do not
require significant development, modification or customization, revenues are generally recognized when the criteria of SAB No. 104 have been met. If any of
these criteria are not met, we defer revenue recognition until such time as all criteria have been met.

        For license agreements that include deliverables that require significant production, modification or customization, we apply American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants Statement of Position 81-1 (SOP 81-1), "Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts." When
we have significant experience in meeting the design specification involved in the contract and the direct labor hours related to services under the contract can be
reasonably estimated, we recognize revenue over the period in which we perform the contract services. For these arrangements, we recognize revenue using the
percentage of completion method. The percentage of completion method includes judgmental elements, such as determining that we have the experience to meet
the design specifications and estimation of the total direct labor hours. We follow this method because we can obtain reasonably dependable estimates of the
direct labor hours to perform the contract services. The direct labor hours for the development of the licensee's design are estimated at the beginning of the
contract. As these direct labor hours are incurred, they are used as a measure of progress towards completion. We have the ability to reasonably estimate direct
labor hours on a contract-by-contract basis from our experience in developing prior licensee's designs. During the contract performance period, we review
estimates of direct labor hours to complete the contracts as the contract progresses to completion and will revise our estimates of revenue and gross profit under
the contract if we revise the estimations of the direct labor hours to complete. Our policy is to reflect any revision in the contract gross profit estimate in reported
income in the period in which the facts giving rise to the revision become known. Under the percentage of completion method, provisions for estimated losses on
uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which the likelihood of such losses is determined. Revenue recognized in any period is dependent on our
progress toward completion of projects in progress. Significant management judgment and discretion are used to estimate total direct labor hours. Any changes in
or deviation from these estimates could have a material effect on the amount of revenue we recognize in any period. If the amount of revenue recognized under
the percentage of completion accounting method exceeds the amount of billings to a customer, then we account for the excess amount as an unbilled contract
receivable. Our total unbilled
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contract receivable was $518,000 and $360,000 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. If inherent risks make estimates doubtful, we must account for
the contract under the completed contract method.

        For contracts involving design specifications that we have not previously met, we defer the recognition of all revenue until the design meets the contractual
design specifications and expense the cost of revenue as incurred. When we have experience in meeting design specifications, but believe that we do not have
significant experience to reasonably estimate the direct labor hours related to services to meet a design specification, we defer both the recognition of revenue
and the cost. For these arrangements, we recognize revenue using the completed contract method. We recognized $128,000 of revenue under the completed
contract method in 2007. In 2006 and 2005, no revenue was recognized under the completed contract method.

        We also provide support and maintenance under many of our license agreements. Under these arrangements, we provide unspecified upgrades, design rule
changes and technical support. No other upgrades, products or other post-contract support are provided. We recognize support and maintenance revenue at its fair
value established by objective evidence, ratably over the period during which the obligation exists, typically 12 months. These arrangements are renewable
annually by the customer. Revenue from support and maintenance was $484,000, $287,000 and $512,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and was included
in licensing revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

        From time to time, a licensee may cancel a project during the development phase. Such a cancellation is not within our control and is often caused by
changes in market conditions or the licensee's business. Cancellations of this nature are an aspect of our licensing business, and, in general, license contracts
allow us to retain all payments that we have received or are entitled to collect for items and services provided before the cancellation occurs. Typically under our
license agreements, the licensee is obligated to complete the project within a stated timeframe, including assisting us in completing the final milestone, and if we
perform the contracted services, is obligated to pay the license fees even if the licensee fails to complete verification or cancels the project prior to completion.
For accounting purposes we will consider a project to have been canceled even in the absence of specific notice from its licensee, if there has been no activity
under the contract for six months or longer, and we believe that completion of the contract is unlikely. In this event, we recognize revenue in the amount of cash
received, if we have performed a sufficient portion of the development services. If a cancelled contract had been entered into before the establishment of
technological feasibility, the costs associated with the contract would have been expensed prior to the recognition of revenue. In that case, there would be no
costs associated with that revenue recognition, and gross margin would increase for the corresponding period. License revenue from cancelled contracts was $0,
$225,000 and $240,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Royalty

        Licensing contracts also provide for royalty reporting and payments at a stated rate based on actual units manufactured or sold by licensees for products that
include our technologies after the end of the quarter in which the sale or manufacture occurs. We generally recognize royalties in the quarter in which we receive
the licensee's report. However, due to a contract amendment with one customer in the fourth quarter of 2006, we started to recognize royalty revenue for that
customer in the same quarter in which the units are sold by this customer based on royalty reports received from the customer. In addition, in the first quarter of
2006, we began recognizing revenue from two types of prepaid royalties: pre-production royalties, which cover a fixed number of future unit shipments and are
paid in a lump sum when we enter into the licensing contract, and post-production royalties, which are paid in a lump sum after the licensee commences
production of the royalty-bearing product and applied against future unit shipments. In either case, these prepaid royalties are non-refundable. Revenue is
recognized upon execution of the contract provided that no further performance obligations
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exist. We record pre-production, prepaid royalties as license revenues and post-production, pre-paid royalties as royalty revenues.

Valuation of long-lived Assets

        We evaluate our long-lived assets for impairment, at least annually. This assessment is subjective in nature and requires significant management judgment to
forecast future operating results, projected cash flows and current period market capitalization levels. If our estimates and assumptions change in the future, it
could result in a material write-down of long-lived assets. We amortize our finite-lived intangible assets, such as developed technology, patents and workforce,
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of three to five years. We recognize an impairment charge as the difference between the net book value of
such assets and the future undiscounted cash flows attributable the assets.

Deferred tax valuation allowance

        When we prepare our consolidated financial statements, we estimate our income tax liability for each of the various jurisdictions where we conduct
business. This requires us to estimate our actual current tax exposure and to assess temporary differences that result from differing treatment of certain items for
tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which we show on our consolidated balance sheet under the category
of other current assets. The net deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based upon weighted available evidence, it is more likely than not that
some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. We must make significant judgments to determine our provision for income taxes, our deferred tax
assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance to be recorded against our net deferred tax asset. As of December 31, 2007, we had a valuation allowance of
approximately $17.4 million, of which approximately $5.8 million was attributable to Canadian loss and research and development pool carryforwards and
$9.4 million was attributable to U.S. and state net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

        We adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109," on
January 1, 2007. FIN 48 is an interpretation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes," and it seeks to reduce the
diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of measurement and recognition in accounting for income taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position that an entity takes or expects to take in a tax return.
Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures, and transition. Under
FIN 48, an entity may only recognize or continue to recognize tax positions that meet a "more likely than not" threshold. In accordance with our accounting
policy, we recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of other income and expense. This policy did not change
as a result of our adoption of FIN 48.

Stock-based compensation

        We account for stock compensation costs in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(revised 2004) (SFAS 123R),
"Share-Based Payments," and apply the provisions of SAB No. 107. Upon adoption, we selected the modified prospective transition method, which requires us to
recognize the fair value of the stock-based compensation in net income (loss) in the current and future periods and not to restate the impact of the adoption on the
prior period financial statements. Upon adoption, we began estimating the value of employee stock options on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the value of each employee stock option was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model for the purpose
of the pro forma financial disclosure in accordance with SFAS No. 123 (SFAS 123),
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"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation." The determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model
is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited
to, the expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, and actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors. The expected term of
options granted is derived from historical data on employee exercises and post-vesting employment termination behavior. The expected volatility is based on the
historical and implied volatility of our stock price.

Results of Operations

        The following discussion compares the historical results of operations based on U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Revenues.

  

Year ended December 31,

 

Year-Over-Year Change

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2006 to 2007

 

2005 to 2006

 

  

(dollar amounts in thousands)

 
Licensing  $ 5,253 $ 9,096 $ 7,725 $ (3,843) (42)% $ 1,371 18%
Percentage of total revenues   37%  61%  63%           
        Licensing revenue consists of fees earned from license agreements, development services and support and maintenance.

        The $3.8 million decrease in 2007 was primarily due to a significant decline in new customers and agreements for our CLASSIC Macro products and
1T-SRAM technology licenses. We believe that licensing revenue from CLASSIC Macros declined primarily because in the fourth quarter of 2006, we entered
into a royalty bearing technology license agreement with TSMC that allows them to develop and distribute 1T-SRAM macro designs for which TSMC pays us
royalties when they ship integrated circuits to their customers. We believe this arrangement with TSMC ultimately will be beneficial because a substantial
percentage of potential licensees for our basic IT-SRAM technologies will use TSMC for foundry services.

        Licensing revenue increased to $9.1 million in 2006 from $7.7 million in 2005 due to revenue recognized from several significant licensing contracts for our
1T-SRAM technology on the 90nm and 65nm manufacturing processes in 2006.

  

Year ended December 31,

 

Year-Over-Year Change

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2006 to 2007

 

2005 to 2006

 

  

(dollar amounts in thousands)

 
Royalty  $ 9,081 $ 5,813 $ 4,547 $ 3,268 56% $ 1,266 28%
Percentage of total revenues   63%  39%  37%           

        Royalty revenue represents amounts earned under provisions in our licensing contracts that require our licensees to report royalties and make payments at a
stated rate based on actual units manufactured or sold by licensees for products that include our technologies. We generally recognize royalties in the quarter in
which we receive the licensee's report.

        Royalty revenue increased $3.3 million in 2007 primarily due to an increase in royalties earned on the sales of the Nintendo Wii game console which
reached volume production in the last quarter of 2006.

        Royalty revenue increased to $5.8 million in 2006 from $4.5 million in 2005 primarily due to a contract amendment with a customer, which allowed us to
report royalty revenue one quarter earlier than the previous contract. As a result of this contract amendment, additional royalty revenue
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representing 10% of total revenue was recognized in 2006, and in all subsequent future quarters, we will continue to recognize royalty revenue related to this
amendment in the same quarter in which the units are sold. In 2006, the royalty earned from the production of Nintendo GAMECUBE chips decreased to 3% of
total revenue, compared to 14% in 2005, as the GAMECUBE video game products approached the end of their product life cycles.

Cost of net revenues and gross profit.

  

Year ended December 31,

 

Year-Over-Year Change

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2006 to 2007

 

2005 to 2006

 

  

(dollar amounts in thousands)

 
Cost of net revenue  $ 2,737 $ 1,498 $ 1,986 $ 1,239 83% $ (488) (25)%
Percentage of total revenues   19%  10%  16%           
        Cost of net revenues consists of personnel costs for engineers assigned to revenue-generating licensing arrangements and related overhead allocation costs.

        The increase in cost of net revenues for 2007 was primarily due to new licensing arrangements we entered into in 2007, which required significantly
increased engineering services. Those contracts required us to develop new memory macros for smaller manufacturing process geometries, and we incurred
higher costs to fulfill our obligations. Cost of revenue in 2007 includes stock-based compensation expense of $0.5 million, an increase of $0.3 million over 2006.
As a result of the significant increase in engineering costs under new licensing arrangements, our gross profit decreased from $13.4 million in 2006 to
$11.6 million in 2007 and, as a percentage of total revenue, decreased to 81% of total revenue in 2007 from 90% in 2006. We expect that cost of licensing
revenues will continue to grow in absolute dollars and will be higher as a percentage of net revenue for 2008 because we anticipate entering into license
agreements requiring more complete development services due to the shift by many licensees to smaller process geometries, including 65nm and below.

        Gross profit increased to $13.4 million in 2006 from $10.3 million in 2005 mainly due to an increase in our licensing revenue. Our gross profit as a
percentage of total revenue increased to 90% in 2006 from 84% in 2005 primarily due to a higher licensing gross profit, which increased to 84% of total licensing
revenue in 2006 from 74% of total licensing revenue in 2005. This increase in licensing gross profit as a percentage of licensing revenue resulted from lower
costs for fulfilling our obligations under large, high margin contracts and our CLASSIC Memory Macro projects. This cost reduction was partially offset by
stock-based compensation expense of $225,000 recorded under SFAS 123(R). There was no stock-based compensation expense related to SFAS 123(R) in 2005.
In addition, pre-production prepaid royalties included in licensing revenue contributed to an increased gross profit as a percentage of total revenue because such
royalties have no associated cost.

Research and Development.

  

Year ended December 31,

 

Year-Over-Year Change

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2006 to 2007

 

2005 to 2006

 

  

(dollar amounts in thousands)

 
Research and development  $ 11,988 $ 8,156 $ 5,839 $ 3,832 47% $ 2,317 40%
Percentage of total revenues   84%  55%  48%           
        Our research and development expenses include development and design of variations of the 1T-SRAM technologies for use in different manufacturing
processes used by licensees, development of our 1T-FLASH technology solution and costs related to our newly acquired analog/mixed-signal design technology,
including the subsidiaries in China and Romania, and amortization of acquired intangible assets. We expense research and development costs as they are
incurred.
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        The $3.8 million increase in 2007 was primarily due to a substantial increase in newly hired personnel attributable to the Atmel and LDIC asset acquisitions
in the third quarter of 2007 which added approximately one hundred employees. The increase included $0.5 million for contractually obligated bonuses and
tape-out charges for our high definition DVD mixed-signal IP on a test integrated circuit, $0.4 million of amortization of purchased intangible assets from these
acquisitions, and an increase of $0.2 million in stock-based compensation expense. In addition, we expanded our engineering team working on our non-volatile
1T-FLASH memory technology and 1T-SRAM display driver applications. Research and development expenses included stock-based compensation expense of
$1.2 million. We will increase our development efforts in 2008 to enable the commercial launch of our new IP technologies, and we expect total research and
development expense to increase significantly in 2008 as compared to 2007, but to decrease slightly as a percentage of revenues.

        The increase in research and development expenses for 2006 from 2005 was primarily attributable to a lower allocation of expenses to cost of licensing
revenue in 2006 because of the high margin contracts, which requires less customization and engineering efforts. Research and development expenses also
increased as a result of the stock-based compensation expense of $1.0 million under SFAS 123(R).

Selling, General and Administrative.

  

Year ended December 31,

 

Year-Over-Year Change

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2006 to 2007

 

2005 to 2006

 

  

(dollar amounts in thousands)

 
Selling, general and administrative  $ 11,659 $ 11,370 $ 9,922 $ 289 3% $ 1,448 15%
Percentage of total revenues   81%  76%  81%           
        Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel and related overhead costs for sales, marketing, customer support, finance,
human resources and general management.

        The increase for 2007 from 2006 resulted primarily from a $0.2 million increase in bad debt expense attributable to one customer, a $0.6 million increase in
stock-based compensation expense, $0.3 million increase in legal fees related to employment matters, $0.4 million increase in salary and related costs,
$0.2 million increase in marketing promotional activities and $0.2 million of separation costs related to the departures of two executives. These increases were
offset by a $1.6 million decrease in litigation expenses.

        The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses for 2006 from 2005 was mainly due to stock-based compensation expense of $1.5 million under
SFAS 123(R). Expenses related to the UniRAM litigation in 2006 totaled approximately $1.7 million, compared to $1.6 million in 2005. Expenses related to
testing and assessment of effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting required by Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act were approximately
$411,000 in 2006.
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Stock-Based Compensation.

        As a result of the adoption of SFAS 123(R) effective January 1, 2006, $3.8 million and $2.7 million were recognized as stock-based compensation expense
during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. The total
compensation cost of options granted, but not yet vested, as of December 31, 2007 was $10.6 million, which is expected to be recognized as expense over a
weighted average period of approximately 2.55 years.

        During the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded stock-based compensation expense of $36,000, which was attributable to the issuance of options to
purchase our stock to newly appointed members of our board of directors that had an exercise price less than the fair market value of our stock on the date of the
option grant, which was permitted under our option plan.

        Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), we amortized deferred compensation expense using the graded vesting method over the vesting period of each
respective option, generally four years. The accelerated amortization resulted in expensing approximately 52% of the total award in the first year, 27% in the
second year, 15% in the third year and 6% in the fourth year.

Acquired In-Process Research and Development.

  

Year ended December 31,

 

Year-Over-Year Change

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2006 to 2007

 

2005 to 2006

  

(dollar amounts in thousands)

In-process research and development  $ 966 $ — $ — $ 966 100% $ — —
Percentage of total revenues   7%  —  —          
        We recorded a charge of $1.0 million in 2007 for purchased in-process research and development expenses upon completion of the Atmel and LDIC asset
acquisitions because technological feasibility of the acquired technology had not been established and no future alternative uses existed. The fair value of the
projects was determined by estimating the present value of the net cash flows we believed would result from the acquired technology.

Litigation Settlement.

  

Year ended December 31,

 

Year-Over-Year Change

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2006 to 2007

 

2005 to 2006

 

  

(dollar amounts in thousands)

 
Litigation settlement  $ — $ 2,400 $ — $ (2,400) (100)%$ 2,400 100%
Percentage of total revenues   —  16%  —           
        In March 2004, UniRAM Technology, Inc. (UniRAM) filed a complaint against us in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California,
alleging trade secret misappropriation and patent infringement. In October 2006, we entered into a settlement agreement with UniRAM under which we and
UniRAM agreed to dismiss all outstanding claims and counterclaims with prejudice, and we paid UniRAM $2.4 million and received a complete release of all
claims as well as a future fully paid license for ourselves and all of our licensees with respect to UniRAM's relevant intellectual property.
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Interest, Other Income and Expenses.

  

Year ended December 31,

 

Year-Over-Year Change

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2006 to 2007

 

2005 to 2006

 

  

(dollar amounts in thousands)

 
Interest, other income and expenses  $ 4,520 $ 3,286 $ 2,591 $ 1,234 38% $ 695 27%
Percentage of total revenues   32%  22%  21%           
        The increase in interest, other income and expenses for 2007 was primarily due to a $0.7 million increase in interest income due to higher interest rates
earned on our investments and a $0.5 million decrease in other expenses due to a non-recurring charge recorded in 2006 related to Japan withholding taxes paid
by Japanese licensees on our behalf.

        The increase in interest, other income and expenses for 2006 from 2005 was primarily due to higher interest rates but offset by a charge of $0.5 million
recorded in 2006 related to Japan withholding taxes paid by Japanese licensees on our behalf. We do not expect any additional withholding tax reimbursement in
the future as the U.S.—Japan income tax treaty that took effect July 1, 2004 generally eliminated withholding taxes on royalties.

Provision for Income Taxes.

  

Year ended December 31,

 

Year-Over-Year Change

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2006 to 2007

 

2005 to 2006

 

  

(dollar amounts in thousands)

 
Income tax benefit (provision)  $ (25) $ (109) $ 11 $ 84 (77)%  $ (120) 1,091%
Percentage of total revenues   (0)% (1)% 0%           
        Our income tax provisions for 2007 and 2006 were primarily attributable to foreign jurisdictions.

        As of December 31, 2007, we had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $14.7 million for federal income tax purposes, approximately
$16.2 million for state income tax purposes and Canadian loss and research and development pool carryforwards of approximately $14.8 million that are
available to reduce future income tax liabilities to the extent permitted under federal, Canadian and applicable state income tax laws. These net operating loss
carryforwards expire over our tax periods from 2008 to 2027. In 2008, we anticipate that our effective income tax rate will continue to be less than the federal
statutory tax rate.

        As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had gross deferred tax assets of approximately $17.4 million and $13.8 million, respectively. Because of
uncertainties regarding the realization of deferred tax assets, we had a full valuation allowance of $17.4 million as of December 31, 2007 and $12.5 million as of
December 31, 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

        As of December 31, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of $37.7 million, short-term investments of $27.3 million and long-term investments of
$13.7 million, resulting in a combined balance of $78.7 million. As of December 31, 2006, we had cash and cash equivalents of $11.1 million, short-term
investments of $70.7 million and long-term investments of $2.5 million, resulting in a combined balance of $84.3 million. Our primary capital requirements are
to fund working capital needs.

        As discussed in more detail under Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk," our short-term investments at December 31,
2007 included $11.6 million of adjustable rate securities that currently may be relatively illiquid. We believe we will be able to liquidate our adjustable rate
securities without significant loss, and we currently believe these securities are not

36

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



impaired, primarily due to government guarantees of the underlying securities. However, it could take until the final maturity of the underlying notes (up to
40 years) to realize our investments' recorded value. We currently have the ability and intent to hold our $9.2 million of adjustable rate securities held as of
February 29, 2008, until market stability is restored with respect to these securities. We believe that, even allowing for the reclassification of these securities to
long-term and the possible requirement to hold all such securities for an indefinite period of time, our remaining cash and cash equivalents and investments will
be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs and to execute our current business plan.

        Cash used in operating activities was $1.1 million for 2007 and primarily consisted of the net loss of $8.5 million, offset by a decrease in accounts
receivable of $1.4 million, increases in non-cash charges including the in-process research and development charge of $1.0 million, stock-based compensation
expense of $3.8 million, $1.0 million for depreciation and amortization and $0.2 million of bad debt expense.

        Cash used in operating activities was $5.6 million for 2006 and primarily consisted of the net loss of $5.3 million, an increase in accounts receivable of
$1.9 million, reduced deferred revenue of $0.7 million and decreased accrued expenses and other liabilities of $0.8 million, partially offset by the non-cash
impacts of stock-based compensation expense of $2.7 million and depreciation and amortization of $0.5 million.

        Net cash provided by investing activities was $29.8 million for 2007 and was primarily attributable to $32.3 million of net proceeds from sales and
purchases of marketable securities, partially offset by $1.0 million of expenditures for property and equipment and $1.5 million for the purchase of intangible and
other assets from Atmel and LDIC in the third quarter of 2007.

        Net cash provided by investing activities was $3.7 million for 2006, from sales of marketable securities of $3.9 million, partially offset by $0.2 million of
purchases of property and equipment.

        Net cash used in financing activities for 2007 was $2.1 million and was primarily attributable to $5.0 million of cash expenditures during the third and
fourth quarters of 2007 to repurchase approximately 883,000 shares of our own common stock under a plan authorized by our Board of Directors in August 2007,
partially offset by proceeds of $2.9 million from stock option exercises.

        Net cash provided by financing activities for 2006 was $3.8 million, which was attributable to proceeds received from the exercise of employee stock
options.

        Our future liquidity and capital requirements are expected to vary from quarter to quarter, depending on numerous factors, including:

•
level and timing of licensing and royalty revenues;

•
cost, timing and success of technology development efforts, including meeting customer design specifications;

•
market acceptance of our existing and future technologies and products;

•
competing technological and market developments;

•
cost of maintaining and enforcing patent claims and intellectual property rights;

•
variations in manufacturing yields, materials costs and other manufacturing risks;

•
costs of acquiring other businesses and integrating the acquired operations; and

•
profitability of our business.

        We expect that our existing cash, cash equivalents, and investments along with our existing capital and cash generated from operations, if any, will be
sufficient to meet our capital requirements for the
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foreseeable future. We expect that a licensing business such as ours generally will require less cash to support operations.

        However, we cannot be certain that we will not require additional financing at some point in time. Should our cash resources prove inadequate, we may
need to raise additional funding through public or private financing. There can be no assurance that such additional funding will be available to us on favorable
terms, if at all. The failure to raise capital when needed could have a material, adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

        The impact that our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007 are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods is as follows:

  

Payment Due by Period

  

Total

 

Less than 1 year

 

1-3 years

 

Over 4 years

Operating Leases:             
 Obligations  $ 1,542 $ 825 $ 717 $ —
 Sublease Income   (35)  (35)  —  —
Purchase Commitment   1,704  620  1,084  —
     
  $ 3,211 $ 1,410 $ 1,801 $ —
     

        The purchase commitment relates to a three-year license agreement for computer-aided design tools payable in installments through December 2010.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

        We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements, or obligations that are reasonably likely to have a material current or future effect on our financial
condition, results of operations, liquidity or capital resources.

Indemnifications

        In the ordinary course of business, we enter into contractual arrangements under which we may agree to indemnify the counter-party from losses relating to
a breach of representations and warranties, a failure to perform certain covenants, or claims and losses arising from certain external events as outlined within the
particular contract, which may include, for example, losses arising from litigation or claims relating to past performance. Such indemnification clauses may not
be subject to maximum loss clauses. We have also entered into indemnification agreements with our officers and directors. No amounts are reflected in our
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2007 or 2006 related to these indemnifications.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

        See Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for a full description of recent accounting pronouncements including the respective expected dates of
adoption and effects on results of operations and financial condition.

Item 7A.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest rate risk

        Our exposure to interest rate risk relates to our investment portfolio. Our investments are made in accordance with an investment policy approved by our
board of directors. The primary objective of our
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investment activities is to preserve capital while maximizing yields without significantly increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we maintain our portfolio of
cash equivalents and short-term and long-term investments in a variety of securities, including U.S. government agencies, municipal notes, corporate notes and
bonds, commercial paper and money market funds. In general, money market funds are not subject to market risk because the interest paid on such funds
fluctuates with the prevailing interest rate. We do not use interest rate swaps in our investment portfolio. We place our investments with high-credit quality
issuers and, by policy, limit the amount of credit exposure with any one issuer or fund.

        Our investment portfolio is classified as available-for-sale and is recorded at amortized cost. Securities with an original maturity of three months or less are
considered cash equivalents. Investments with original maturities greater than three months and remaining maturities less than one year are classified as
short-term investments. Investments with remaining maturities greater than one year are classified as long-term investments. Auction rate debt securities are
classified as short-term investments because they have fixed reset dates within one year designed to allow investors to exit these investments at par even though
the underlying municipal note may have an original maturity as much as 40 years. All investments have a maturity of less than two years. No single security
should exceed 5% of the portfolio at the time of purchase. We do not have any investments denominated in foreign country currencies, and therefore are not
subject to foreign currency risk on such investments.

        As of December 31, 2007, we held $11.6 million of municipal notes investments, classified as short-term investments, with an auction reset feature
(adjustable rate securities) whose underlying assets were primarily in student loans and which had an AAA credit rating. During January 2008, we successfully
liquidated $2.4 million of these adjustable rate securities and, as of February 29, 2008, we held $9.2 million of adjustable rate securities. Subsequently, auctions
failed for all of these adjustable rate securities. An auction failure means that the parties wishing to sell their securities could not do so as a result of a lack of
buying demand. As a result of auction failures, our ability to liquidate and fully recover the carrying value of our remaining adjustable rate securities in the near
term may be limited or not exist. These developments may result in the classification of some or all of these securities as long-term investments in our
consolidated financial statements for the first quarter of 2008. If the issuers are unable to successfully close future auctions and their credit ratings deteriorate, we
may in the future be required to record an impairment charge on these investments.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

        Currently, all of our international sales are denominated in U.S. dollars and, as a result, we have not experienced significant foreign exchange gains or losses
to date. We do not currently enter into forward exchange contracts to hedge exposures denominated in foreign currencies or any other derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. However, in the event our exposure to foreign currency risk increases, we may choose to hedge those exposures.
For most currencies, we are a net payer of foreign currencies and, therefore, benefit from a stronger U.S. dollar and are adversely affected by a weaker U.S.
dollar relative to those foreign currencies.

Item 8.    Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

        Reference is made to the financial statements listed under the heading (a) (1) Financial Statements and Reports of Burr, Pilger & Mayer LLP and BDO
Seidman, LLP of Item 15, which financial statements are incorporated by reference in response to this Item 8.
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Quarterly Results of Operations

        The following tables set forth unaudited results of operations data for each of the eight quarters in the two year period ended December 31, 2007. This
unaudited information has been prepared on a basis consistent with our audited financial statements appearing elsewhere in this report and, in the opinion of our
management, includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the information for the periods
presented. The unaudited quarterly information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes included elsewhere in this report.

  

Dec. 31, 2007

 

Sep. 30, 2007

 

Jun. 30, 2007

 

Mar. 31, 2007

 

Dec. 31, 2006

 

Sep. 30, 2006

 

Jun. 30, 2006

 

Mar. 31, 2006

 

  

(In thousands, except per share data)

 

  

(Unaudited—All periods)

 
Net revenue:                          
 Licensing  $ 388 $ 1,548 $ 2,159 $ 1,158 $ 1,794 $ 3,333 $ 1,701 $ 2,268 
 Royalty   2,511  2,421  2,170  1,979  3,215  705  639  1,254 
          
  Total net revenue   2,899  3,969  4,329  3,137  5,009  4,038  2,340  3,522 
Cost of net revenue:                          
 Licensing   825  670  678  564  592  172  381  353 
          
  Total cost of net revenue   825  670  678  564  592  172  381  353 
Gross profit   2,074  3,299  3,651  2,573  4,417  3,866  1,959  3,169 
Operating expenses:                          
 Research and development   4,371  3,438  2,101  2,078  2,057  2,018  2,129  1,952 

 

Selling, general and
administrative   3,309  2,945  2,825  2,580  2,585  3,350  2,806  2,629 

 

In-process research and
development   —  966  —  —  —  —  —  — 

 Litigation settlement   —  —  —  —  —  2,400  —  — 
          
  Total operating expenses   7,680  7,349  4,926  4,658  4,642  7,768  4,935  4,581 
Operating loss   (5,606)  (4,050)  (1,275)  (2,085)  (225)  (3,902)  (2,976)  (1,412)
Interest, other income and expenses   1,015  1,209  1,232  1,064  865  1,043  926  452 
          
Income (loss) before income taxes   (4,591)  (2,841)  (43)  (1,021)  640  (2,859)  (2,050)  (960)
Income tax benefit (provision)   8  18  (103)  52  (73)  (8)  (14)  (14)
          
Net income (loss)  $ (4,583) $ (2,823) $ (146) $ (969) $ 567 $ (2,867) $ (2,064) $ (974)
          
Net income (loss) per share:                          
 Basic  $ (0.14) $ (0.09) $ (0.00) $ (0.03) $ 0.02 $ (0.09) $ (0.07) $ (0.03)
 Diluted  $ (0.14) $ (0.09) $ (0.00) $ (0.03) $ 0.02 $ (0.09) $ (0.07) $ (0.03)
Shares used in computing net income
(loss) per share:                          
 Basic   32,117  32,274  31,945  31,689  31,492  31,386  31,293  31,022 
 Diluted   32,117  32,274  31,945  31,689  32,461  31,386  31,293  31,022 

Item 9.    Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

        None.
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Item 9A.    Controls and Procedures

(a)
Management's annual report on internal control over financial reporting

        MoSys, Inc.'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and management necessarily is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible controls. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in

Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on the
evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

        Burr, Pilger & Mayer LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the 2007 consolidated financial statements included in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued an attestation report on our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, as stated
in their report which is included under Item 15, below.

(b)
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

        Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on this evaluation, our management concluded that as of December 31, 2007, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective such that the information relating to us, including our consolidated subsidiaries, required to be
disclosed in our reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in SEC rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to our management including our Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(c)
Changes in internal control

        There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth fiscal quarter of 2007 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.    Other Information

        None.
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Part III

Item 10.    Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

        Information regarding our directors will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about
June 3, 2008, which information is incorporated into this report by reference. However, certain information regarding current executive officers found under the
heading "Executive Officers" in Item 1 of Part I hereof is also incorporated by reference in response to this Item 10.

        We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of our employees. The code of ethics is designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote, among other
things, honest and ethical conduct, full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosures in reports and documents submitted to the SEC and other public
communications, compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations, the prompt internal reporting of violations of the code to an appropriate
person or persons identified in the code and accountability for adherence to such code.

        The code of ethics is available on our websitewww.mosys.com. If we make any substantive amendments to the code of ethics or grant any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, from a provision of the code to our Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer, or persons performing similar functions, where such
amendment or waiver is required to be disclosed under applicable SEC rules, we intend to disclose the nature of such amendment or waiver on our website.

Item 11.    Executive Compensation

        Information relating to executive compensation will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held
on or about June 3, 2008, which information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 12.    Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

        Information relating to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about June 3, 2008, which information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 13.    Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

        Information required to be provided in response to this item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on or about June 3, 2008, which information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 14.    Principal Accountant Fees and Services

        Information required to be provided in response to this item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on or about June 3, 2008, which information is incorporated into this report by reference.
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Part IV

Item 15.    Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)
The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1)
Financial Statements and Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms, which are set forth in the index to Consolidated
Financial Statements on pages 46 through 78 of this report.

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—Burr, Pilger & Mayer LLP  47
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—BDO Seidman, LLP  49
Consolidated Balance Sheets  50
Consolidated Statements of Operations  51
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity  52
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  53
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  54

(2)
Financial Statement Schedule—Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(3)
Exhibits

2.1(1)  Merger Agreement regarding the Registrant's reincorporation in Delaware
2.2(2)  Share Purchase Agreement for the shares of ATMOS Corporation
3.1  Not currently in use
3.2  Not currently in use
3.3(1)  Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant
3.3.1  Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation
3.4(1)  Bylaws of the Registrant
3.4.1(3)  Amendment to Bylaws effective December 20, 2007
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4.3.1(4)  First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2004
4.3.2(5)  Second Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of December 14, 2004
10.1(1)  Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Registrant and each of its directors and executive officers
10.2(1)  Not currently in use
10.3(1)*  1996 Stock Plan and form of Option Agreement thereunder
10.4(1)*  Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement
10.5(1)*  2000 Employee Stock Option Plan and form of Option Agreement thereunder
10.5.1(6)*  Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive and Stock Option Plan
10.6(1)*  2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and form of Subscription Agreement thereunder
10.13*  Employment Agreement and Release between Registrant and Chester J. Silvestri dated November 8, 2007
10.14  Not currently in use
10.15(7)*  Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option and Equity

Incentive Plan
10.16(8)  Lease Agreement between Registrant and Sunnyvale Mathilda Investors, LLC dated as of May 6, 2005
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10.19  Not currently in use
10.20  Not currently in use
10.21(9)*  Form of New Employee Inducement Grant Stock Option Agreement
10.22  Not currently in use
10.23  Not currently in use
10.24*  Employment offer letter agreement and Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate between Registrant and Leonard

Perham dated as of November 8, 2007
10.25*  New Employee Inducement Grant Stock Option Agreements between Registrant and Leonard Perham

dated as of November 8, 2007
10.26*  Employment offer letter agreement between the Registrant and James W. Sullivan dated January 18, 2008
10.27*  Change-in-control Agreement between Registrant and James W. Sullivan dated January 18, 2008
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24.1  Power of Attorney (see signature page)
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Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, originally filed August 4,
2000, declared effective June 27, 2001 (Commission file No. 333-43122).

(2)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to the Company's report on Form 8-K/A filed on November 13, 2002.

(3)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 21, 2007 (Commission File No. 000-32929).

(4)
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to Form 8-A/A filed by the Company on December 22, 2004 (Commission File No. 000-32929).

(5)
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 20, 2004 (Commission File No. 000-32929).

(6)
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No. 000-32929).

(7)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 10-Q filed by the Company on August 9, 2005 (Commission File No. 000-32925).

(8)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 10-K filed by the Company on March 16, 2006 (Commission File No. 000-32929).
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Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 10-Q filed by the Company on May 9, 2006 (Commission File No. 000-32929).

*
Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 14th day of March 2008.

  MOSYS, INC.

  By: /s/  LEONARD PERHAM      

Leonard Perham
President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

        KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Leonard Perham and James W.
Sullivan as his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and
all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agents full power and authority to do and perform each and
every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agents, or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

 

Title

 

Date

/s/  LEONARD PERHAM      

Leonard Perham
 

President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director  March 14, 2008

/s/  JAMES W. SULLIVAN      

James W. Sullivan
 

Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer  March 14, 2008

/s/  CARL E. BERG      

Carl E. Berg
 

Director  March 14, 2008

/s/  TOMMY ENG      

Tommy Eng
 

Director  March 14, 2008

/s/  CHI-PING HSU      

Chi-Ping Hsu
 

Director  March 14, 2008

/s/  JAMES D. KUPEC      

James D. Kupec
 

Director  March 14, 2008

/s/  CHENMING HU      

Chenming Hu
 

Director  March 14, 2008

45

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



MOSYS, INC.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—Burr, Pilger & Mayer LLP  47

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—BDO Seidman, LLP  49

Consolidated Balance Sheets  50

Consolidated Statements of Operations  51

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity  52

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  53

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  54

Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts  78

46

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of MoSys, Inc.

        We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of MoSys, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the year then ended. Our audit also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index
to this Annual Report on Form 10-K at Part IV Item 15(a)(2), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements and the
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule based on our audit.

        We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

        In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of MoSys, Inc. and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, as of and for the year ended December 31,
2007, when considered in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.

        As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2006 the Company changed its method of accounting for stock-based
compensation as a result of adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment" applying the modified
prospective method. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2007 the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards
Board Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement 109."

        We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 14, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effective operation of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Burr, Pilger & Mayer LLP

San Jose, California
March 14, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
MoSys, Inc.

        We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of MoSys, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting included in Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

        We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

        A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

        Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

        In our opinion, MoSys, Inc. and its subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on the COSO criteria.

        We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet
of MoSys, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the
year then ended and the related financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007, and our report dated March 14, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement schedule.

/s/ Burr, Pilger & Mayer LLP

San Jose, California
March 14, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
MoSys, Inc.
Sunnyvale, California

        We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MoSys, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006. We have also audited Schedule II—Valuation
and Qualifying Accounts for the two years ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

        We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

        In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of MoSys at
December 31, 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts presents fairly,
in all material respects, the information set forth therein for the two years ended December 31, 2006.

        As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment", (SFAS 123(R)).

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP

San Francisco, California
March 12, 2007
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MOSYS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share data)

  

December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 
ASSETS        
Current assets        
 Cash and cash equivalents  $ 37,673 $ 11,118 
 Short-term investments and auction rate securities   27,288  70,689 
 Accounts receivable, net   895  2,491 
 Unbilled contract receivables   518  360 
 Prepaid expenses and other assets   2,393  2,831 
    
  Total current assets   68,767  87,489 
Long-term investments   13,693  2,492 
Property and equipment, net   1,396  855 
Goodwill   12,326  12,326 
Intangible assets, net   2,166  — 
Other assets   449  598 
    
  Total assets  $ 98,797 $ 103,760 
    

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY        
Current liabilities        
 Accounts payable  $ 146 $ 307 
 Accrued expenses and other liabilities   2,158  1,865 
 Deferred revenue   201  619 
    
  Total current liabilities   2,505  2,791 
Long-term portion of restructuring liability   —  54 
    
  Total liabilities   2,505  2,845 
    
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)        
Stockholders' equity        

 

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 20,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007
and 2006   —  — 

 

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 120,000 shares authorized; 31,889 shares and 31,638 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006   319  316 

 Additional paid-in capital   110,631  106,850 
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)   35  (79)
 Accumulated deficit   (14,693)  (6,172)
    
  Total stockholders' equity   96,292  100,915 
    
  Total liabilities and stockholders' equity  $ 98,797 $ 103,760 
    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
Net revenue           
 Licensing  $ 5,253 $ 9,096 $ 7,725 
 Royalty   9,081  5,813  4,547 
 Product   —  —  10 
     
  Total net revenue   14,334  14,909  12,282 

Cost of net revenue           
 Licensing   2,737  1,498  1,986 
     
  Total cost of net revenue   2,737  1,498  1,986 

Gross profit   11,597  13,411  10,296 

Operating expenses           
 Research and development   11,988  8,156  5,839 
 Selling, general and administrative   11,659  11,370  9,922 
 In-process research and development   966  —  — 
 Litigation settlement   —  2,400  — 
 Restructuring expenses   —  —  119 
     
  Total operating expenses   24,613  21,926  15,880 

Loss from operations   (13,016)  (8,515)  (5,584)
Interest, other income and expenses   4,520  3,286  2,591 
     
Loss before income taxes   (8,496)  (5,229)  (2,993)
Income tax benefit (provision)   (25)  (109)  11 
     
Net loss  $ (8,521) $ (5,338) $ (2,982)
     

Net loss per share           
 Basic and diluted  $ (0.27) $ (0.17) $ (0.10)
Shares used in computing net loss per share           
 Basic and diluted   31,994  31,298  30,534 

Allocation of stock-based compensation to cost of net revenue and operating expenses included
above:           
 Cost of licensing revenue  $ 495 $ 225 $ — 
 Research and development   1,162  993  — 
 Selling, general and administrative   2,109  1,528  36 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands)

 

 

Common Stock     

 

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

 

Retained
Earnings

(Accumulated
Deficit)

   
 

 

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

 

Deferred
Stock-based

Compensation

   

  

Shares

 

Amount

 

Total

 

Balance at December 31, 2004  30,296 $ 303 $ 98,278 $ (69) $ (252) $ 2,148 $ 100,408 
Issuance of Common Stock upon
exercise of options  406  4  1,205  —  —  —  1,209 
Issuance of Common Stock for
Employee Stock Purchase Plan  66  1  315  —  —  —  316 
Stock-based compensation  —  —  —  36  —  —  36 
Tax benefits associated with
exercise of stock options  —  —  482  —  —  —  482 
Other comprehensive
income—change in unrealized loss
on available-for-sale investments  —  —  —  —  (137)  —  (137)
Net loss  —  —  —  —  —  (2,982)  (2,982)
                    

Comprehensive loss                    (3,119)
         

Balance at December 31, 2005  30,768  308  100,280  (33)  (389)  (834)  99,332 
Issuance of Common Stock upon
exercise of options  752  8  3,640  —  —  —  3,648 
Issuance of Common Stock for
Restricted Stock Awards  74  —  —  —  —  —    
Issuance of Common Stock for
Employee Stock Purchase Plan  44  —  184  —  —  —  184 
Stock-based compensation  —  —  2,746  33  —  —  2,779 
Other comprehensive
income—change in unrealized gain
on available-for-sale investments  —  —  —  —  310  —  310 
Net loss  —  —  —  —  —  (5,338)  (5,338)
                    

Comprehensive loss                    (5,028)
         

Balance at December 31, 2006  31,638  316  106,850  —  (79)  (6,172)  100,915 
Issuance of Common Stock upon
exercise of options  639  6  2,919  —  —  —  2,925 
Repurchase of Restricted Common
Stock  (5)  —  (35)  —  —  —  (35)
Repurchase of Common Stock  (883)  (8)  (5,015)  —  —  —  (5,023)
Issuance of Common Stock in
connection with asset purchase  500  5  2,118  —  —  —  2,123 
Stock-based compensation  —  —  3,794  —  —  —  3,794 
Other comprehensive
income—change in unrealized gain
on available-for-sale investments  —  —  —  —  114  —  114 
Net loss  —  —  —  —  —  (8,521)  (8,521)
                    

Comprehensive loss                    (8,407)
         

Balance at December 31, 2007  31,889 $ 319 $ 110,631 $ — $ 35 $ (14,693) $ 96,292 
         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
Cash flows from operating activities:           
 Net loss  $ (8,521) $ (5,338) $ (2,982)
 Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:           
  Provision for doubtful accounts   225  —  105 
  Depreciation and amortization   630  474  614 
  Amortization of intangible assets   394  —  — 
  In-process research and development   966  —  — 
  Stock-based compensation   3,766  2,746  36 
 Changes in assets and liabilities, net of assets acquired:           
  Accounts receivable   1,371  (1,853)  382 
  Unbilled contracts receivable   (158)  8  (311)
  Prepaid expenses and other assets   650  (201)  283 
  Deferred revenue   (418)  (690)  808 
  Accounts payable   (161)  71  116 
  Accrued expenses and other liabilities   157  (841)  (793)
  Tax benefits associated with exercise of stock options   —  —  482 
     
   Net cash used in operating activities   (1,099)  (5,624)  (1,260)

Cash flows from investing activities:           
 Purchase of property and equipment   (988)  (208)  (1,051)
 Purchase of intangible and other assets   (1,539)  —  — 
 Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities   248,595  170,041  225,879 
 Purchase of marketable securities   (216,281)  (166,094)  (247,636)
     
   Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities   29,787  3,739  (22,808)

Cash flows from financing activities:           
 Proceeds from issuance of common stock   2,925  3,832  1,525 
 Repurchase of common stock   (5,058)  —  — 
     
   Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   (2,133)  3,832  1,525 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   26,555  1,947  (22,543)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   11,118  9,171  31,714 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 37,673 $ 11,118 $ 9,171 
     

Supplemental disclosure:           
 Cash paid for income taxes  $ 59 $ 42 $ 29 
 Transaction fees paid for repurchase of common stock  $ 44 $ — $ — 
 Stock issued for purchase of intangible assets  $ 2,123 $ — $ — 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company

        MoSys, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in California in September 1991, and reincorporated in September 2000 in Delaware. The Company designs,
develops, markets and licenses high performance semiconductor memory and analog/mixed-signal intellectual property (IP) used by the semiconductor industry,
communications, networking and storage equipment manufacturers.

        From its inception in 1991 through 1998, the Company focused primarily on the sale of stand-alone memory products. In the fourth quarter of 1998, the
Company changed the emphasis of its business model to focus primarily on the licensing of its 1T-SRAM technologies and completed this transition in 2004
when the Company notified its customers of its decision to discontinue sales of its memory chip products and only license its technology.

Basis of Presentation

        The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances
have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company reports financial results on a calendar fiscal year. Certain amounts reported in previous years have been
reclassified to conform with the 2007 presentation. The impact of these reclassifications had no effect on previously reported total revenue, net loss, total assets
or stockholders' equity.

Use of Estimates

        The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues under the percentage of completion method and expenses during the reported period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Foreign Currency

        The Company has foreign offices located in Korea, Japan, Romania and China, which are operated as branches or subsidiaries of the Company. The
functional currency of the Company's foreign entities is the U.S. dollar. Accordingly, the financial statements of these entities are translated into U.S. dollars in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 52, "Foreign Currency Translation." Exchange gains or losses from foreign currency
transactions are included in the consolidated statement of operations and were not material for any period presented.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

        The carrying value of the Company's financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued
liabilities, approximates fair market value due to the relatively short period of time to maturity. The fair value of investments is determined using quoted market
prices for those securities or similar financial instruments.

Cash Equivalents and Investments

        The Company accounts for investments in accordance with SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities."
Management determines the appropriate classification of
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securities at the time of purchase. All securities are classified as available-for-sale. The Company's short-term and long-term investments are carried at fair value,
based on quoted market prices, with the unrealized holding gains and losses reported in stockholders' equity. The Company evaluates declines in market value for
potential impairment if the decline results in a value below cost and is determined to be other than temporary. Realized gains and losses and declines in the value
judged to be other than temporary are included in other income and expenses. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method.

        The Company invests its excess cash in money market accounts, auction rate securities, corporate debt, commercial paper and government agency debt
securities and considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Investments with
original maturities greater than three months and remaining maturities less than one year are classified as short-term investments. Investments with remaining
maturities greater than one year are classified as long-term investments. Auction rate debt securities are classified as short-term investments because they have
fixed reset dates within one year designed to allow investors to exit these instruments at par even though the underlying municipal note may have an original
maturity of as much as 40 years. The Company's auction rate securities are classified as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value which approximates cost.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

        The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts to ensure that its trade receivables balances are not overstated due to uncollectibility. The
Company performs ongoing customer credit evaluations within the context of the industry in which it operates. A specific allowance of up to 100% of the invoice
value will be provided for any problematic customer balances. Delinquent account balances are written off after management has determined that the likelihood
of collection is remote. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers' financial condition and generally does not require collateral from its
customers. The Company grants credit only to customers deemed credit worthy in the judgment of management. The Company maintains an allowance for
uncollectible accounts receivable based upon the expected collectibility of all accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable was
$225,000 and $0 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Amounts written off in 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $0, $65,000 and $0, respectively.

Unbilled Contract Receivables

        Under the percentage of completion method, if the amount of revenue recognized exceeds the amount of billings to a customer, the excess amount is carried
as an unbilled contract receivable.

Property and Equipment

        Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally
three to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful life or the lease term.

Valuation of Long-lived Assets

        The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets with finite lives in accordance with SFAS No. 144 (SFAS 144), "Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets." Finite-lived intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of three to five
years. SFAS 144 requires recognition of impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. An impairment charge is recognized as the difference between the net book value of such assets and the future undiscounted cash
flows attributable to such assets.
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Purchased Intangible Assets

        Intangible assets acquired by direct purchase are accounted for based on the fair value of assets received. Identifiable intangible assets are primarily
comprised of developed technology, patent rights and workforce. Purchased intangibles with finite lives are generally amortized on a straight-line basis, which
typically approximates the economic benefit of the intangible assets, over the respective estimated useful lives of up to five years.

Goodwill

        The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not
be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 142 (SFAS 142), "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." The provisions of SFAS 142 require that a two-step
impairment test be performed on goodwill. In the first step, the Company compares the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value. For step one, the
Company determines the fair value of its reporting unit using the market approach. Under the market approach, the Company estimates the fair value based on
the market value of the reporting unit at the entity level. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of net assets to the reporting unit,
goodwill is not impaired and the Company is not required to perform further testing. If the carrying value of the net assets to the reporting unit exceeds the fair
value of the reporting unit, then the Company must perform the second step in order to determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill and
compare it to the carrying value of the reporting unit's goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then the
Company must record an impairment loss equal to the difference. The Company performs its annual impairment test during the third quarter of each year and any
potential impairment indicators are noted. The Company performed the annual impairment test during the third quarter of 2007, and the test did not indicate
impairment of goodwill as of September 30, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had not identified any indicators of potential impairment.

Revenue Recognition

General

        The Company generates revenue from the licensing of its intellectual property, or IP, and customers pay fees for licensing, non-recurring engineering
services, royalties and maintenance and support. During 2004, the Company phased out sales of its proprietary memory chips and completed its final shipment of
such products in early 2005. The Company applies the principles of Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104,
"Revenue Recognition," and recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or performance has occurred, the sales price is
fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Evidence of an arrangement generally consists of agreements. When sales arrangements contain
multiple elements (e.g., license and services), the Company applies the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) Issue No. 00-21, (EITF 00-21), "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables," to determine the separate units of accounting that exist within the
agreement. If more than one unit of accounting exists, the agreement consideration payable to us is allocated to each unit of accounting using either the relative
fair value method or the residual fair value method as prescribed by EITF 00-21. Revenue is recognized for each unit of accounting when the revenue recognition
criteria of SAB No. 104 have been met for that unit of accounting.

Licensing

        Licensing revenue consists of fees earned from license agreements, development services and support and maintenance. For license agreements that do not
require significant development,
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modification or customization, revenues are generally recognized when the criteria of SAB No. 104 have been met. If any of these criteria are not met, revenues
are deferred until such time as all criteria have been met

        For license agreements which include deliverables that require significant production, modification or customization, the Company applies American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 81-1 (SOP 81-1), "Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain
Production-Type Contracts." When the Company has significant experience in meeting the design specification involved in the contract and the direct labor hours
related to services under the contract can be reasonably estimated, the Company recognizes revenue over the period in which the contract services are performed.
For these arrangements, the Company recognizes revenue using the percentage of completion method. The percentage of completion method includes judgmental
elements, such as determining that the Company has the experience to meet the design specifications and estimation of the total direct labor hours. The Company
follows this method because it can obtain reasonably dependable estimates of the direct labor hours to perform the contract services. The direct labor hours for
the development of the licensee's design are estimated at the beginning of the contract. As these direct labor hours are incurred, they are used as a measure of
progress towards completion. The Company has the ability to reasonably estimate the direct labor hours on a contract-by-contract basis based on its experience in
developing prior licensees' designs. During the contract performance period, the Company reviews estimates of direct labor hours to complete the contracts as the
contract progresses to completion and will revise its estimates of revenue and gross profit under the contract if the Company revises the estimations of the direct
labor hours to complete. The Company's policy is to reflect any revision in the contract gross profit estimate in reported income in the period in which the facts
giving rise to the revision become known. Under the percentage of completion method, provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are recorded in
the period in which the likelihood of such losses is determined. Revenue recognized in any period is dependent on the Company's progress toward completion of
projects in progress. Significant management judgment and discretion are used to estimate total direct labor hours. Any changes in or deviation from these
estimates could have a material effect on the amount of revenue the Company recognizes in any period. If the amount of revenue recognized under the
percentage of completion accounting method exceeds the amount of billings to a customer, then the excess amount is recorded as an unbilled contract receivable.
Our total unbilled contract receivable was $518,000 and $360,000 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. If inherent risks make estimates doubtful, the
contract is accounted for under the completed contract method.

        For contracts involving design specifications that the Company has not previously met, the Company defers the recognition of all revenue until the design
meets the contractual design specifications and expenses the cost of revenue as incurred. When the Company has experience in meeting design specifications but
does not have significant experience to reasonably estimate the direct labor hours related to services to meet a design specification, the Company defers both the
recognition of revenue and the cost. For these arrangements, the Company recognizes revenue using the completed contract method. The Company recognized
$128,000 of revenue under the completed contract method in 2007. In 2006 and 2005, no revenue was recognized under the completed contract method.

        The Company provides support and maintenance under many of its license agreements. Under these arrangements, the Company provides unspecified
upgrades, design rule changes and technical support. No other upgrades, products or other post-contract support are provided. Support and maintenance revenue
is recognized at its fair value established by objective evidence, ratably over the period during which the obligation exists, typically 12 months. These
arrangements are renewable annually by the customer. Revenue from support and maintenance was $484,000, $287,000 and $512,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, and was included in licensing revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.
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        From time to time, a licensee may cancel a project during the development phase. Such a cancellation is not within the Company's control and is often
caused by changes in market conditions or the licensee's business. Cancellations of this nature are an aspect of the Company's licensing business, and, in general,
license contracts allow the Company to retain all payments that the Company has received or is entitled to collect for items and services provided before the
cancellation occurs. Typically under the Company's license agreements, the licensee is obligated to complete the project within a stated timeframe, including
assisting the Company in completing the final milestone, and if the Company performs the contracted services, is obligated to pay the license fees even if the
licensee fails to complete verification or cancels the project prior to completion. For accounting purposes the Company will consider a project to have been
canceled even in the absence of specific notice from its licensee, if there has been no activity under the contract for six months or longer, and the Company
believes that completion of the contract is unlikely. In this event, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount of cash received, if the Company has performed
a sufficient portion of the development services. If a cancelled contract had been entered into before the establishment of technological feasibility, the costs
associated with the contract would have been expensed prior to the recognition of revenue. In that case, there would be no costs associated with that revenue
recognition, and gross margin would increase for the corresponding period. License revenue from cancelled contracts was $0, $225,000 and $240,000 for 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Royalty

        Licensing contracts also provide for royalty reporting and payments at a stated rate based on actual units manufactured or sold by licensees for products that
include the Company's technologies after the end of the quarter in which the sale or manufacture occurs. The Company generally recognizes royalties in the
quarter in which the Company receives the licensee's report. However, due to a contract amendment with one customer in the fourth quarter of 2006, the
Company started to recognize royalty revenue in the same quarter in which the units are sold by this customer based on royalty reports received from the
customer. As a result of this contract amendment, additional royalty revenue representing 30% of total revenue was recognized in the fourth quarter of 2006. In
addition, in the first quarter of 2006, the Company began recognizing revenue from two types of prepaid royalties: pre-production royalties, which cover a fixed
number of future unit shipments and are paid in a lump sum when the Company enters into the licensing contract, and post-production royalties, which are paid
in a lump sum after the licensee commences production of the royalty-bearing product and applied against future unit shipments. In either case, these prepaid
royalties are non-refundable. Revenue is recognized upon execution of the contract provided that no further performance obligations exist. The Company records
pre-production, prepaid royalties as license revenues and post-production, pre-paid royalties as royalty revenues.

Cost of Revenue

        Cost of licensing revenue consists primarily of engineering personnel and overhead allocation costs directly related to development services specified in
agreements. These services typically include customization of the Company's memory IP circuitry to enable embedding it on a licensee's integrated circuit and
may include engineering support to assist in the commencement of production of a licensee's products. The Company recognizes costs of licensing revenue in the
following manner:

•
If licensing revenue is recognized using the percentage of completion method, the associated cost of licensing revenue is recognized in the
period in which the Company incurs the engineering costs.

•
If licensing revenue is recognized using the completed contract method, and to the extent that the amount of engineering cost does not
exceed the amount of the related licensing revenue, this cost is deferred on a contract-by-contract basis from the time the Company has
established
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technological feasibility of the product to be developed under the license. Technological feasibility is established when the Company has
completed all activities necessary to demonstrate that the licensee's product can be produced to meet the performance specifications when
incorporating its technology. Deferred costs are charged to cost of licensing revenue when the related revenue is recognized.

•
For contracts entered into prior to establishing technological feasibility, the Company does not defer related development costs, but rather
expenses them in the period in which they are incurred. Consequently, upon completion of these contracts, the Company recognizes the
related revenues without any corresponding costs.

        In addition, cost of licensing revenue includes costs related to support and maintenance services.

Research and Development

        Engineering cost is generally recorded as research and development expense in the period incurred and they include costs incurred with respect to internally
developed technology and engineering services, as they are not directly related to a particular licensee, license agreement or license fees.

Stock-Based Compensation

        Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation arrangements in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25 (APB 25), "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and complied with the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123 (SFAS 123),
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation."

        Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) (SFAS 123(R)), "Share-Based Payment," which establishes accounting for
recognizing the fair value of stock-based payment awards. Accordingly, the expense of these awards is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period, usually the vesting period, based on the grant-date fair value.

        The Company elected to adopt the modified prospective transition method as provided by SFAS 123(R). This method requires the Company to apply the
provision of SFAS 123(R) to all stock-based payment awards after the adoption date. In accordance with the method, the Company's consolidated financial
statements for periods prior to 2006 have not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123(R).

Per Share Amounts

        Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss for the period by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
period. Potential common shares are composed of incremental shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or restricted stock awards. For
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, stock options to purchase 5.4 million, 5.7 million, and 6.5 million shares, respectively, were excluded from
computation of diluted net loss per share as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. The following table sets forth the
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computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the periods indicated (in thousands, except per share amounts):

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
Numerator:           
 Net loss  $ (8,521) $ (5,338) $ (2,982)
Denominator:           
 Shares used in computing net loss per share:           
  Add: weighted-average common shares outstanding   32,101  31,364  30,534 
  Less: unvested common shares subject to repurchase   (107)  (66)  — 
     
 Basic and diluted   31,994  31,298  30,534 
Net loss per share:           
 Basic and diluted  $ (0.27) $ (0.17) $ (0.10)

Options Issued to Non-Employees

        The Company accounts for stock options or warrants granted to non-employees, excluding non-employee directors, under EITF No. 96-18, "Accounting for
Equity Instruments with Variable Terms that are Issued for Consideration Other Than Employee Services under SFAS 123." The Company records the expense
of such services based upon the estimated fair value of the equity instrument using the Black-Scholes pricing model. Assumptions used to value the equity
instruments are consistent with equity instruments issued to employees. The Company charges the value of the equity instrument to earnings over the term of the
service agreement. There were no stock option grants to non-employees, excluding non-employee directors in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005. However, $0.1 million was recognized as expense in 2007 due to the conversion of an employee into a consultant in May 2007.

Income Taxes

        The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method as prescribed by SFAS No. 109 (SFAS 109), "Accounting for Income Taxes."
Under the asset and liability method, the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities are
recognized as deferred tax assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is established for any deferred tax assets for which realization is more likely than not that
all or a portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

        On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of SFAS 109," as issued by the FASB. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, and provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company recognized no adjustment to the January 1,
2007 accumulated deficit balance. The Company believes that any income tax filing positions and deductions not sustained on audit will not result in a material
change to its financial position or results of operations. Therefore, adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated results of
operations and financial condition for the year ended December 31, 2007.

        The Company files U.S. federal and state and foreign income tax returns in jurisdictions with varying statutes of limitations. The Company is not currently
under examination by income tax
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authorities in federal, state or other foreign jurisdictions. The 2003 through 2007 tax years generally remain subject to examination by federal, state, and foreign
tax authorities.

        As of December 31, 2007, the Company does not have any unrecognized tax benefits and does not expect its unrecognized tax benefits to change
significantly over the next 12 months. The Company recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in its income tax expense and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits as other income and expenses. During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company did not recognize any interest
or penalties.

Comprehensive Loss

        Comprehensive loss, as defined, includes all changes in equity (net assets) during a period from non-owner sources. The difference between net loss and
comprehensive loss is due to unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as available-for-sale. Comprehensive loss is reflected in the consolidated
statements of stockholders' equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

        In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (SFAS 157), "Fair Value Measurement." SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact SFAS 157 will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

        In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 (SFAS 159), "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115." SFAS 159 permits companies to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified
election dates. Unrealized gains and losses on these items will be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value option may be applied
instrument by instrument (with a few exceptions), is irrevocable and is applied only to entire instruments and not to portions of instruments. SFAS 159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently assessing the impact of SFAS 159 on its consolidated financial
statements.

        In June 2007, the FASB ratified EITF No. 07-3 (EITF 07-3), "Accounting for Nonrefundable Advance Payments for Goods or Services to Be Used in
Future Research and Development Activities." EITF 07-3 requires non-refundable advance payments for goods and services to be used in future research and
development activities to be recorded as an asset and the payments to be expensed when the research and development activities are performed. EITF 07-3
applies prospectively for new contractual arrangements entered into beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008. The Company has accounted for such
payments consistent with EITF 07-3, therefore adoption of EITF 07-3 is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements.

        In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (SFAS 141(R)), "Business Combinations." SFAS 141(R) significantly changes the
accounting for business combinations in a number of areas including the treatment of contingent consideration, acquired contingencies, transaction costs,
in-process research and development and restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS 141(R), changes in an acquired entity's deferred tax assets and uncertain
tax positions after the measurement period will impact income tax expense. SFAS 141(R) applies prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is prohibited. The
Company will adopt this pronouncement in the first quarter of fiscal year 2009, and is currently evaluating the impact SFAS 141(R) will have on its consolidated
financial statements.
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         In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 (SFAS 160), "Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements, an Amendment of ARB
No. 51," which establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary, changes in a parent's ownership interest in a
subsidiary and the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is prohibited.
The Company will adopt this pronouncement in the first quarter of fiscal year 2009 and does not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 will have a material impact on
its consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

Note 2: Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Operations Components

  

December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

  

(in thousands)

 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets:        
 Deferred costs of revenue  $ 32 $ 73 
 Tax receivable   1,131  210 
 Deferred tax assets   —  1,316 
 Prepaid expenses and other assets   1,230  1,232 
    
  $ 2,393 $ 2,831 
    
Property and equipment:        
Equipment, furniture and fixtures, leasehold improvements  $ 2,014 $ 1,468 
Acquired software   1,560  935 
    
   3,574  2,403 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization   (2,178)  (1,548)
    
  $ 1,396 $ 855 
    
Accrued expenses and other liabilities:        
 Accrued wages and employee benefits  $ 931 $ 950 
 Deferred incentive from lessor   155  216 
 Professional fees   263  130 
 Deferred rent   67  67 
 Accrued restructuring liability   53  154 
 Income taxes payable   2  77 
 Other   687  271 
    
  $ 2,158 $ 1,865 
    

Interest, other income and expenses:

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

  

(in thousands)

 
Interest income  $ 4,496 $ 3,822 $ 2,608 
Other income (expense)   24  (536)  (17)
     
  $ 4,520 $ 3,286 $ 2,591 
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Note 3: Fair Value of Financial Instruments

        The estimated fair values of financial instruments outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

  

2007

  

Cost

 

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

 

Fair
Value

Cash  $ 37,673 $ — $ 37,673
    
Short-term investments and auction rate securities:          
 Corporate notes and commercial paper  $ 1,500 $ — $ 1,500
 US government debt securities   14,185  3  14,188
 Market auction rate securities   11,600  —  11,600
    
  Total short-term investments and auction rate securities  $ 27,285 $ 3 $ 27,288
    
Long-term investments:          
 Corporate notes  $ 9,454 $ 12 $ 9,466
 US government debt securities   4,207  20  4,227
    
  Total long-term investments  $ 13,661 $ 32 $ 13,693
    

 

  

2006

  

Cost

 

Gross
Unrealized

Losses

 

Fair
Value

Cash  $ 8,520 $ — $ 8,520
Cash equivalents:          
 Commercial paper   2,600  (2)  2,598
    
  Total cash and cash equivalents  $ 11,120 $ (2) $ 11,118
    
Short-term investments and auction rate securities:          
 Corporate notes  $ 24,892 $ (38) $ 24,854
 US government debt securities   22,166  (31)  22,135
 Market auction rate securities   23,700  —  23,700
    
  Total short-term investments and auction rate securities  $ 70,758 $ (69) $ 70,689
    
Long-term investments:          
 US government debt securities  $ 2,500 $ (8) $ 2,492
    
  Total long-term investments  $ 2,500 $ (8) $ 2,492
    

        Cost and fair value of commercial paper and investments based on three maturity groups at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

  

2007

  

Cost

 

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

 

Fair
Value

Due within 1 year  $ 15,685 $ 3 $ 15,688
Due in 1-2 years   13,661  32  13,693
Due in greater than 2 years   11,600  —  11,600
    
Total  $ 40,946 $ 35 $ 40,981
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2006

  

Cost

 

Gross
Unrealized

Losses

 

Fair
Value

Due within 1 year  $ 49,658 $ (71) $ 49,587
Due in 1-2 years   2,500  (8)  2,492
Due in greater than 2 years   23,700  —  23,700
    
Total  $ 75,858 $ (79) $ 75,779
    
        Securities with contractual maturities greater than 2 years are for municipal notes investments with an auction reset feature. While the contractual maturities
are long-term, the Company currently has the ability to liquidate these investments within the next twelve months, provided that there is a market for these
securities, and classifies these as short-term investments (see Note 12).

Note 4. Asset Acquisitions

        On July 2, 2007, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement and a transition services agreement with Atmel Corporation (Atmel) with respect to
the purchase of several analog/mixed-signal integrated circuit designs and related assets from Atmel, including the rights to acquire an Atmel subsidiary located
in Romania that employed 58 people and another Atmel subsidiary located in China that employed 45 people at the time of purchase. Under the agreement, the
Company made a cash payment of $1.0 million, assumed net liabilities of acquired subsidiaries, and agreed to reimburse certain pre-closing operating expenses
for a total purchase amount of $1.4 million.

        On August 8, 2007, the Company acquired intellectual property and other assets from LSI Design and Integration Corporation (LDIC) in a transaction
related to the Atmel acquisition. The Company acquired this technology and related assets in exchange for 500,000 shares of the Company's common stock with
a grant-date fair value of $7.07 per share. Of the 500,000 shares issued by the Company for the LDIC acquisition, $2.1 million (which represents the 300,000
shares valued at $7.07) has been recorded as intangible assets and the other 200,000 shares have been reserved for future distribution to employees and are
recognized as compensation expense over the vesting period (see Note 6). The Company recorded the fair value of the 300,000 shares as part of the asset
purchase consideration. In addition, the agreement calls for an earn-out payment equal to 25% of the license and royalty revenues generated by the Company
from the integrated circuit designs acquired from Atmel and LDIC that are recognized in the first 12 calendar months following the closing date. Any such
payments will be recorded as additional purchase consideration when earned.

        In accordance with SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations," and EITF No. 98-3, "Determining Whether a Nonmonetary Transaction Involves Receipt of
Productive Assets or of a Business," the Company has determined that the purchase of assets did not have the necessary outputs and infrastructure to meet the
definition of a business and therefore, was not accounted for as a business combination. Accordingly, no goodwill was recorded for these asset acquisitions. The
Company has evaluated the specified assets and, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other intangible Assets," has allocated the cost of the
acquisition to the individual assets based on their relative fair values. The Company is amortizing the amortizable identified intangible assets based on their
respective useful lives, ranging from three to five years.
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        The components of purchased intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

Developed technology  $ 1,559
In-process research and development   966
Patents   496
Assembled workforce   493
Business permits   12
  
 Total intangible assets acquired  $ 3,526
  

        In connection with the asset acquisitions, the Company recorded an expense of $1.0 million in 2007 for the write-off of acquired in-process technology. The
purchase price allocated to acquired in-process technology was determined through established valuation techniques. The acquired in-process technology was
immediately expensed because technological feasibility had not been established and no future alternative use existed. The write-off of acquired in-process
technology has been recorded as a separate line item in the consolidated statements of operations. Amortization expense in 2007 was $0.4 million and has been
included in research and development in the consolidated statements of operations. The estimated aggregate amortization expense to be recognized in future
years is approximately $0.8 million for 2008, $0.8 million for 2009, $0.4 million for 2010 and $0.1 million for 2011. As of December 31, 2007, purchased
intangible assets and their related accumulated amortization and estimated lives were as follows (in thousands):

  

Life (years)

 

Gross
Carrying
Amount

 

Accumulated
Amortization

 

Net
Carrying

Value

Developed technology  3 $ 1,559 $ 260 $ 1,299
Patents  5  496  50  446
Assembled workforce  3  493  82  411
Business permits  3  12  2  10
      
 Total    $ 2,560 $ 394 $ 2,166
      

Note 5: Income Taxes

        The (provision) benefit for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
Current portion:           
 State  $ (6) $ (6) $ 31 
 Foreign   (19)  (103)  (23)
     
   (25)  (109)  8 
     
Deferred:           
 U.S. federal   —  —  3 
     
   —  —  3 
     
  Total  $ (25) $ (109) $ 11 
     

        Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.

65

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



        Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows (in thousands):

  

December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):        
 Federal and state loss carryforwards  $ 4,603 $ 4,608 
 Reserves, accruals and other   451  462 
 Depreciation and amortization   490  (54)
 Acquired intangibles   (165)  — 
 Deferred stock-based compensation   1,369  686 
 Research and development credit carryforwards   4,015  1,758 
 Foreign tax credits   816  1,211 
 Canadian loss and research and development pool carryforwards   5,842  5,106 
    
   17,421  13,777 
Less: Valuation allowance   (17,421)  (12,461)
    
Net deferred tax assets  $ — $ 1,316 
    

        The valuation allowance increased by $5.0 million and $1.5 million during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The valuation
allowance at December 31, 2007 includes $1.9 million related to stock option deductions incurred prior to January 1, 2006, the benefit of which will be credited
to additional paid-in capital when realized.

        As of December 31, 2007, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $14.7 million for federal income tax purposes and
approximately $16.2 million for state income tax purposes. These losses are available to reduce taxable income and expire at various times from 2013 through
2027. Approximately $3.8 million of federal net operating loss carryforwards and $3.1 million of state net operating loss carryforwards from 2007 and 2006,
respectively, are related to excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation and will be charged to additional paid-in capital when utilized.

        The Company also had federal research and development tax credit carryforwards of approximately $2.8 million, which will expire beginning in 2008, and
California research and development credits of approximately $1.8 million, which do not have an expiration date. The Company had foreign tax credits available
for federal income tax purposes of approximately $816,000 which will begin to expire in 2009. The Company had Canadian operating loss and research and
development pool carryforwards of $14.8 million, which will begin to expire in 2008.

        Utilization of the Company's net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards may be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change
limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code and similar state provisions. Such an annual limitation could result in the expiration or elimination of the net
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards before utilization. Management does not believe it is likely that utilization will in fact be significantly limited due to
ownership change limitation provisions.

        In 2007, the Company favorably settled its U.S. income tax return examination for 2002 and thereby obtained a tax refund of approximately $635,000. In
conjunction with this settlement, the Company has filed a U.S. income tax refund claim to carry back its net operating losses to 2004 for approximately
$767,000. This refund claim was included in prepaid expenses and other assets as of December 31, 2007.
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         A reconciliation of income taxes provided at the federal statutory rate (35% in 2007, 2006 and 2005) to actual income tax expense follows (in thousands):

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
Income tax benefit computed at U.S. statutory rate  $ (2,973) $ (1,830) $ (1,048)
State income tax (net of federal benefit)   6  6  4 
Foreign income tax at rate different from U.S. statutory rate   35  168  47 
Research & development credits   (364)  (113)  (96)
Foreign tax credit   (26)  (433)  — 
Stock-based compensation   383  341  — 
Valuation allowance changes affecting tax provision   2,910  1,948  1,029 
Other   54  22  53 
     
Income tax provision (benefit)  $ 25 $ 109 $ (11)
     

        The domestic and foreign components of earnings before taxes were as follows (in thousands):

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
U.S.  $ (8,548) $ (5,158) $ (2,851)
Non-U.S.   52  (71)  (142)
     
  $ (8,496) $ (5,229) $ (2,993)
     

Note 6: Stock-Based Compensation

Equity Compensation Plans

Common Stock Option Plans

        In 1996, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Plan (1996 Plan), which expired in 2006. As of December 31, 2007, no options were available for future
issuance under the 1996 Plan and options to purchase 117,000 shares were outstanding with a weighted-average exercise price of $8.50 per share. Under the 1996
Plan, incentive stock options were granted at a price not less than 100% of the fair value of the stock at the date of grant, as determined by the board of directors.
Nonqualified stock options were to be granted at a price not less than 85% of the fair value of the stock at the date of grant, as determined by the board of
directors. Options generally vest over a four-year period and are exercisable immediately for a maximum period of ten years after the date of grant. As the 1996
Plan has expired, additional equity awards under the 1996 Plan have been discontinued. The 1996 Plan will remain in effect as to outstanding equity awards
granted under the plan prior to the date of expiration.

        The Company's 2000 employee stock option plan was adopted in October 2000 in connection with the Company's reincorporation in Delaware. In 2004, the
Company obtained stockholder approval of its Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option and Equity Incentive Plan (Amended 2000 Plan) to provide additional
incentive to its employees and directors. The Amended 2000 Plan authorizes the board of directors or the compensation committee of the board of directors to
grant a broad range of awards in addition to stock options, including stock grants, restricted stock, performance-based awards, restricted stock units representing
a right to acquire shares in the future and stock appreciation rights and to determine the applicable terms, including price, of such awards. Under the Amended
2000 Plan, the maximum number of shares reserved for issuance is 8,207,000, plus an annual increase of 500,000 on January 1 of each year, or a lesser amount
determined by the board of directors. The term of options granted under the Amended 2000 Plan may not exceed ten years. The term of all incentive stock
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options granted to an optionee who, at the time of grant, owns stock representing more than 10% of the voting power of all classes of the Company's stock may
not exceed five years.

        The exercise price of incentive stock options granted under the Amended 2000 Plan must be at least equal to the fair market value of the shares on the date
of grant. The exercise price of nonstatutory stock options granted under the Amended 2000 Plan will be determined by the board of directors, the compensation
committee or board designated personnel and the exercise price of a nonstatutory stock option is not subject to any price restriction under the Amended 2000
Plan. No incentive stock option may be granted to any employee who on the date of grant owns more than 10% of the Company's common stock, unless the
exercise price of the option is equal to at least 110% of the fair market value of such shares on the date of grant. In addition, the Amended 2000 Plan provides for
automatic acceleration of vesting for options granted to non-employee directors in the event of an acquisition of the Company. Generally, options granted under
the Amended 2000 Plan after March 30, 2006 vest over a four-year period and are exercisable for a maximum period of six years after the date of grant.

        The Company may also award shares to new employees as a material inducement to the acceptance of employment with the Company, and such awards are
not made under the Amended 2000 Plan. These grants must be approved by the compensation committee of the board of directors, a majority of the independent
directors or an authorized executive officer, as determined under NASDAQ Marketplace Rules.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

        The Company's 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) was adopted in October 2000 to become effective upon the pricing date of the Company's
initial public offering. A total of 500,000 shares of common stock have been reserved for issuance under the purchase plan. In addition, the purchase plan
provides for an automatic annual increase in the number of shares reserved under the plan on January 1 of each year, equal to the lesser of 100,000 shares, one
percent of the Company's outstanding shares of common stock on such date or a lesser amount determined by the board of directors. The purchase plan, which is
intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, is administered by the board of directors or a committee appointed by the board of directors.

        Employees, including officers and employee directors but excluding 5% stockholders, are eligible to participate if they are customarily employed for at least
20 hours per week and for more than five months in any calendar year. The purchase plan permits eligible employees to purchase common stock through payroll
deductions, which may not exceed 10% of an employee's compensation. Employees will be permitted to invest a maximum of $25,000 in any offering period.

        The purchase plan has been implemented in a series of overlapping offering periods, each to be approximately 12 months in duration. Offering periods begin
on the first trading day on or after January 1 and July 1 of each year and end on the last trading day in the period ending twelve months later. Each participant is
granted an option on the first day of the offering period, and such option will be automatically exercised at the end of month six of the offering period and on the
last day of the offering period. The purchase price of the common stock under the purchase plan is equal to 85% of the lesser of the fair market value per share of
common stock on the start date of the offering period or on the date on which the option is exercised. Employees may end their participation in an offering period
at any time during that period, and participation ends automatically on termination of employment with the Company. The purchase plan will terminate in June
2010, unless sooner terminated by the board of directors.

        Pursuant to authorization by the compensation committee of the board of directors, the Company's ESPP is currently inactive.

68

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



Stock-Based Compensation Expense

        In accordance with SFAS 123(R), the Company recorded $3.8 million and $2.7 million of stock-based compensation expense in 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The total compensation cost of options granted, but not yet vested, as of December 31, 2007 was $10.6 million and is expected to be recognized as
expense over a weighted average period of approximately 2.55 years.

        SFAS 123(R) requires the Company to present the tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized from the
exercise of stock options as financing cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows. For the year ended December 31, 2007, there were no such tax
benefits associated with the exercise of stock options due to the Company's loss position.

        In November 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position (FSP) No. FAS 123(R)-3 (FSP 123R-3), "Transition Election Related to Accounting for Tax Effects of
Share-Based Payment Awards." The Company has elected to adopt the alternative transition (short-cut) method described in the FSP 123R-3 for calculating the
tax effects of stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS 123R. The alternative transition method includes simplified methods to establish the beginning
balance of the additional paid-in capital pool (APIC pool) related to the tax effects of employee stock-based compensation and to determine the subsequent
impact on the APIC pool and consolidated statements of cash flows of the tax effects of employee stock-based compensation awards that are outstanding upon
adoption of SFAS 123R.

        On August 8, 2007, the Company acquired intellectual property and other assets from LDIC (see Note 4) and issued 500,000 shares of common stock with a
grant date fair value of $7.07 per share to LDIC. Of these 500,000 shares, 300,000 shares are subject to vesting in equal annual installments on each of the first
two anniversaries of the closing date. The fair value of these shares or $2.1 million was included in the purchase price of the asset acquisition. LDIC allocated the
remaining 200,000 shares for future distribution to employees hired by the Company in connection with the Atmel acquisition. These shares will vest in equal
annual installments on each of the first two anniversaries of the closing date, subject to the continued employment and will be accounted for as compensation
expense over the vesting period.

        On November 8, 2007, the Company hired a new chief executive officer and the board of directors approved three option grants to this new officer with an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. One option grant is for 800,000 shares of common stock and vests in equal
amounts monthly for two years from November 8, 2007. The second option grant is for 350,000 shares of common stock and vests as to: i) 80% of these shares if
the average closing price of the Company's common stock for any 90-day period is at least $10.00 per share, and ii) the remaining 20% of these shares pro rata
for each $0.01 increase in the average price up to $12.00 per share. The third option grant is for 100,000 shares of common stock and vests as to: i) 50% of the
shares if the average closing price of the Company's common stock for any 90-day period is at least $13.00 per share, and ii) the remaining 50% of these shares
pro rata for each $0.01 increase up to $15.00 per share. The vesting of all three option grants is subject to continued employment (or service as a director or
consultant). In accordance with SFAS 123R, in consideration of the market condition vesting requirement included for the second and third option grants, the
Company valued the options using the binomial lattice model. Total compensation for these options was valued at $875,000. The compensation expense is being
recognized ratably over the requisite service period of three and three and a half years for the 350,000 and 100,000 shares, respectively. If the market condition is
met before the requisite service period has elapsed, the unrecognized compensation cost related to the vested shares would be recognized immediately when the
market condition is met.
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Valuation Assumptions and Expense Information under SFAS 123(R)

        As prescribed in SFAS 123(R), the fair value of the Company's share-based payment awards for the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was estimated
on the grant date using a Black-Scholes valuation method and an option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

 
 

Year Ended December 31,  

Employee stock options:
 

 

2007

 

2006

 
Risk-free interest rate  3.6% - 5.1% 4.4% - 5.1%
Volatility  47.1% - 56.0% 47.1% - 56.0%
Expected life (years)  4.0 4.0 
Dividend yield  0% 0%

        The risk-free interest rate was derived from the Daily Treasury Yield Curve Rates as published by Department of the Treasury as of the grant date for terms
equal to the expected terms of the options. The expected volatility was based on the combination of historical volatility, excluding the volatility during the period
of a one time non-recurring event, which was the aborted acquisition of the Company by Synopsys, Inc. in 2004, and the expected future volatility of the
Company's stock price. The expected term of options granted was derived from historical data based on employee exercises and post-vesting employment
termination behavior. A dividend yield of zero is applied since the Company has never paid dividends and has no intention to pay dividends in the near future.

        Stock-based compensation expense included compensation expense for share-based awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006 based
on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of SFAS 123 and compensation expense for the share-based awards granted
subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). As required by SFAS 123(R), the
stock-based compensation expense is calculated based on estimated forfeiture rate. An annualized forfeiture rate of 15% has been used as a best estimate of
future forfeitures based on the Company's historical forfeiture experience. Under the true-up provisions of SFAS 123(R), the stock-based compensation expense
will be adjusted in later periods if the actual forfeiture rate is different from the estimate.
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        A summary of the option and restricted stock award (RSA) activity under the 1996 Plan and Amended 2000 Plan is presented below (in thousands, except
exercise price):

  

Options Outstanding

  

Available for
Grant

 

Number of
Shares

 

Weighted
Average

Exercise Prices

Balance at December 31, 2004  2,138 5,757 $ 6.11
Additional authorized under the 2000 Plan  500 —  —
 Options granted  (2,648) 2,648 $ 5.41
 Options cancelled  1,522 (1,522) $ 5.80
 Options exercised  — (406) $ 2.98
      
Balance at December 31, 2005  1,512 6,477 $ 6.09
Additional authorized under the 2000 Plan  500 —  —
 Options granted  (1,072) 1,072 $ 7.48
 RSAs granted  (74) —  —
 Options cancelled  1,129 (1,129) $ 7.91
 RSAs cancelled  8 —  —
 Options exercised  — (752) $ 4.85
 Option expired  (1,063) —  —
      
Balance at December 31, 2006  940 5,668 $ 6.17
Additional authorized under the 2000 Plan  500 —  —
 Options granted  (1,532) 1,532 $ 7.84
 Options cancelled  1,150 (1,150) $ 6.34
 RSAs cancelled  4 —  —
 Exercised  — (639) $ 4.54
      
Balance at December 31, 2007  1,062 5,411 $ 6.80
      

 

  

Number of
Options

 

Weighted Average
Grant-Date Fair

Value

Non-vested options at December 31, 2006  3,045 $ 2.82
 Granted  1,532 $ 3.21
 Vested  (1,165) $ 2.73
 Cancelled  (1,150) $ 2.84
     
Non-vested options at December 31, 2007  2,262 $ 3.12
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        A summary of the inducement grant option activity is presented below (in thousands, except exercise price):

  

Options Outstanding

  

Number of
Shares

 

Weighted
Average

Exercise Prices

Balance at December 31, 2005  —  —
 Granted  475 $ 7.59
 Cancelled  —  —
 Exercised  —  —
     
Balance at December 31, 2006  475 $ 7.59
 Granted  1,500 $ 5.76
 Cancelled  (356) $ 7.47
 Exercised  —  —
     
Balance at December 31, 2007  1,619 $ 5.92
     

        A summary of the restricted stock award activity is presented below (in thousands, except fair value):

  

Number of
Shares

 

Weighted Average
Grant-Date Fair

Value

Non-vested shares at December 31, 2005  —  —
 Granted  74 $ 5.91
 Vested  —  —
 Cancelled  (8) $ 5.91
     
Non-vested shares at December 31, 2006  66 $ 5.91
 Granted  500 $ 7.07
 Vested  (23) $ 5.91
 Cancelled  (4) $ 5.91
     
Non-vested shares at December 31, 2007  539 $ 6.99
     

        The following table summarizes significant ranges of outstanding and exercisable options and inducement grants as of December 31, 2007 (in thousands,
except contractual life and exercise price):

  

Options Outstanding

   

Options Exercisable

  

Range of Exercise Price

 

Number
Outstanding

 

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life (in Years)

 

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

 

Aggregate
Intrinsic value

 

Number
Exercisable

 

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life (in Years)

 

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

 

Aggregate
Intrinsic value

$1.00 - $4.09  796 6.27 $ 3.85 $ 797 587 6.29 $ 3.85 $ 589
$4.10 - $8.00  4,445 5.98 $ 6.01 $ 120 1,852 4.05 $ 6.00 $ 100
$8.01 - $10.00  1,402 4.40 $ 8.80  — 475 3.70 $ 9.45  —
$10.01 - $15.69  387 3.09 $ 10.98  — 387 3.09 $ 10.98  —
               
  7,030 5.54 $ 6.60 $ 917 3,301 4.29 $ 6.70 $ 689
               

72

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



         As of December 31, 2007, the Company had 6,198,055 shares fully vested and expected to vest, after estimated forfeitures, with a remaining contractual
life of 5.44 years, weighted average exercise price of $6.57 and aggregate intrinsic value of $0.9 million.

        The total fair value of shares vested using the Black-Scholes method during the year ended December 31, 2007 was $3.9 million. The total intrinsic value of
employee stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $2.4 million, $2.6 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

        Options exercisable were 3.3 million, 2.6 million, and 2.7 million at December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Pro Forma Information Prior to the Adoption of SFAS 123(R)

        Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation arrangements in accordance with the provisions of APB 25, and complied
with the disclosure provisions of SFAS 123. Under APB 25, compensation cost is, in general, recognized based on the excess, if any, of the fair market value of
the Company's stock on the date of grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. Deferred stock-based compensation is being amortized
using the graded vesting method over the vesting period of each respective option, which is generally four years.

        Had compensation cost for the Company's option plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates, as prescribed in SFAS 123, the
Company's net loss for 2005 would have been as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

  

Year Ended
December 31,

2005

 
Net loss:     
 As reported  $ (2,982)

 

Stock-based compensation expense reported in consolidated statements of operations, net of related tax
effects   36 

 

Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value based method for all awards, net of
related tax effects   (6,046)

   
  Pro forma net loss  $ (8,992)
   
Losses per share:     
 Basic and diluted—as reported  $ (0.10)
 Basic and diluted—pro forma  $ (0.29)

        The fair value of each grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions used for grants during the
applicable periods:

Employee stock options

 

Year Ended
December 31,

2005

 
Expected life (in years)  4.0 - 5.0 
Risk-free interest rate  3.7% - 4.5%
Volatility  56.7%
Dividend yield  0%
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Employee stock purchase plan shares

 

2005

 
Expected life (in years)  1.0 
Risk-free interest rate  2.8% - 3.5%
Volatility  44.0%
Dividend yield  0%

Note 7. Stockholders' Equity

        The Company's board of directors may issue up to 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock without stockholder approval on such terms as the board might
determine. The rights of the holders of common stock will be subject to, and might be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of any preferred stock that
might be issued in the future.

Stockholder Rights Plan

        The Company's Stockholder Rights Plan, which was adopted in October 2000 and became effective June 27, 2001, is intended to protect stockholders from
unfair or unfriendly takeover practices. In accordance with this plan, the board of directors declared a dividend distribution of one Series AA preferred stock
purchase right on each outstanding share of its common stock held as of June 27, 2001, and on each share of common stock issued by the Company thereafter.
Each right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company one one-thousandth share of Series AA preferred stock at a price of $110. The rights
become exercisable in certain circumstances, including the acquisition by any person or group, or the commencement or announcement of a tender or exchange
offer for the acquisition, of beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company's common stock without the approval of the board of directors (except for
certain affiliates prior to the effective date of the Plan as to whom this ownership limit is 25%). The rights do not confer any rights as a stockholder until they are
exercised. In the event the rights become exercisable, each right will entitle the holder to acquire shares of common stock of the Company or the acquiring
corporation (in the event of merger or similar business combination) having a value equal to twice the purchase price of the right. The rights are redeemable by
the Company prior to exercise at $0.01 per right and expire on October 11, 2010.

        In 2004, the Company amended its Stockholder Rights Plan twice; once, in connection with the proposed acquisition of the Company by Synopsys, Inc., and
a second time to permit the acquisition of shares representing more than 15% of its common stock by a brokerage firm that manages independent customer
accounts and generally does not have any discretionary voting power with respect to such shares. Notwithstanding amendments of this nature, the Company's
intention is to maintain and enforce the terms of this plan, which could delay, deter or prevent an investor from acquiring the Company in a transaction that could
otherwise result in stockholders receiving a premium over the market price for their shares of common stock.

Stock Repurchase Plan

        In August 2007, the Company's board of directors authorized the Company to purchase up to $19.5 million of its common stock through August 2008. The
share repurchases may be made from time to time in the open market subject to market conditions and other factors, in accordance with SEC requirements. These
repurchases may be commenced or suspended at any time or from time to time without prior notice. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had repurchased
approximately 883,000 shares of common stock for approximately $5.0 million. The total purchase price was reflected as a decrease to stockholders' equity
during the year ended December 31, 2007. Common stock repurchased under the program was recorded based upon the date of the applicable trade for
accounting purposes. All shares repurchased were retired in 2007.
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Note 8: Retirement Savings Plan

        Effective January 1997, the Company adopted the MoSys 401(k) Plan (the Savings Plan) which qualifies as a thrift plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code. All full-time employees who are at least 21 years of age are eligible to participate in the Savings Plan at the time of hire. Participants may
contribute up to 15% of their earnings to the Savings Plan. The Company makes a matching contribution on behalf of each Participant in an amount equal to 25%
of a participant's contributions during the plan year. The Company made matching contributions of $212,000, $153,000, and $127,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Note 9: Business Segments, Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers

        The Company operates in one business segment and uses one measurement of profitability for its business. Revenue attributed to the United States and to all
foreign countries is based on the geographical location of the customer.

        Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, cash equivalents,
short-term and long-term investments and accounts receivable. Cash, cash equivalents, short-term and long term investments are deposited with high credit
quality institutions.

        The Company sold its products and licensed its technologies to customers in North America, Asia and Europe as follows (in thousands):

  

Years Ended December 31,

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

Japan  $ 10,826 $ 9,010 $ 7,636
United States   2,289  3,165  3,630
Taiwan   827  1,710  479
Asia   381  659  537
Europe   11  365  —
    
Total  $ 14,334 $ 14,909 $ 12,282
    

        Customers who accounted for at least 10% of total revenues were as follows:

  

Years Ended December 31,

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

Customer A  70% 27% 35%
Customer B  — 25% 17%

        One customer accounted for 56% of net accounts receivable at December 31, 2007. One customer accounted for 89% of net accounts receivable at
December 31, 2006.

        Net property and equipment, classified by major geographic areas were as follows at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands):

  

December 31,

  

2007

 

2006

  

(in thousands)

U.S.  $ 1,179 $ 830
Non-U.S.   217  25
   
Total  $ 1,396 $ 855
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Note 10: Commitments and Contingencies

Leases and Purchase Commitments

        The Company leases its facilities under non-cancelable operating leases that expire at various dates through June 2010. Rent expense was approximately
$862,000, $699,000, and $797,000, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. The leases provide for monthly payments and are
being charged to operations ratably over the lease terms. In addition to the minimum lease payments, the Company is responsible for property taxes, insurance
and certain other operating costs. Future minimum lease payments under the non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2007 were as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

 

Minimum Lease
Commitments

 

Sublease
Income

 

Net Lease Commitments

2008  $ 825 $ (35) $ 790
2009   516  —  516
2010   201  —  201
    
Total minimum payments  $ 1,542 $ (35) $ 1,507
    

        As of December 31, 2007, the Company had a three year purchase commitment of $1.7 million for licenses related to computer-aided design tools payable
in quarterly installments through December 2010.

Indemnifications

        In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into contractual arrangements under which the Company may agree to indemnify the counter-party
from any losses incurred relating to breach of representations and warranties, failure to perform certain covenants, or claims and losses arising from certain
events as outlined within the particular contract, which may include, for example, losses arising from litigation or claims relating to past performance. Such
indemnification clauses may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. The Company has entered into indemnification agreements with its officers and directors.
No amounts are reflected in our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2007 or 2006 related to these indemnifications.

        The Company has not estimated the maximum potential amount of indemnification liability under these agreements due to the limited history of prior claims
and the unique facts and circumstances applicable to each particular agreement. To date, the Company has not made any payments related to these
indemnification agreements.

Legal Matters

        On March 31, 2004, UniRAM Technology, Inc. (UniRAM) filed a complaint against the Company in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California, alleging trade secret misappropriation and patent infringement. On October 24, 2006, the Company settled all outstanding litigation with
UniRAM related to the trade secret misappropriation and patent infringement suit. Under the settlement agreement, the companies agreed to dismiss all
outstanding claims and counterclaims with prejudice. The Company paid UniRAM $2.4 million, and received a complete release of all claims as well as a future
fully paid license for itself and all of its licensees to UniRAM's relevant intellectual property.

        The Company is not a party to any material legal proceeding which would have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position or results of
operations. From time to time the Company may be subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. These claims, even if
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not meritorious, could result in the expenditure of significant financial resources and diversion of management efforts.

Note 11. Related Party Transactions

        One of the Company's directors is an executive officer of a customer of the Company. Revenue from this customer for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006 was $28,000 and $471,000, respectively. In addition, another of the Company's directors serves as a member of the board of directors of another
customer. Revenue from this customer for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $128,000.

Note 12. Subsequent Events

Investments

        As of December 31, 2007, the Company held $11.6 million of municipal notes investments, classified as short-term investments, with an auction reset
feature (adjustable rate securities) whose underlying assets were primarily in student loans and which had an AAA credit rating. During January 2008, the
Company successfully liquidated $2.4 million of the securities and, as of February 29, 2008, the Company held $9.2 million of adjustable rate securities.
Subsequently, all of these adjustable rate securities failed in auctions. An auction failure means that the parties wishing to sell their securities could not do so as a
result of a lack of buying demand. These developments may result in the classification of some or all of these securities as long-term investments in the
Company's consolidated financial statements for the first quarter of 2008. If the issuers are unable to successfully close future auctions and their credit ratings
deteriorate, the Company may in the future be required to record an impairment charge on these investments.

        The Company believes that it will be able to liquidate these adjustable rate securities without significant loss, and that these adjustable rate securities are not
impaired, primarily due to government guarantees of the underlying securities. However, it could take until the final maturity of the underlying notes (up to
40 years) to realize the Company's investments' recorded value. The Company currently has the ability and intent to hold its $9.2 million of adjustable rate
securities held as of February 29, 2008, until market stability is restored with respect to these securities.
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Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(In thousands)

    

Additions

 

Deductions

  

Description

 

Balance at
beginning of

period

 

Charged to
costs and
expenses

 

Charged to
other

accounts

 

Amount
recovered or
written off

 

Balance at
end of
period

Allowance for doubtful accounts                
Year ended December 31, 2007  $ — $ 225 $ — $ — $ 225
Year ended December 31, 2006  $ 105 $ — $ — $ (105) $ —
Year ended December 31, 2005  $ — $ 105 $ — $ — $ 105
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INDEX OF EXHIBITS

2.1(1)  Merger Agreement regarding the Registrant's reincorporation in Delaware
2.2(2)  Share Purchase Agreement for the shares of ATMOS Corporation
3.1  Not currently in use
3.2  Not currently in use
3.3(1)  Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant
3.3.1  Certificate of Amendment to Restricted Certificate of Incorporation
3.4(1)  Bylaws of the Registrant
3.4.1(3)  Amendment to Bylaws effective December 20, 2007
4.1(1)  Specimen common stock certificate
4.2(1)  Not currently in use
4.3(1)  Rights Agreement
4.3.1(4)  First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2004
4.3.2(5)  Second Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of December 14, 2004
10.1(1)  Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Registrant and each of its directors and executive officers
10.2(1)  Not currently in use
10.3(1)*  1996 Stock Plan and form of Option Agreement thereunder
10.4(1)*  Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement
10.5(1)*  2000 Employee Stock Option Plan and form of Option Agreement thereunder
10.5.1(6)*  Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive and Stock Option Plan
10.6(1)*  2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and form of Subscription Agreement thereunder
10.13 * Employment Agreement and Release between Registrant and Chester J. Silvestri dated November 8, 2007
10.14  Not currently in use
10.15(7)*  Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option and Equity

Incentive Plan
10.16(8)  Lease Agreement between Registrant and Sunnyvale Mathilda Investors, LLC dated as of May 6, 2005
10.17(8)*  Employment offer letter agreement between the Registrant and Dhaval Ajmera dated October 3, 2005
10.18  Not currently in use
10.19  Not currently in use
10.20  Not currently in use
10.21(9)*  Form of New Employee Inducement Grant Stock Option Agreement
10.22  Not currently in use
10.23  Not currently in use
10.24*  Employment offer letter agreement and Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate between Registrant and Leonard

Perham dated as of November 8, 2007
10.25*  New Employee Inducement Grant Stock Option Agreements between Registrant and Leonard Perham

dated as of November 8, 2007
10.26*  Employment offer letter agreement between the Registrant and James W. Sullivan dated January 18, 2008
10.27*  Change-in-control Agreement between Registrant and James W. Sullivan dated January 18, 2008
10.28*  Employment offer letter agreement between Registrant and Didier Lacroix dated as of February 21, 2008
10.29*  Change-in-control Agreement between Registrant and Didier Lacroix dated as of February 21, 2008
21.1  List of subsidiaries
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23.1  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—Burr, Pilger & Mayer LLP
23.2  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—BDO Seidman, LLP
24.1  Power of Attorney (see signature page)
31.1  Rule 13a-14 certification
31.2  Rule 13a-14 certification
32  Section 1350 certification

(1)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, originally filed August 4,
2000, declared effective June 27, 2001 (Commission file No. 333-43122).

(2)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to the Company's report on Form 8-K/A filed on November 13, 2002.

(3)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 21, 2007 (Commission File No. 000-32929).

(4)
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to Form 8-A/A filed by the Company on December 22, 2004 (Commission File No. 000-32929).

(5)
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 20, 2004 (Commission File No. 000-32929).

(6)
Incorporated by reference to the Company's proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed by the Company on October 7, 2004 (Commission File
No. 000-32929).

(7)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 10-Q filed by the Company on August 9, 2005 (Commission File No. 000-32925).

(8)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 10-K filed by the Company on March 16, 2006 (Commission File No. 000-32929).

(9)
Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 10-Q filed by the Company on May 9, 2006 (Commission File No. 000-32929).

*
Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Exhibit 10.13

 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE

 
This Employment Agreement and Release (“Agreement”) is voluntarily entered into between MoSys, Inc., a

Delaware corporation, (“Employer”) and Chet Silvestri for himself and for each of his representatives, heirs, successors and assigns
(collectively referred to as “Employee”).  Employer and Employee, agrees as follows:

 
1.            Employee hereby resigns as Employer’s Chief Executive Officer and President and a member of

Employer’s board of directors effective as of the close of business on the date of this Agreement.
 
2.            Employer and Employee agree that, subject to the terms of this Agreement, Employee will remain

employed by Employer until May 31, 2008, and will be paid a semi-monthly amount of $7,638.89, which is two-thirds of Employee’s
current base pay (referred to as the “Continuation Salary”), net of all applicable withholdings required by law.  Employee shall
continue to receive Employer’s standard employee fringe benefits and will remain subject to all employment policies and procedures
of Employer.  Employer and Employee acknowledge that on July 27, 2005, Employer granted to Employee an option to purchase
750,000 shares of common stock pursuant to Employer’s Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option and Equity Incentive Plan (the
“Amended 2000 Plan”).  Employer and Employee agree that notwithstanding any provisions of the Amended 2000 Plan or the stock
option agreement(s) between Employer and Employee to the contrary, such option to purchase 750,000 shares will cease vesting as of
the date of this Agreement.  Employer and Employee agree further that Employee will have 90 days from the date of termination of
his employment or other services with Employer in which to exercise the vested portion of such option, in accordance with the terms
of the stock option agreement(s).  In the event Employee accepts employment with another employer prior to May 31, 2008, his
employment with the Company will terminate immediately, and he will become a consultant to be available to the Company upon
request from time to time at the same rate of pay until May 31, 2008.

 
3.            In exchange for the Continuation Salary and continued employment through May 31, 2008, Employee

releases and forever discharges Employer, and each of its past, present and future directors, officers, employees, agents, insurers,
attorneys, predecessors, successors, assigns, transferees and related entities (collectively hereinafter the “Company”) from any and all
claims, rights, demands, actions, obligations, liabilities and causes of action, whether asserted or whatsoever, known or unknown,
which he has or has had against any of the Company from the beginning of time until the date of execution of this Agreement
(collectively referred to as “Claims”).

 
4.            Without limiting the generality of Paragraph 3, Employee hereby releases, acquits and forever discharges 

the Company from and against any Claims arising from or in any way connected with or relating to his employment with Employer or
the termination of his employment with Employer,or his relationships as an officer, option holder or holder of shares

 
 

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



 
of common stock  of Employer, including, but not limited to, (i) Claims arising under any state or federal statute regarding
employment discrimination or termination, including but not limited to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, the California Labor Code, the Worker
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (WARN), and the Americans with Disabilities Act, (ii) Claims for wrongful discharge,
unjust dismissal, or constructive discharge,  (iii) claims for breach of any alleged oral, written or implied contract of employment,
(iv) Claims for salary orseverance payments other than those set forth in this Agreement, (v) claims for employment benefits, except
as set forth in this Agreement; (vi) Claims for attorneys’ fees, costs, and damages of all types, (vii) any and all Claims sounding in
tort, including without limitation, defamation or infliction of emotional distress or his relationships as an officer or stockholder of the
Company (viii) Claims for shares of stock or other equity interests  in Employer  or rights to acquire any such shares or other equity
interests; (ix) Claims related to ownership of or other rights regarding intellectual property in any form, including, without limitation,
any patents, trademarks or copyrights: and (x) any other claims under federal, state or local statute, law, rule or regulation.

 
Nothing in this Agreement, however, will affect or limit: (i) rights created by this Agreement, (ii) any vested rights

that Employee may have in any Employer-sponsored pension or 401(k) savings plan as of the time of the termination of his
employment with Employer, (iii) Employee’ s rights to continue group health care coverage under COBRA, (iv) any right Employee
may have to receive workers’ compensation benefits for any work-related injuries; (v) any right Employee may have to receive
unemployment insurance benefits; (vi) any right to indemnity under the Indemnification Agreement dated as of [July 26, 2007] with
respect to any occurrence prior to the date of this Agreement; and (vi) any rights or claims that may arise after the date this Agreement
is executed.

 
5.            EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THIS RELEASE INCLUDES A RELEASE OF ANY AND

ALL CLAIMS HE HAS OR MAY HAVE UNDER THE AGE DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT ACT OF 1967
(“A.D.E.A.”), THAT HE HAS THE RIGHT TO CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY BEFORE SIGNING THIS RELEASE, AND
THAT HE HAS BEEN ADVISED BY EMPLOYER TO DO SO.  EMPLOYEE ALSO UNDERSTANDS THAT HE HAS A
PERIOD OF UP TO TWENTY-ONE (21) DAYS TO CONSIDER THE TERMS OF THIS RELEASE BEFORE SIGNING IT, IF HE
DESIRES, THAT HE MAY REVOKE THIS RELEASE TO THE EXTENT THAT HE RELEASES CLAIMS BY IT UNDER THE
A.D.E.A. AT ANY TIME WITHIN SEVEN (7) DAYS FOLLOWING HIS SIGNING OF THIS RELEASE, AND THAT TO THE
EXTENT THAT HE RELEASES ANY RIGHTS OR CLAIMS HE MAY HAVE UNDER A.D.E.A., THIS RELEASE DOES NOT
BECOME ENFORCEABLE OR EFFECTIVE AGAINST THOSE CLAIMS UNTIL THE EXPIRATION OF THE SEVEN-DAY
PERIOD FOLLOWING HIS SIGNING OF THE RELEASE.  THE RELEASE MAY NOT BE REVOKED FOLLOWING
EXPIRATION OF THAT SEVEN-DAY PERIOD.

 
6.            Employee will not be entitled to receive the first regular payroll payment following the date of this

Agreement until the expiration of seven calendar days following Employee’s execution of this Agreement, provided that Employee
does not revoke this
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Agreement.  Employee’s revocation of this Agreement will revoke all provisions of the Agreement except Paragraph 1.

 
7.            Employee acknowledges that there is a risk that after signing this Agreement he may discover losses or

claims that he believes were in some way caused by his employment with Employer or in any other respect by the Company, or that
are otherwise released under this Agreement, but that are presently unknown to him.  Employee assumes this risk and understands that
this release shall apply to any such losses and claims.  Therefore, Employee expressly waives the provisions of California Civil Code
Section 1542, which states:

 
A general release does not extend to claims, which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing
the release, which if known by him/her must have materially affected his settlement with the debtor.
 

8.            By entering into this Agreement and paying the Continuation Salary and providing other benefits as set
forth in this Agreement, Employer does not admit, and shall not be deemed to have admitted, any violation of any statute, law or
regulation, any breach of contract, actual or implied, or any other wrongdoing with respect to Employee

 
9.            Employee understands this is an important legal document and that he has the right to consult an attorney

of his choice before signing this Agreement.  By signing this Agreement, he acknowledges that he has entered into it voluntarily and
knowingly.  Employee represents that he is voluntarily entering into this Agreement of his own free will.  Employee understands that
he is not required to sign this Agreement but that if he elects not to do so, he will not receive the Continuation Salary and other
benefits being offered to him.

 
10.         Employee understands that the terms and existence of this Agreement are personal to him and that

maintaining the confidential nature of this Agreement is a material term of the Agreement.  He covenants that he has not disclosed and
will not disclose the existence or terms of this Agreement, unless compelled by legal process to do so, except to the extent necessary
to obtain legal advice from his attorney, or financial or tax advice from his professional financial adviser or accountant, if any;
provided, however, that Employee and Employer agree that Employer will disclose the terms of this Agreement to the extent deemed
necessary by Employer to comply with applicable securities and other laws.

 
11.         Employee acknowledges that this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Employer and him

regarding the ending of his employment, provided that Employee and Employer agree that the Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate dated as
of July 26, 2005 remains in effect and will apply to any dispute arising under or related to the Agreement.  No oral or written
representations or promises have been made to Employee, or anyone acting on his behalf, that are not embodied in this Agreement. 
No modification of this Agreement shall be valid or binding, unless executed in writing by all parties to this Agreement.

 
12.         Employee understands that all existing confidentiality agreements between him and Employer, including,

but not limited to the Employment Confidential Information and
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Invention Assignment Agreement dated as of July 26, 2005, will continue to be in effect after the signing of this Agreement. 
Employee covenants and represents and warrants to Employer that he has not engaged in any conduct of the type prohibited under
such agreement.

 
13.         Employee agrees not to make, or ask any other person to make, any statement of any kind that disparages

Employer or any past or present directors, officers or employees of Employer, and further agrees not to make any statement of any
kind that is calculated to, or foreseeably will, damage the business or reputation of the Employer, or any of the past or present
directors, officers or employees of the Employer.  Employer agrees that neither it nor any of its officers will make, or ask any other
person to make, any statement of any kind that disparages Employee, or that is calculated to, or which foreseeably will, damage
Employee’s reputation with individuals or entities outside Employer.

 
14.         Should any provision of this Agreement be found to be invalid or unenforceable, that provision shall be

considered severable and the remaining provisions shall remain in effect.
 
15.         This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of California without regard to the conflicts of laws

provisions thereof.
 

Agreed and Executed By:
 

  
 

Employee
  
Dated: November 8, 2007 /s/ Chet Silvestri
 

Chet Silvestri
  
 

MoSys, Inc.
  
Dated: November 8, 2007 /s/ James Kupec
 

By: James Kupec
 

Title: Chairman of the Compensation
  

Committee
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Exhibit 10.24
 

MoSys, Inc.
755 N. Mathilda Dr.

Suite 100
Sunnyvale, California  94085

 
November 8, 2007
 
Mr. Leonard Perham
 
Dear Len:
 

MoSys, Inc. (the “Company”) is pleased to offer you the position of Chief Executive Officer and President (“CEO”).  This
offer letter generally sets forth the terms and conditions of the Company’s offer of employment.  This offer letter is intended to be a
binding agreement, and if the terms contained in this offer letter are acceptable to you, please acknowledge your acceptance by signing
in the signature block, below.  The Company’s offer of employment is conditioned upon: (1) your presenting evidence of your
authorization to work in the United States and your identity sufficient to allow the Company to complete the I-9 form required by law
within three business days of the commencement of your employment with the Company; (2) your consent to, and satisfactory
completion of, a background check; (3) your completion of the Company’s standard Directors and Officers Questionnaire and the
Company’s satisfactory review of your responses; and (4) ratification of this offer by the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”).

 
As CEO, you will report directly to the Board.  You agree to perform the duties set forth in this letter, as well as any other

reasonable duties determined by the Board.  Our mutual expectations regarding the primary duties of this position are as follows:
(1) all duties, authorities and responsibilities customary for a chief executive officer of a public company, including executive
responsibility for developing strategic direction and all operational activities of the Company, (2) ultimate management responsibility
for all employees of the Company, and (3) preparation and submission of an operating plan to the Board on a quarterly basis, which
shall serve to provide the scope of operational authority.  You also will be elected to the Board to fill an existing vacancy and will be
nominated for election to the Board at the next annual meeting of stockholders as long as you remain the CEO.

 
Your starting salary will be approximately $8,333 semi-monthly ($200,000 on an annualized basis).  Your base salary will be

paid in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll procedures and will be subject to applicable withholding required by law.  You
also will be eligible to participate in any Company’s executive bonus plan, with an annual bonus upon achievement of stated
objectives, as determined by the Board, in its sole discretion.
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You will be granted an option to purchase 800,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, which shares will vest in equal

monthly installments at the end of each of the first 24 calendar months of your employment, with November 30, 2007 being the first
such vesting date.  Vesting of this option will accelerate in full upon a Change-in-Control. In addition, you will be granted an option to
purchase 350,000 shares, which option will vest as to 80% of these shares if the Stock Price (as defined herein) of the Company’s
common stock is $10 per share and pro rata as to the remaining shares for each $.01 increase in the Stock Price up to $12 per share.  In
addition, you will be granted an option to purchase 100,000 shares, which option will vest as to 50% of these shares if the Stock Price
is $13 per share and pro rata as to the remaining shares for each $0.01 increase in the Stock Price up to $15 per share.  All of such
options will vest only while you remain continuously employed by the Company.  We intend that these options will be granted today
upon approval by the Board, or its Compensation Committee, with an exercise price equal to the closing price of a share of common
stock on the NASDAQ Global Market today.  The terms of these options will be set forth in option agreements approved by the Board
or its Compensation Committee.  These options will be granted as new employment inducement grants under the NASDAQ
Marketplace Rules and not pursuant to the Company’s existing option plan.

 
As used herein, “Stock Price” means the average closing price of a share of the Company’s common stock on the NASDAQ

Global Market (or other applicable exchange listing or principal trading market for the common stock) during a consecutive
90-calendar day period within the next two years; provided that in the case of a Change-in-Control such determination shall be made
as of the 90-calendar day period ending on the third business day immediately preceding the date on which the Change-in-Control
occurs.

 
As used herein, “Change-in-Control” means the occurrence of any of the following:
 
(i)  an acquisition after the date of this offer letter by an individual, an entity or a group in one or more related transactions

(excluding the Company or an employee benefit plan of the Company or a corporation controlled by the Company’s stockholders) of
45 percent or more of the Company’s common stock or voting securities; or

 
(ii)  consummation of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company or a merger, consolidation, reorganization or sale

of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets (collectively, a “Business Combination”) other than a Business Combination in
which (A) the stockholders of the Company receive 50 percent or more of the stock of the corporation resulting from the Business
Combination and (B) at least a majority of the board of directors of such resulting corporation were incumbent directors of the
Company immediately prior to the consummation of the Business Combination, and (C) after which no individual, entity or group
(excluding any corporation or other entity resulting from the Business Combination or any employee benefit plan of such corporation
or of the Company) who did not own 45 percent or more of the stock of the resulting corporation or other entity immediately before
the Business Combination owns 45 percent or more of the stock of such resulting corporation or other entity.
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You also will be eligible to participate in the Company’s  employee benefit plans, including our standard major medical,

dental, life, short and long term disability, vision insurance benefits, our flexible benefit plan, paid holidays, personal time off (PTO)
and the Company’s 401(k) plan.  You will be reimbursed on a regular basis for reasonable, necessary and properly documented
business and travel expenses incurred for the purpose of conducting the Company’s business.

 
You should be aware that your employment with the Company is for no specified period and constitutes at-will employment. 

As a result, you are free to resign at any time, for any reason or for no reason.  Similarly, the Company is free to conclude its
employment relationship with you at any time, with or without cause.

 
In the event of any dispute or claim relating to or arising out of our employment relationship, you and the Company agree

that all such disputes shall be fully and finally resolved by binding arbitration as provided in the Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate, a
copy of which is attached for your reference.  You agree to execute and deliver the Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate and the Company’s
standard form of Employment Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement (“Proprietary Rights Agreement”) in
connection with your acceptance of this offer letter.

 
To indicate your acceptance of the Company’s offer, please sign and date this letter agreement in the space provided below

and return it to me.  This offer will expire on Friday, November 9, 2007 at 5:00 p.m.
 
This letter agreement, along with the applicable stock option agreements, Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate and Proprietary

Rights Agreement between you and the Company, together with the Company’s standard employment policies and procedures in
effect from time to time constitute the entire terms of your employment with the Company and supersede all prior representations or
agreements, whether written or oral.  This letter agreement is to be governed by California law.  To the extent that any of the terms of
this offer letter agreement or any of the foregoing agreements conflict with the Company’s standard employment policies and
procedures in effect from time to time, the former shall govern.  This letter may not be modified or amended except by a written
agreement signed by the Chairman of the Compensation Committee and by you.

 
If you have any questions, please feel free to call me.  We look forward to your favorable reply and to a productive and

exciting working relationship.
 
 

 

Sincerely,
   
  

/s/ James Kupec
  

James Kupec
  

Chairman of the Compensation Committee
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO

  

This 8th day of November, 2007
  

   
/s/ Leonard Perham

  

Leonard Perham
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MUTUAL AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE CLAIMS

 
I recognize that differences may arise between MoSys, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and me during or following my
employment with the Company, and that those differences may or may not be related to my employment.  I understand and agree that
by entering into this Agreement to Arbitrate Claims (“Agreement”), I anticipate gaining the benefits of a speedy, impartial
dispute-resolution procedure.
 
Except as provided in this Agreement, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern the interpretation, enforcement and all proceedings
pursuant to this Agreement.  To the extent that the Federal Arbitration Act either is inapplicable or held not to require arbitration of a
particular claim or claims, California law pertaining to agreements to arbitrate shall apply.
 
I understand that any reference in the Agreement to the Company will also be a reference to its subsidiaries or related entities, and all
successors and assignees of any of them.
 
Claims Covered by the Agreement
 
The Company and I mutually consent to the resolution by arbitration of all claims or controversies (“claims”), past, present or future,
whether or not arising out of my employment (or its termination), that the Company may have against me or that I may have against
the Company or against its officers, directors, employees or agents in their capacity as such or otherwise.  The only claims that are
arbitrable are those that in the absence of this agreement, would be justiciable under applicable state or federal law.  The claims
covered by this Agreement include, but are not limited to, claims for wages or other compensation; claims for breach of any contract
or covenant (express or implied); tort claims; claims for discrimination (including, but not limited to, race, sex, sexual orientation,
religion, national origin, age, marital status, medical condition, or disability); claims for benefits (except claims under an employee
benefit or pension plan that either (1) specifies that its claims procedure shall culminate in an arbitration procedure different from this
one, or (2) is underwritten by a commercial insurer which decides claims); and claims for violation of any federal, state, or other
governmental law, statute, regulation, or ordinance, except claims excluded elsewhere in this Agreement.
 
Claims Not Covered by the Agreement
 
Claims by me for workers’ compensation or unemployment compensation benefits are not covered by this Agreement.
 
Either party can apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for provisional remedies in connection with arbitrable controversies as
contemplated by California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281.8.
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Administrative Exhaustion
 
As a condition of arbitration, a statutory claim of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation must be filed first with the Department of
Fair Employment and Housing and/or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission within the time limits set forth by state and
federal law and must be exhausted through the applicable agency, prior to being submitted to arbitration, or such claims are waived.
 
Required Notice of All Claims and Statute of Limitations
 
The Company and I agree that the aggrieved party must give written notice of any claim to the other party and to the American
Arbitration Association (“AAA”) within the limitations period for whatever claims are being asserted.
 
Written notice to the Company, or its officers, directors, employees or agents, shall be sent to its Chief Executive Officer at the
Company’s main office.  I will be given written notice at the last address recorded in my personnel file.
 
The written notice shall identify and describe the nature of all claims asserted and the facts upon which such claims are based.  The
notice shall be sent to the other party by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.
 
Failure to make a written demand within the applicable statutory period constitutes a waiver to raise that claim in any forum.
 
Applicable Law And Discovery
 
The arbitrator shall apply applicable California and/or Federal substantive law and the California evidence code to the proceeding. 
The parties shall be entitled to conduct reasonable discovery, including conducting deposition, requesting documents and requesting
responses to interrogatories.  The arbitrator shall have the authority to determine what constitutes reasonable discovery.  The arbitrator
shall hear motions for summary disposition as provided in the California Code of Civil Procedure.
 
Arbitration Procedures
 
The arbitration will be held under the auspices of the AAA.  The Company and I agree that, except as provided in this Agreement, the
arbitration shall be in accordance with the AAA’s then-current employment rules for employment disputes.  The arbitrator shall be
either a retired judge, or an attorney licensed to practice law in the state in which the arbitration is convened (the “Arbitrator”).  The
arbitration shall take place in San Jose, California.
 
Either party may obtain a court reporter to provide a stenographic record of proceedings.  Either party, upon request at the close of
hearing, shall be given leave to file a post-hearing brief.  The time for filing such a brief shall be set by the Arbitrator.
 
Arbitration Fees and Costs
 
The Company will be responsible for paying any filing fee and the fees and costs of the Arbitrator and the arbitration; provided,
however, that if I am the party initiating the claim, I am responsible for contributing an amount equal to the filing fee to initiate a
claim in the court of general jurisdiction in the state in which I am (or was last) employed by the Company.  Each party shall pay for
its own costs and attorneys’ fees, if any.  However, if any party prevails on a statutory claim which affords the prevailing party
attorneys’ fees, or if there is a written agreement providing for fees, the Arbitrator may
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award reasonable fees to the prevailing party, under the standards for fee shifting provided by law.
 
Written Award
 
The arbitrator shall prepare in writing and provide to the parties a decision and award that includes factual findings and the reasons
upon which the decision is based.  The arbitrator shall be permitted to award only those remedies in law and equity that are requested
by the parties and allowed by law.  Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having proper
jurisdiction.
 
Sole and Entire Agreement
 
This is the complete agreement of the parties on the subject of arbitration of disputes, except for any arbitration agreement in
connection with any pension or benefit plan.  This Agreement supersedes any prior or contemporaneous oral or written understandings
on the subject.  No party is relying on any representations, oral or written, on the subject of the effect, enforceability or meaning of
this Agreement, except as specifically set forth in this Agreement.
 
Severability
 
If any provision of this Agreement is adjudged to be void or otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, such adjudication shall not
affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement.
 
Not an Employment Agreement
 
This Agreement is not, and shall not be construed to create, any contract of employment, express or implied.  Nor does this Agreement
in any way alter the “at-will” status of my employment.
 
Voluntary Agreement
 
I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE CAREFULLY READ THIS AGREEMENT, THAT I UNDERSTAND ITS TERMS, THAT
ALL UNDERSTANDINGS AND AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ME RELATING TO THE SUBJECTS
COVERED IN THE AGREEMENT ARE CONTAINED IN IT, AND THAT I HAVE ENTERED INTO THE AGREEMENT
VOLUNTARILY AND NOT IN RELIANCE ON ANY PROMISES OR REPRESENTATIONS BY THE COMPANY OTHER
THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT ITSELF.
I UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT I AM GIVING UP MY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL.
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I FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE BEEN GIVEN THE OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS THIS AGREEMENT WITH
MY PRIVATE LEGAL COUNSEL AND HAVE AVAILED MYSELF OF THAT OPPORTUNITY TO THE EXTENT I WISH TO
DO SO.
 

Dated: Nov. 8, 2007
 

/s/ Leonard Perham
   

Signature of Employee
    
   

Leonard Perham
   

Print Name of Employee
    
    
Dated: Nov. 8, 2007

 

MOSYS, INC.
   

a Delaware corporation
    
   

By: /s/ James Kupec
     
   

Its: Chairman of the Compensation Committee
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Exhibit 10.25

 
NEW EMPLOYEE INDUCEMENT GRANT STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

 
TO:  Leonard Perham (the “Optionee”):
 

MoSys, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby grants to Optionee an option (“Option”) to purchase a total of
Eight Hundred Thousand (800,000) shares of Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share (“Shares”), of the Company, at the price set
forth herein.

 
DEFINITIONS FOR CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
 

“Agreement” means this Stock Option Incentive Grant Agreement.
 
“Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
 
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
 
“Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company, par value $.01 per share.
 
“Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.
 
“Consultant” means any independent contractor retained to perform services for the Company or a Subsidiary.
 
“Continuous Service” means the absence of any interruption or termination of service as an Employee, Director or

Consultant by the Company, a Parent, or any Subsidiary. Continuous Service shall not be considered interrupted during any period of
(i) any leave of absence approved by the Company or (ii) transfers between locations of the Company or between the Company and
any Parent, Subsidiary or successor of the Company. A leave of absence approved by the Company shall include sick leave, military
leave or any other personal leave approved by an authorized representative of the Company.

 
“Corporate Transaction” means:
 

(a)  an acquisition after the Grant Date by an individual, an entity or a group in one or more related transactions
(excluding the Company or an employee benefit plan of the Company or a corporation controlled by the Company’s stockholders) of
beneficial ownership of 45 percent or more of the Company’s common stock or voting securities; or

 
(b)  consummation of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company or a merger, consolidation,

reorganization or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets (collectively, a “Business Combination”) after the Grant Date,
other than a Business Combination in which (A) the stockholders of the Company receive beneficial ownership of 50 percent or more
of the stock of the corporation resulting from the Business Combination and (B) at least a majority of the board of directors of such
resulting corporation were incumbent directors of the Company immediately prior to the consummation of the Business Combination,
and (C) after which no individual, entity or group (excluding any corporation or other entity
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resulting from the Business Combination or any employee benefit plan of such corporation or of the Company) who did not have
beneficial ownership of 45 percent or more of the stock of the resulting corporation or other entity immediately before the Business
Combination has beneficial ownership of 45 percent or more of the stock of such resulting corporation or other entity.

 
For this purpose, “beneficial ownership” refers to ownership of a security, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity who

through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise has or shares (1) voting power, which includes the power
to vote, or to direct the voting of, such security, and/or (2) investment power, which include the power to dispose, or to direct the
disposition of, such security, and shall be determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the
Exchange Act.
 

“Director” means a director of the Company.
 
“Employee” means any person, including officers (whether or not they are directors), employed by the Company, a Parent or

any Subsidiary.
 
“Exchange Act” means Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 
“Fair Market Value” of Common Stock as of any date is the closing price for the Common Stock as reported on the

NASDAQ Global Market (or on any other national securities exchange or other established market on which the Common Stock is
then listed) for that date or, if no closing price is reported for that date, the closing price on the next preceding date for which a closing
price was reported.

 
“Grant Date” means, with respect to the Option, November 8, 2007.
 
“Non-Employee Director” means a Director of the Company who qualifies as a Non-Employee Director as such term is

defined in Section 240.16b-3(b)(3) of the General Rules and Regulations promulgated under the Exchange Act.
 
“Parent” means a parent corporation of the Company, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined by Section 424(e) of the

Code.
 
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
 
“Subsidiary” means a subsidiary corporation of the Company, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in

Section 424(f) of the Code.
 
“Termination of Service” means (a) in the case of an Employee, a cessation of the employee-employer relationship between

the Employee and the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary for any reason, including, but not by way of limitation, a termination by
resignation, discharge, death, disability, or the disaffiliation of a Parent or Subsidiary, but excluding any such termination where there
is a simultaneous reemployment by the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary; (b) in the case of a Consultant, a cessation of the service
relationship between the Consultant and the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary for any reason, including, but not by way of
limitation, a termination by resignation, discharge, death, disability, or the disaffiliation of a Parent or Subsidiary, but excluding any
such termination where there is a simultaneous re-
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engagement of the Consultant by the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary; and (c) in the case of a Director, a cessation of the Director’s
service on the Board of Directors for any reason, including, for example, but not by way of limitation, a termination by resignation,
removal, death, disability, expiration of the term of directorship, but excluding any such termination where there is a simultaneous
reemployment by the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary.

 
THE DETAILS OF YOUR OPTION ARE AS FOLLOWS:
 
1.             Nature Of The Option
 

The Option is intended to be a “Nonstatutory Stock Option” subject to the provisions of Section 1.83-7 of the Treasury
Regulations promulgated under Section 83 of the Code.

 
The Option Price is $5.61 for each Share.
 

2.             Vesting And Exercise Of Option
 

(a)  During the term of this Option, it will vest and become exercisable while the Optionee remains in Continuous
Service (except as otherwise provided in this Section 2) as to 1/24 of the Shares at the end of each successive calendar month
following the Grant Date (with November 30, 2007 being the first such date); provided that in the event of a Corporate Transaction,
this Option automatically will vest and become exercisable in full immediately prior to the consummation of the Corporate
Transaction.

 
(b)  In the event of the Optionee’s death, disability or other termination of employment, the Option shall be

exercisable in the manner and to the extent provided below:
 

(i)  Termination of Status as Employee, Director or Consultant.  If the Optionee’s Continuous Service shall
cease for any reason other than permanent and total disability or death, the Optionee may, but only within 90 days
after the date of Termination of Service, exercise the Option to the extent that the Optionee was entitled to exercise
it at the date of Termination of Service, subject to the condition that no Option shall be exercised after the expiration
of the Term (as defined in Section 6) of the Option.

 
(ii)  Disability of the Optionee.  If the Optionee’s Continuous Service shall cease due to disability, and the

Optionee was in Continuous Service as an Employee, Director or Consultant from the Grant Date until the date of
Termination of Service, the Option may be exercised at any time within 12 months following the date of
Termination of Service, but only to the extent that the Optionee was entitled to exercise the Option at the time of
Termination of Service, subject to the condition that no option shall be exercised after the expiration of the Term of
the Option.

 
(iii)  Death of the Optionee.  In the event of the death of the Optionee during the Term of the Option while

the Optionee is an Employee, Non-Employee Director or Consultant and in Continuous Service from the Grant Date
until the date of death, the Option may be exercised at any time within six months
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following the date of death by the Optionee’s estate or by a person who acquired the right to exercise the Option by
bequest, inheritance or otherwise as a result of the Optionee’s death, but only to the extent that the Optionee would
have been entitled to exercise the Option at the date of death, subject to the condition that no option shall be
exercised after the expiration of the Term of the Option.

 
(c)  No fraction of a Share shall be purchasable or deliverable upon exercise, but in the event any adjustment of the

number of Shares covered by the Option shall cause such number to include a fraction of a Share, such number of Shares shall be
adjusted to the nearest smaller whole number of Shares.

 
(d)  In order to exercise any portion of this Option that has vested, the Optionee shall notify the Company in writing

of the election to exercise the Option and the number of Shares in respect of which the Option is being exercised, by executing and
delivering the Notice of Exercise of Stock Option in the form attached hereto as Appendix I.  The certificate or certificates
representing Shares as to which this Option has been exercised shall be registered in the name of the Optionee. Or, the optionee shall
notify the Company through his broker if he chooses to exercises the Option through a brokerage firm.

 
3.             Non-Transferability Of Option
 

As approved by the Committee, any vested portion of the Option may be transferred by the Optionee through a gift or
domestic relations order in settlement of marital property rights to the following donees or transferees:

 
(a)  any “family member,” which includes any child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse,

former spouse, sibling, niece, nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law,
including adoptive relations, and any person sharing the employee’s household (other than a tenant or employee);

 
(b)  a trust in which “family members” have more than 50% of the beneficial interest;
 
(c)  a foundation in which “family members” or the employee control the management of assets; and
 
(d)  any other entity in which the “family members” (or the employee) own more than 50% of the voting interests;
 

provided that (x) there may be no consideration for any such transfer, (y) this Agreement, and any amendment hereto, must be
approved by the Committee, and must expressly provide for transferability in a manner consistent with this Section 3, and
(z) subsequent transfers of the Option or transferred portion shall be prohibited except transfers effected in accordance with this
Section 3.  Following the transfer, the Option or transferred portion shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions as
were applicable immediately prior to transfer, provided that the term “Optionee” shall be deemed to refer to the transferee in lieu of
or in addition to the transferor. Any Termination of Service of the Optionee shall be applied with respect to the original Optionee,
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following which the Options shall be exercisable by the transferee only to the extent and for the periods specified in this Agreement.
 

Otherwise, this Option may be transferred only by will or by the law of descent and distribution.  The terms of this Option
shall be binding upon the executors, administrators, heirs and successors of the Optionee.

 
4.             Method Of Payment
 

Payment of the exercise price shall be by any of the following, or a combination thereof, at the election of the Optionee:
 

(a)  cash;
 
(b)  check, cashier’s check, certified check or wire transfer;
 
(c)  in the event there exists a public market for the Company’s Common Stock on the date of exercise, by delivery

of a sell order to a broker for the Shares being purchased and an agreement to pay (or have the broker remit payment for) the purchase
price of the shares being purchased on or before the settlement date for the sale of such Shares to the broker; or

 
(d)  in the event there exists a public market for the Company’s Common Stock on the date of exercise, by surrender

of shares of the Company’s Common Stock.  In this case payment shall be made as follows:
 

(i)  the Optionee shall deliver to the Secretary of the Company a written notice which shall set forth the
portion of the purchase price the Optionee wishes to pay with Common Stock, and the number of shares of Common
Stock the Optionee intends to surrender upon the exercise of this Option, which shall be determined by dividing the
aforementioned portion of the purchase price by the closing price per share of the Common Stock of the Company,
as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market (or on any other national securities exchange or other established
market on which the Common Stock is then listed), on the last business day immediately preceding the date of
exercise of the Option, as determined by the Committee;

 
(ii)  fractional shares shall be disregarded and the Optionee shall pay in cash an amount equal to such

fraction multiplied by the price determined under subparagraph i above;
 
(iii)  the written notice shall be accompanied by a duly endorsed blank stock power with respect to the

number of shares of Common Stock set forth in the notice, and the certificate(s) representing said shares shall be
delivered to the Company at its principal offices within three working days from the date of the notice of exercise;

 
(iv)  the Optionee hereby authorizes and directs the Secretary of the Company to transfer so many of the

shares of Common Stock represented by such
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certificate(s) as are necessary to pay the purchase price in accordance with the provisions herein; and

 
(v)  notwithstanding any other provision herein, the Optionee shall only be permitted to pay the purchase

price with shares of Common Stock owned by him as of the exercise date in the manner and within the time periods
allowed under 17 CFR Section 240.16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, as such regulation is presently
constituted, as it is amended from time to time, and as it is interpreted now or hereafter by the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

 
(vi)  the Optionee may elect to pay the exercise price by authorizing a third party to sell Shares subject to

the Option and remit to the Company a sufficient portion of the sale proceeds to pay the entire exercise price and
any tax withholding resulting from such exercise.

 
5.             Adjustments Upon Changes In Capitalization
 

(a)  Recapitalization.  Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the Company, the number of Shares
covered by the Option and the per share exercise price of the Option, shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in
the number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, combination, reclassification, the
payment of a stock dividend on the Common Stock or any other increase or decrease in the number of such shares of Common Stock
effected without receipt of consideration by the Company; provided, however, that conversion of any convertible securities of the
Company shall not be deemed to have been effected without receipt of consideration. Such adjustment shall be made by the Board of
Directors, whose determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive. Except as expressly provided herein, no issue by
the Company of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into shares of stock of any class, shall affect, and no adjustment
by reason thereof shall be made with respect to, the number or price of shares of Common Stock subject to an Option.

 
(b)  Corporate Transaction.  In the event of a proposed Corporate Transaction, the Board of Directors shall notify the

Optionee at least 10 calendar days prior to such proposed Corporate Transaction.  To the extent it has not been previously exercised,
the Option will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed Corporate Transaction (but subsequent to the full
vesting acceleration provided in Section 2(a)), unless the Option is assumed or an equivalent option is substituted by the successor
corporation or a parent or subsidiary of such successor corporation. For the purposes of this subsection, the Option shall be considered
assumed if, following the Corporate Transaction, the Option confers the right to purchase, for each Share subject to the Option
immediately prior to the Corporate Transaction, the consideration (whether stock, cash, or other securities or property) received in the
Corporate Transaction by holders of Common Stock for each Share subject to the Option held on the effective date of the Corporate
Transaction (and if holders were offered a choice of consideration, the type of consideration chosen by the holders of a majority of the
outstanding Shares); provided, however, that if such consideration received in the Corporate Transaction was not solely common stock
of the successor corporation or its parent or subsidiary, the Board of Directors may, with the consent of the successor corporation,
provide for the consideration to be
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received upon the exercise of the Option for each Share subject to the Option to be solely common stock of the successor corporation
or its parent or subsidiary equal in fair market value to the per share consideration received by the Company’s holders of Common
Stock in the Corporate Transaction.

 
6.             Term Of Option
 

This Option may not be exercised more than seven years from the date of grant of this Option (the “Term”), as set forth
below, and may be exercised during such term only in accordance with  the terms of this Option.

 
7.             Not Employment Contract
 

Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon the Optionee any right to continue in the employ or other service with the
Company or any Parent or Subsidiary or shall interfere with or restrict in any way the rights of the Company (or any Parent or
Subsidiary), which are hereby expressly reserved, to discharge the Optionee at any time for any reason whatsoever, with or without
cause, subject to the provisions of applicable law.  This is not an employment contract.

 
8.             Income Tax Withholding
 

(a)  Whenever Shares are issued or to be issued pursuant to the Option, the Company shall have the right to require
the recipient to remit to the Company an amount sufficient to satisfy federal, state, local or other withholding tax requirements if,
when, and to the extent required by law (whether so required to secure for the Company an otherwise available tax deduction or
otherwise) prior to the delivery of any certificate or certificates for such shares. The obligations of the Company under this Agreement
shall be conditional on satisfaction of all such withholding obligations and the Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the
right to deduct any such taxes from any payment of any kind otherwise due to the Optionee. However, in such cases the Optionee may
elect, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, to satisfy an applicable withholding requirement, in whole or in part, by having
the Company withhold shares to satisfy their tax obligations. The Optionee may only elect to have shares withheld having a Fair
Market Value on the date the tax is to be determined equal to the minimum statutory total tax which could be imposed on the
transaction. All elections shall be irrevocable, made in writing, signed by the Optionee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or
limitations that the Board of Directors deems appropriate.

 
In the event of any determination that the Company has failed to withhold a sum sufficient to pay all

withholding taxes due in connection with the exercise of this Option, the Optionee agrees to pay the Company the amount of such
deficiency in cash within five days after receiving a written demand from the Company to do so, whether or not Optionee is an
employee of the Company at that time.

 
(b)  At such time as the Optionee is required to pay to the Company an amount with respect to tax withholding

obligations as set forth in Section 8(a), the Optionee may elect prior to the date the amount of such withholding tax is determined to
make such payment, or such increased payment as the Optionee elects to make up to the maximum federal, state and
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local marginal tax rates (including any related FICA obligation) applicable to the Optionee and the particular transaction in accordance
with the provisions of Section 8(a).

 
(c)  Any adverse consequences incurred by an Optionee with respect to the use of shares of Common Stock to pay

any part of the Option Price or of any tax in connection with the exercise of an Option shall be the sole responsibility of the Optionee.
 

9.             Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares.
 

Shares shall not be issued with respect to the Option unless the exercise of the Option and the issuance and delivery of such
Shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all relevant provisions of law, including, without limitation, the Securities Act, the
Exchange Act, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and the requirements of any stock exchange or public trading market
upon which the Shares may then be listed, and shall be further subject to the approval of counsel for the Company with respect to such
compliance. As a condition to the exercise of the Option, the Company may require the Optionee to represent and warrant at the time
of any such exercise that the Shares are being purchased only for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute
such Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a representation is required by any of the aforementioned relevant
provisions of law.

 
10.          Notices and Other Communications.
 

Any notice, demand, request or other communication hereunder to any party shall be deemed to be sufficient if contained in a
written instrument delivered in person or duly sent by first class registered, certified or overnight mail, postage prepaid, or telecopied
with a confirmation copy by regular, certified or overnight mail, addressed or telecopied, as the case may be, (i) if to the Optionee, at
his residence address last filed with the Company and (ii) if to the Company, at its principal place of business, addressed to the
attention of its Chief Executive Officer or Secretary, or to such other address or telecopier number or electronic mail address, as the
case may be, as the addressee may have designated by notice to the addressor. All such notices, requests, demands and other
communications shall be deemed to have been received: (i) in the case of personal delivery, on the date of such delivery; (ii) in the
case of mailing, when received by the addressee; (iii) in the case of facsimile transmission, when confirmed by facsimile machine
report; and (iv) in the case of electronic mail, when directed to an electronic mail address at which the receiving party has consented to
receive notice, provided, that such consent is deemed revoked if the sender is unable to deliver by electronic transmission two
consecutive notices and such inability becomes known to the secretary or assistant secretary of the Company or to the transfer agent,
or other person responsible for giving notice.

 
Dated as of the 28th day of November 2007.

 
 

MOSYS, INC.
   
 

By: /s/ Mehdi Bathaee
 

Its: Chief Operating Officer
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OPTIONEE

 
The Optionee acknowledges receipt of copies of the Agreement and represents that he is familiar with the terms and

provisions thereof, and hereby accepts this Option subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Agreement.  The Optionee hereby
agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Board of Directors upon any questions arising
under the Agreement.

 
 

/s/ Leonard Perham
 

Optionee
  
Date: December 4, 2007

 

 
[CONSENT OF SPOUSE/DOMESTIC PARTNER

 
I, ___________________________, spouse/domestic partner of the Optionee who executed the foregoing Agreement, hereby

agree that my spouse’s/domestic partner’s interest in the shares of Common Stock subject to said Agreement shall be irrevocably
bound by the Agreement’s terms.  I further agree that my community property interest in such shares, if any, shall similarly be bound
by said Agreement and that such consent is binding upon my executors, administrators, heirs and assigns.  I agree to execute and
deliver such documents as may be necessary to carry out the intent of said Agreement and this consent.

 
 

]
 

Spouse/Domestic Partner
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APPENDIX I

 
MOSYS, INC.

 
NOTICE OF EXERCISE OF STOCK OPTION

 
I _____________________________________ (print legibly) hereby elect to exercise the following stock options(s) granted

to me by MOSYS, INC. (the “Company”).  All shares being purchased are fully vested and exercisable pursuant to Section 3 of the
listed Option Agreement.

 
1. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
2. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
3. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
4. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
 

Cashexercise in the amount of $ ____________________
Shares should be issued to me as follows:
                Name: ________________________________________________
 

 
If you choose to include your spouse, you must designate below how you wish your shares to be registered by checking the

appropriate box.  If we receive no designation, the shares will be designated as Joint Tenants.
 

                                               ________ Joint Tenants                                                                                                                                                                                                            ________ Community Property
                                               ________ Tenants in Common                                                                                                                                                                     ________ Tenancy by Entirety
 

 
Verification by__________________________________________Stock Administration
 
Certificate to be delivered to (complete item 1 or 2 below)
1.             Employee ________                                                     Home Address:    __________________________________________________________
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              __________________________________________________________
2.             (Insert Name of Second Broker)  ________________________________________________
                                                Acct #:  ________________________________________________
                Contact Name & Number: ________________________________________________
 

 

Signature: ________________________________________ Date: ________________________________________

Social Security No.: ___________________________________________

[For Company Use Only]
 

As of the date set forth above, the above named person has the vested right to exercise the number of shares set forth above.

Date: ____________________________                                                          ____________________________________________

 
Amount due Company: $ ____________
 

 

MoSys, Inc.
 

755 N. Mathilda Avenue
 

Sunnyvale, California 94085
 

(408) 731-1800
 

Attn: Stock Administration
 

 

 
NEW EMPLOYEE INDUCEMENT GRANT STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

 
TO:  Leonard Perham (the “Optionee”):
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MoSys, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby grants to Optionee an option (“Option”) to purchase a total of

Three Hundred Fifty Thousand (350,000) shares of Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share (“Shares”), of the Company, at the price
set forth herein.
 
DEFINITIONS FOR CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
 

“Agreement” means this Stock Option Incentive Grant Agreement.
 
“Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
 
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
 
“Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company, par value $.01 per share.
 
“Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.
 
“Consultant” means any independent contractor retained to perform services for the Company or a Subsidiary.
 
“Continuous Service” means the absence of any interruption or termination of service as an Employee, Director or

Consultant by the Company, a Parent, or any Subsidiary. Continuous Service shall not be considered interrupted during any period of
(i) any leave of absence approved by the Company or (ii) transfers between locations of the Company or between the Company and
any Parent, Subsidiary or successor of the Company. A leave of absence approved by the Company shall include sick leave, military
leave or any other personal leave approved by an authorized representative of the Company.

 
“Corporate Transaction” means:
 

(a)  an acquisition after the Grant Date by an individual, an entity or a group in one or more related transactions
(excluding the Company or an employee benefit plan of the Company or a corporation controlled by the Company’s stockholders) of
beneficial ownership of 45 percent or more of the Company’s common stock or voting securities; or

 
(b)  consummation of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company or a merger, consolidation,

reorganization or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets (collectively, a “Business Combination”) after the Grant Date,
other than a Business Combination in which (A) the stockholders of the Company receive beneficial ownership of 50 percent or more
of the stock of the corporation resulting from the Business Combination and (B) at least a majority of the board of directors of such
resulting corporation were incumbent directors of the Company immediately prior to the consummation of the Business Combination,
and (C) after which no individual, entity or group (excluding any corporation or other entity resulting from the Business Combination
or any employee benefit plan of such corporation or of the Company) who did not have beneficial ownership of 45 percent or more of
the stock of the
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resulting corporation or other entity immediately before the Business Combination has beneficial ownership of 45 percent or more of
the stock of such resulting corporation or other entity.
 

For this purpose, “beneficial ownership” refers to ownership of a security, directly or indirectly, by any person or
entity who through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise has or shares (1) voting power, which includes
the power to vote, or to direct the voting of, such security, and/or (2) investment power, which include the power to dispose, or to
direct the disposition of, such security, and shall be determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations
under the Exchange Act.

 
“Director” means a director of the Company.
 
“Employee” means any person, including officers (whether or not they are directors), employed by the Company, a Parent or

any Subsidiary.
 
“Exchange Act” means Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 
“Fair Market Value” of Common Stock as of any date is the closing price for the Common Stock as reported on the

NASDAQ Global Market (or on any other national securities exchange or other established market on which the Common Stock is
then listed) for that date or, if no closing price is reported for that date, the closing price on the next preceding date for which a closing
price was reported.

 
“Grant Date” means, with respect to the Option, November 8, 2007.
 
“Non-Employee Director” means a Director of the Company who qualifies as a Non-Employee Director as such term is

defined in Section 240.16b-3(b)(3) of the General Rules and Regulations promulgated under the Exchange Act.
 
“Parent” means a parent corporation of the Company, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined by Section 424(e) of the

Code.
 
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
 
“Stock Price” means the average closing price of a share of the Common Stock on the NASDAQ Global Market (or on any

other national securities exchange or other established market on which the Common Stock is then listed) during a consecutive
90-calendar day period within the first two years following the Grant Date; provided that in the case of a Corporate Transaction such
determination shall be made as of the 90-calendar day period ending on the third business day immediately preceding the date on
which the Corporation Transaction is consummated.

 
“Subsidiary” means a subsidiary corporation of the Company, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in

Section 424(f) of the Code.
 
“Termination of Service” means (a) in the case of an Employee, a cessation of the employee-employer relationship between

the Employee and the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary for any reason, including, but not by way of limitation, a termination by
resignation,
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discharge, death, disability, or the disaffiliation of a Parent or Subsidiary, but excluding any such termination where there is a
simultaneous reemployment by the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary; (b) in the case of a Consultant, a cessation of the service
relationship between the Consultant and the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary for any reason, including, but not by way of
limitation, a termination by resignation, discharge, death, disability, or the disaffiliation of a Parent or Subsidiary, but excluding any
such termination where there is a simultaneous re-engagement of the Consultant by the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary; and (c) in
the case of a Director, a cessation of the Director’s service on the Board of Directors for any reason, including, for example, but not by
way of limitation, a termination by resignation, removal, death, disability, expiration of the term of directorship, but excluding any
such termination where there is a simultaneous reemployment by the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary.
 
THE DETAILS OF YOUR OPTION ARE AS FOLLOWS:
 
11.                                Nature Of The Option
 

The Option is intended to be a “Nonstatutory Stock Option” subject to the provisions of Section 1.83-7 of the Treasury
Regulations promulgated under Section 83 of the Code.
 

The Option Price is $5.61 for each Share.
 
12.                               Vesting And Exercise Of Option
 

(a)  During the term of this Option, it will vest and become exercisable while the Optionee remains in Continuous
Service (except as otherwise provided in this Section 2) as to 280,000 Shares if the Stock Price is $10.00 and ratably as to the
remaining 70,000 of the Shares for each one cent increase in the Stock Price up to $12.00 per share (which equals 350 Shares for each
one cent increase).  By way of example, if the Stock Price is $11.75, the Option would vest and become exercisable with respect to
341,250, or 97.5%, of the Shares.

 
(b)  In the event of the Optionee’s death, disability or other termination of employment, the Option shall be

exercisable in the manner and to the extent provided below:
 

(i)  Termination of Status as Employee, Director or Consultant.  If the Optionee’s Continuous Service shall
cease for any reason other than permanent and total disability or death, the Optionee may, but only within 90 days
after the date of Termination of Service, exercise the Option to the extent that the Optionee was entitled to exercise
it at the date of Termination of Service, subject to the condition that no Option shall be exercised after the expiration
of the Term (as defined in Section 6) of the Option.

 
(ii)  Disability of the Optionee.  If the Optionee’s Continuous Service shall cease due to disability, and the

Optionee was in Continuous Service as an Employee, Director or Consultant from the Grant Date until the date of
Termination of Service, the Option may be exercised at any time within 12 months following the date of
Termination of Service, but only to the extent that the Optionee was entitled to exercise the Option at the time of
Termination of Service, subject to the condition that no option shall be exercised after the expiration of the Term of
the Option.
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(iii)  Death of the Optionee.  In the event of the death of the Optionee during the Term of the Option while

the Optionee is an Employee, Non-Employee Director or Consultant and in Continuous Service from the Grant Date
until the date of death, the Option may be exercised at any time within six months following the date of death by the
Optionee’s estate or by a person who acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest, inheritance or otherwise
as a result of the Optionee’s death, but only to the extent that the Optionee would have been entitled to exercise the
Option at the date of death, subject to the condition that no option shall be exercised after the expiration of the Term
of the Option.

 
(c)  No fraction of a Share shall be purchasable or deliverable upon exercise, but in the event any adjustment of the

number of Shares covered by the Option shall cause such number to include a fraction of a Share, such number of Shares shall be
adjusted to the nearest smaller whole number of Shares.
 

(d)  In order to exercise any portion of this Option that has vested, the Optionee shall notify the Company in writing
of the election to exercise the Option and the number of Shares in respect of which the Option is being exercised, by executing and
delivering the Notice of Exercise of Stock Option in the form attached hereto as Appendix I.  The certificate or certificates
representing Shares as to which this Option has been exercised shall be registered in the name of the Optionee. Or, the optionee shall
notify the Company through his broker if he chooses to exercises the Option through a brokerage firm.
 
13.                               Non-Transferability Of Option
 

As approved by the Committee, any vested portion of the Option may be transferred by the Optionee through a gift or
domestic relations order in settlement of marital property rights to the following donees or transferees:
 

(a)  any “family member,” which includes any child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse,
former spouse, sibling, niece, nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law,
including adoptive relations, and any person sharing the employee’s household (other than a tenant or employee);

 
(b)  a trust in which “family members” have more than 50% of the beneficial interest;
 
(c)  a foundation in which “family members” or the employee control the management of assets; and
 
(d)  any other entity in which the “family members” (or the employee) own more than 50% of the voting interests;
 

provided that (x) there may be no consideration for any such transfer, (y) this Agreement, and any amendment hereto, must be
approved by the Committee, and must expressly provide for transferability in a manner consistent with this Section 3, and
(z) subsequent transfers of the Option or transferred portion shall be prohibited except transfers effected in accordance with this
Section 3.  Following the transfer, the Option or transferred portion shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions as
were applicable immediately prior to transfer, provided that the term “Optionee” shall be deemed to refer to the transferee in lieu of or
in addition to the transferor. Any Termination of Service of the Optionee shall be applied with respect to the original Optionee,
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following which the Options shall be exercisable by the transferee only to the extent and for the periods specified in this Agreement.
 

Otherwise, this Option may be transferred only by will or by the law of descent and distribution.  The terms of this Option
shall be binding upon the executors, administrators, heirs and successors of the Optionee.
 
14.                               Method Of Payment
 

Payment of the exercise price shall be by any of the following, or a combination thereof, at the election of the Optionee:
 

(a)  cash;
 

(b)  check, cashier’s check, certified check or wire transfer;
 

(c)  in the event there exists a public market for the Company’s Common Stock on the date of exercise, by delivery
of a sell order to a broker for the Shares being purchased and an agreement to pay (or have the broker remit payment for) the purchase
price of the shares being purchased on or before the settlement date for the sale of such Shares to the broker; or
 

(d)  in the event there exists a public market for the Company’s Common Stock on the date of exercise, by surrender
of shares of the Company’s Common Stock.  In this case payment shall be made as follows:
 

(i)  the Optionee shall deliver to the Secretary of the Company a written notice which shall set forth the
portion of the purchase price the Optionee wishes to pay with Common Stock, and the number of shares of Common
Stock the Optionee intends to surrender upon the exercise of this Option, which shall be determined by dividing the
aforementioned portion of the purchase price by the closing price per share of the Common Stock of the Company,
as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market (or on any other national securities exchange or other established
market on which the Common Stock is then listed), on the last business day immediately preceding the date of
exercise of the Option, as determined by the Committee;

 
(ii)  fractional shares shall be disregarded and the Optionee shall pay in cash an amount equal to such

fraction multiplied by the price determined under subparagraph i above;
 

(iii)  the written notice shall be accompanied by a duly endorsed blank stock power with respect to the
number of shares of Common Stock set forth in the notice, and the certificate(s) representing said shares shall be
delivered to the Company at its principal offices within three working days from the date of the notice of exercise;

 
(iv)  the Optionee hereby authorizes and directs the Secretary of the Company to transfer so many of the

shares of Common Stock represented by such certificate(s) as are necessary to pay the purchase price in accordance
with the provisions herein; and
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(v)  notwithstanding any other provision herein, the Optionee shall only be permitted to pay the purchase

price with shares of Common Stock owned by him as of the exercise date in the manner and within the time periods
allowed under 17 CFR Section 240.16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, as such regulation is presently
constituted, as it is amended from time to time, and as it is interpreted now or hereafter by the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

 
(vi)  the Optionee may elect to pay the exercise price by authorizing a third party to sell Shares subject to

the Option and remit to the Company a sufficient portion of the sale proceeds to pay the entire exercise price and
any tax withholding resulting from such exercise.

 
15.                               Adjustments Upon Changes In Capitalization
 

(a)  Recapitalization.  Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the Company, the number of Shares
covered by the Option and the per share exercise price of the Option, shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in
the number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, combination, reclassification, the
payment of a stock dividend on the Common Stock or any other increase or decrease in the number of such shares of Common Stock
effected without receipt of consideration by the Company; provided, however, that conversion of any convertible securities of the
Company shall not be deemed to have been effected without receipt of consideration. Such adjustment shall be made by the Board of
Directors, whose determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive. Except as expressly provided herein, no issue by
the Company of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into shares of stock of any class, shall affect, and no adjustment
by reason thereof shall be made with respect to, the number or price of shares of Common Stock subject to an Option.
 

(b)  Corporate Transaction.  In the event of a proposed Corporate Transaction, the Board of Directors shall notify the
Optionee at least 10 calendar days prior to such proposed Corporate Transaction.  To the extent it has not been previously exercised,
the Option will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed Corporate Transaction (but subsequent to the full
vesting acceleration provided in Section 2(a)), unless the Option is assumed or an equivalent option is substituted by the successor
corporation or a parent or subsidiary of such successor corporation. For the purposes of this subsection, the Option shall be considered
assumed if, following the Corporate Transaction, the Option confers the right to purchase, for each Share subject to the Option
immediately prior to the Corporate Transaction, the consideration (whether stock, cash, or other securities or property) received in the
Corporate Transaction by holders of Common Stock for each Share subject to the Option held on the effective date of the Corporate
Transaction (and if holders were offered a choice of consideration, the type of consideration chosen by the holders of a majority of the
outstanding Shares); provided, however, that if such consideration received in the Corporate Transaction was not solely common stock
of the successor corporation or its parent or subsidiary, the Board of Directors may, with the consent of the successor corporation,
provide for the consideration to be received upon the exercise of the Option for each Share subject to the Option to be solely common
stock of the successor corporation or its parent or subsidiary equal in fair market value to the per share consideration received by the
Company’s holders of Common Stock in the Corporate Transaction.
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16.                               Term Of Option
 

This Option may not be exercised more than seven years from the date of grant of this Option (the “Term”), as set forth
below, and may be exercised during such term only in accordance with  the terms of this Option.
 
17.                               Not Employment Contract
 

Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon the Optionee any right to continue in the employ or other service with the
Company or any Parent or Subsidiary or shall interfere with or restrict in any way the rights of the Company (or any Parent or
Subsidiary), which are hereby expressly reserved, to discharge the Optionee at any time for any reason whatsoever, with or without
cause, subject to the provisions of applicable law.  This is not an employment contract.
 
18.                               Income Tax Withholding
 

(a)  Whenever Shares are issued or to be issued pursuant to the Option, the Company shall have the right to require
the recipient to remit to the Company an amount sufficient to satisfy federal, state, local or other withholding tax requirements if,
when, and to the extent required by law (whether so required to secure for the Company an otherwise available tax deduction or
otherwise) prior to the delivery of any certificate or certificates for such shares. The obligations of the Company under this Agreement
shall be conditional on satisfaction of all such withholding obligations and the Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the
right to deduct any such taxes from any payment of any kind otherwise due to the Optionee. However, in such cases the Optionee may
elect, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, to satisfy an applicable withholding requirement, in whole or in part, by having
the Company withhold shares to satisfy their tax obligations. The Optionee may only elect to have shares withheld having a Fair
Market Value on the date the tax is to be determined equal to the minimum statutory total tax which could be imposed on the
transaction. All elections shall be irrevocable, made in writing, signed by the Optionee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or
limitations that the Board of Directors deems appropriate.
 

In the event of any determination that the Company has failed to withhold a sum sufficient to pay all withholding taxes due in
connection with the exercise of this Option, the Optionee agrees to pay the Company the amount of such deficiency in cash within five
days after receiving a written demand from the Company to do so, whether or not Optionee is an employee of the Company at that
time.
 

(b)  At such time as the Optionee is required to pay to the Company an amount with respect to tax withholding
obligations as set forth in Section 8(a), the Optionee may elect prior to the date the amount of such withholding tax is determined to
make such payment, or such increased payment as the Optionee elects to make up to the maximum federal, state and local marginal
tax rates (including any related FICA obligation) applicable to the Optionee and the particular transaction in accordance with the
provisions of Section 8(a).
 

(c)  Any adverse consequences incurred by an Optionee with respect to the use of shares of Common Stock to pay
any part of the Option Price or of any tax in connection with the exercise of an Option shall be the sole responsibility of the Optionee.
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19.                               Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares.
 

Shares shall not be issued with respect to the Option unless the exercise of the Option and the issuance and delivery of such
Shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all relevant provisions of law, including, without limitation, the Securities Act, the
Exchange Act, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and the requirements of any stock exchange or public trading market
upon which the Shares may then be listed, and shall be further subject to the approval of counsel for the Company with respect to such
compliance. As a condition to the exercise of the Option, the Company may require the Optionee to represent and warrant at the time
of any such exercise that the Shares are being purchased only for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute
such Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a representation is required by any of the aforementioned relevant
provisions of law.
 
20.                               Notices and Other Communications.
 

Any notice, demand, request or other communication hereunder to any party shall be deemed to be sufficient if contained in a
written instrument delivered in person or duly sent by first class registered, certified or overnight mail, postage prepaid, or telecopied
with a confirmation copy by regular, certified or overnight mail, addressed or telecopied, as the case may be, (i) if to the Optionee, at
his residence address last filed with the Company and (ii) if to the Company, at its principal place of business, addressed to the
attention of its Chief Executive Officer or Secretary, or to such other address or telecopier number or electronic mail address, as the
case may be, as the addressee may have designated by notice to the addressor. All such notices, requests, demands and other
communications shall be deemed to have been received: (i) in the case of personal delivery, on the date of such delivery; (ii) in the
case of mailing, when received by the addressee; (iii) in the case of facsimile transmission, when confirmed by facsimile machine
report; and (iv) in the case of electronic mail, when directed to an electronic mail address at which the receiving party has consented to
receive notice, provided, that such consent is deemed revoked if the sender is unable to deliver by electronic transmission two
consecutive notices and such inability becomes known to the secretary or assistant secretary of the Company or to the transfer agent,
or other person responsible for giving notice.
 
Dated as of the 28th day of November 2007.
 
 

 

MOSYS, INC.
   
   
 

By: /s/ Mehdi Bathaee
   
   
 

Its: Chief Operating Officer
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OPTIONEE

 
The Optionee acknowledges receipt of copies of the Agreement and represents that he is familiar with the terms and

provisions thereof, and hereby accepts this Option subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Agreement.  The Optionee hereby
agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Board of Directors upon any questions arising
under the Agreement.
 

 

/s/ Leonard Perham
 

Optionee
  
  

Date: December 4, 2007
 

 
 
 

[CONSENT OF SPOUSE/DOMESTIC PARTNER
 

I, __________________________, spouse/domestic partner of the Optionee who executed the foregoing Agreement, hereby
agree that my spouse’s/domestic partner’s interest in the shares of Common Stock subject to said Agreement shall be irrevocably
bound by the Agreement’s terms.  I further agree that my community property interest in such shares, if any, shall similarly be bound
by said Agreement and that such consent is binding upon my executors, administrators, heirs and assigns.  I agree to execute and
deliver such documents as may be necessary to carry out the intent of said Agreement and this consent.
 
 

 

]
 

Spouse/Domestic Partner
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APPENDIX I

 
MOSYS, INC.

 
NOTICE OF EXERCISE OF STOCK OPTION

 
I _____________________________________ (print legibly) hereby elect to exercise the following stock options(s) granted

to me by MOSYS, INC. (the “Company”).  All shares being purchased are fully vested and exercisable pursuant to Section 3 of the
listed Option Agreement.

 
1. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
2. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
3. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
4. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
 

Cash exercise in the amount of $ ____________________
Shares should be issued to me as follows:
                Name: ________________________________________________
 

 
If you choose to include your spouse, you must designate below how you wish your shares to be registered by checking the

appropriate box.  If we receive no designation, the shares will be designated as Joint Tenants.
 

                                                ________ Joint Tenants                                                                                                                                                                                                             ________ Community Property
                                                ________ Tenants in Common                                                                                                                                                                      ________ Tenancy by Entirety
 

 
Verification by__________________________________________Stock Administration
 
Certificate to be delivered to (complete item 1 or 2 below)
1.              Employee ________                                                      Home Address:    __________________________________________________________
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               __________________________________________________________
2.              (Insert Name of Second Broker)  ________________________________________________
                                                Acct #:  ________________________________________________
                Contact Name & Number: ________________________________________________
 

 

Signature: ________________________________________ Date: ________________________________________

Social Security No.: ___________________________________________

[For Company Use Only]
 

As of the date set forth above, the above named person has the vested right to exercise the number of shares set forth above.

Date: ____________________________                                                          ____________________________________________

 
Amount due Company: $ ____________
 

 

MoSys, Inc.
 

755 N. Mathilda Avenue
 

Sunnyvale, California 94085
 

(408) 731-1800
 

Attn: Stock Administration
 

 

 
NEW EMPLOYEE INDUCEMENT GRANT STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

 
TO:  Leonard Perham (the “Optionee”):

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



 
MoSys, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby grants to Optionee an option (“Option”) to purchase a total of

One Hundred Thousand (100,000) shares of Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share (“Shares”), of the Company, at the price set
forth herein.
 
DEFINITIONS FOR CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
 

“Agreement” means this Stock Option Incentive Grant Agreement.
 
“Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
 
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
 
“Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company, par value $.01 per share.
 
“Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.
 
“Consultant” means any independent contractor retained to perform services for the Company or a Subsidiary.
 
“Continuous Service” means the absence of any interruption or termination of service as an Employee, Director or

Consultant by the Company, a Parent, or any Subsidiary. Continuous Service shall not be considered interrupted during any period of
(i) any leave of absence approved by the Company or (ii) transfers between locations of the Company or between the Company and
any Parent, Subsidiary or successor of the Company. A leave of absence approved by the Company shall include sick leave, military
leave or any other personal leave approved by an authorized representative of the Company.
 

“Corporate Transaction” means:
 

(a)  an acquisition after the Grant Date by an individual, an entity or a group in one or more related transactions
(excluding the Company or an employee benefit plan of the Company or a corporation controlled by the Company’s stockholders) of
beneficial ownership of 45 percent or more of the Company’s common stock or voting securities; or
 

(b)  consummation of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company or a merger, consolidation,
reorganization or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets (collectively, a “Business Combination”) after the Grant Date,
other than a Business Combination in which (A) the stockholders of the Company receive beneficial ownership of 50 percent or more
of the stock of the corporation resulting from the Business Combination and (B) at least a majority of the board of directors of such
resulting corporation were incumbent directors of the Company immediately prior to the consummation of the Business Combination,
and (C) after which no individual, entity or group (excluding any corporation or other entity resulting from the Business Combination
or any employee benefit plan of such corporation or of the Company) who did not have beneficial ownership of 45 percent or more of
the stock of the
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resulting corporation or other entity immediately before the Business Combination has beneficial ownership of 45 percent or more of
the stock of such resulting corporation or other entity.
 

For this purpose, “beneficial ownership” refers to ownership of a security, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity who
through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise has or shares (1) voting power, which includes the power
to vote, or to direct the voting of, such security, and/or (2) investment power, which include the power to dispose, or to direct the
disposition of, such security, and shall be determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the
Exchange Act.
 

“Director” means a director of the Company.
 
“Employee” means any person, including officers (whether or not they are directors), employed by the Company, a Parent or

any Subsidiary.
 
“Exchange Act” means Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 
“Fair Market Value” of Common Stock as of any date is the closing price for the Common Stock as reported on the

NASDAQ Global Market (or on any other national securities exchange or other established market on which the Common Stock is
then listed) for that date or, if no closing price is reported for that date, the closing price on the next preceding date for which a closing
price was reported.

 
“Grant Date” means, with respect to the Option, November 8, 2007.
 
“Non-Employee Director” means a Director of the Company who qualifies as a Non-Employee Director as such term is

defined in Section 240.16b-3(b)(3) of the General Rules and Regulations promulgated under the Exchange Act.
 
“Parent” means a parent corporation of the Company, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined by Section 424(e) of the

Code.
 
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
 
“Stock Price” means the average closing price of a share of the Common Stock on the NASDAQ Global Market (or on any

other national securities exchange or other established market on which the Common Stock is then listed) during a consecutive
90-calendar day period within the first two years following the Grant Date; provided that in the case of a Corporate Transaction such
determination shall be made as of the 90-calendar day period ending on the third business day immediately preceding the date on
which the Corporation Transaction is consummated.

 
“Subsidiary” means a subsidiary corporation of the Company, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in

Section 424(f) of the Code.
 
“Termination of Service” means (a) in the case of an Employee, a cessation of the employee-employer relationship between

the Employee and the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary for any reason, including, but not by way of limitation, a termination by
resignation, discharge, death, disability, or the disaffiliation of a Parent or Subsidiary, but excluding any such
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termination where there is a simultaneous reemployment by the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary; (b) in the case of a Consultant, a
cessation of the service relationship between the Consultant and the Company or a Parent or Subsidiary for any reason, including, but
not by way of limitation, a termination by resignation, discharge, death, disability, or the disaffiliation of a Parent or Subsidiary, but
excluding any such termination where there is a simultaneous re-engagement of the Consultant by the Company or a Parent or
Subsidiary; and (c) in the case of a Director, a cessation of the Director’s service on the Board of Directors for any reason, including,
for example, but not by way of limitation, a termination by resignation, removal, death, disability, expiration of the term of
directorship, but excluding any such termination where there is a simultaneous reemployment by the Company or a Parent or
Subsidiary.

 
THE DETAILS OF YOUR OPTION ARE AS FOLLOWS:
 
21.                              Nature Of The Option
 

The Option is intended to be a “Nonstatutory Stock Option” subject to the provisions of Section 1.83-7 of the Treasury
Regulations promulgated under Section 83 of the Code.
 

The Option Price is $5.61 for each Share.
 
22.                              Vesting And Exercise Of Option
 

(a)  During the term of this Option, it will vest and become exercisable while the Optionee remains in Continuous
Service (except as otherwise provided in this Section 2) as to 50,000 Shares if the Stock Price is $13.00 and ratably as to the remaining
50,000 of the Shares for each one cent increase in the Stock Price up to $15.00 per share (which equals 250 Shares for each one cent
increase).  By way of example, if the Stock Price is $13.75, the Option would vest and become exercisable with respect to 68,750, or
68.75%, of the Shares.
 

(b)  In the event of the Optionee’s death, disability or other termination of employment, the Option shall be
exercisable in the manner and to the extent provided below:
 

(i)  Termination of Status as Employee, Director or Consultant.  If the Optionee’s Continuous Service shall
cease for any reason other than permanent and total disability or death, the Optionee may, but only within 90 days
after the date of Termination of Service, exercise the Option to the extent that the Optionee was entitled to exercise
it at the date of Termination of Service, subject to the condition that no Option shall be exercised after the expiration
of the Term (as defined in Section 6) of the Option.

 
(ii)  Disability of the Optionee.  If the Optionee’s Continuous Service shall cease due to disability, and the

Optionee was in Continuous Service as an Employee, Director or Consultant from the Grant Date until the date of
Termination of Service, the Option may be exercised at any time within 12 months following the date of
Termination of Service, but only to the extent that the Optionee was entitled to exercise the Option at the time of
Termination of Service, subject to the condition that no option shall be exercised after the expiration of the Term of
the Option.

 
(iii)  Death of the Optionee.  In the event of the death of the Optionee during the Term of the Option while

the Optionee is an Employee, Non-Employee
 

 
4

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



 
Director or Consultant and in Continuous Service from the Grant Date until the date of death, the Option may be
exercised at any time within six months following the date of death by the Optionee’s estate or by a person who
acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest, inheritance or otherwise as a result of the Optionee’s death, but
only to the extent that the Optionee would have been entitled to exercise the Option at the date of death, subject to
the condition that no option shall be exercised after the expiration of the Term of the Option.

 
(c)  No fraction of a Share shall be purchasable or deliverable upon exercise, but in the event any adjustment of the

number of Shares covered by the Option shall cause such number to include a fraction of a Share, such number of Shares shall be
adjusted to the nearest smaller whole number of Shares.
 

(d)  In order to exercise any portion of this Option that has vested, the Optionee shall notify the Company in writing
of the election to exercise the Option and the number of Shares in respect of which the Option is being exercised, by executing and
delivering the Notice of Exercise of Stock Option in the form attached hereto as Appendix I.  The certificate or certificates
representing Shares as to which this Option has been exercised shall be registered in the name of the Optionee. Or, the optionee shall
notify the Company through his broker if he chooses to exercises the Option through a brokerage firm.
 
23.                              Non-Transferability Of Option
 

As approved by the Committee, any vested portion of the Option may be transferred by the Optionee through a gift or
domestic relations order in settlement of marital property rights to the following donees or transferees:
 

(a)  any “family member,” which includes any child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse,
former spouse, sibling, niece, nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law,
including adoptive relations, and any person sharing the employee’s household (other than a tenant or employee);
 

(b)  a trust in which “family members” have more than 50% of the beneficial interest;
 

(c)  a foundation in which “family members” or the employee control the management of assets; and
 

(d)  any other entity in which the “family members” (or the employee) own more than 50% of the voting interests;
 
provided that (x) there may be no consideration for any such transfer, (y) this Agreement, and any amendment hereto, must be
approved by the Committee, and must expressly provide for transferability in a manner consistent with this Section 3, and
(z) subsequent transfers of the Option or transferred portion shall be prohibited except transfers effected in accordance with this
Section 3.  Following the transfer, the Option or transferred portion shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions as
were applicable immediately prior to transfer, provided that the term “Optionee” shall be deemed to refer to the transferee in lieu of
or in addition to the transferor. Any Termination of Service of the Optionee shall be applied with respect to the original Optionee,
following which the Options shall be exercisable by the transferee only to the extent and for the periods specified in this Agreement.
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Otherwise, this Option may be transferred only by will or by the law of descent and distribution.  The terms of this Option

shall be binding upon the executors, administrators, heirs and successors of the Optionee.
 
24.                              Method Of Payment
 

Payment of the exercise price shall be by any of the following, or a combination thereof, at the election of the Optionee:
 

(a)  cash;
 

(b)  check, cashier’s check, certified check or wire transfer;
 

(c)  in the event there exists a public market for the Company’s Common Stock on the date of exercise, by delivery
of a sell order to a broker for the Shares being purchased and an agreement to pay (or have the broker remit payment for) the purchase
price of the shares being purchased on or before the settlement date for the sale of such Shares to the broker; or
 

(d)  in the event there exists a public market for the Company’s Common Stock on the date of exercise, by surrender
of shares of the Company’s Common Stock.  In this case payment shall be made as follows:
 

(i)  the Optionee shall deliver to the Secretary of the Company a written notice which shall set forth the
portion of the purchase price the Optionee wishes to pay with Common Stock, and the number of shares of Common
Stock the Optionee intends to surrender upon the exercise of this Option, which shall be determined by dividing the
aforementioned portion of the purchase price by the closing price per share of the Common Stock of the Company,
as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market (or on any other national securities exchange or other established
market on which the Common Stock is then listed), on the last business day immediately preceding the date of
exercise of the Option, as determined by the Committee;

 
(ii)  fractional shares shall be disregarded and the Optionee shall pay in cash an amount equal to such

fraction multiplied by the price determined under subparagraph i above;
 

(iii)  the written notice shall be accompanied by a duly endorsed blank stock power with respect to the
number of shares of Common Stock set forth in the notice, and the certificate(s) representing said shares shall be
delivered to the Company at its principal offices within three working days from the date of the notice of exercise;

 
(iv)  the Optionee hereby authorizes and directs the Secretary of the Company to transfer so many of the

shares of Common Stock represented by such certificate(s) as are necessary to pay the purchase price in accordance
with the provisions herein; and

 
(v)  notwithstanding any other provision herein, the Optionee shall only be permitted to pay the purchase

price with shares of Common Stock owned by him as of the exercise date in the manner and within the time periods
allowed under 17 CFR Section 240.16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, as such regulation
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is presently constituted, as it is amended from time to time, and as it is interpreted now or hereafter by the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

 
(vi)  the Optionee may elect to pay the exercise price by authorizing a third party to sell Shares subject to

the Option and remit to the Company a sufficient portion of the sale proceeds to pay the entire exercise price and
any tax withholding resulting from such exercise.

 
25.                              Adjustments Upon Changes In Capitalization
 

(a)  Recapitalization.  Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the Company, the number of Shares
covered by the Option and the per share exercise price of the Option, shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in
the number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, combination, reclassification, the
payment of a stock dividend on the Common Stock or any other increase or decrease in the number of such shares of Common Stock
effected without receipt of consideration by the Company; provided, however, that conversion of any convertible securities of the
Company shall not be deemed to have been effected without receipt of consideration. Such adjustment shall be made by the Board of
Directors, whose determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive. Except as expressly provided herein, no issue by
the Company of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into shares of stock of any class, shall affect, and no adjustment
by reason thereof shall be made with respect to, the number or price of shares of Common Stock subject to an Option.
 

(b)  Corporate Transaction.  In the event of a proposed Corporate Transaction, the Board of Directors shall notify the
Optionee at least 10 calendar days prior to such proposed Corporate Transaction.  To the extent it has not been previously exercised,
the Option will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed Corporate Transaction (but subsequent to the full
vesting acceleration provided in Section 2(a)), unless the Option is assumed or an equivalent option is substituted by the successor
corporation or a parent or subsidiary of such successor corporation. For the purposes of this subsection, the Option shall be considered
assumed if, following the Corporate Transaction, the Option confers the right to purchase, for each Share subject to the Option
immediately prior to the Corporate Transaction, the consideration (whether stock, cash, or other securities or property) received in the
Corporate Transaction by holders of Common Stock for each Share subject to the Option held on the effective date of the Corporate
Transaction (and if holders were offered a choice of consideration, the type of consideration chosen by the holders of a majority of the
outstanding Shares); provided, however, that if such consideration received in the Corporate Transaction was not solely common stock
of the successor corporation or its parent or subsidiary, the Board of Directors may, with the consent of the successor corporation,
provide for the consideration to be received upon the exercise of the Option for each Share subject to the Option to be solely common
stock of the successor corporation or its parent or subsidiary equal in fair market value to the per share consideration received by the
Company’s holders of Common Stock in the Corporate Transaction.
 
26.                              Term Of Option
 

This Option may not be exercised more than seven years from the date of grant of this Option (the “Term”), as set forth
below, and may be exercised during such term only in accordance with  the terms of this Option.
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27.                              Not Employment Contract
 

Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon the Optionee any right to continue in the employ or other service with the
Company or any Parent or Subsidiary or shall interfere with or restrict in any way the rights of the Company (or any Parent or
Subsidiary), which are hereby expressly reserved, to discharge the Optionee at any time for any reason whatsoever, with or without
cause, subject to the provisions of applicable law.  This is not an employment contract.
 
28.                              Income Tax Withholding
 

(a)  Whenever Shares are issued or to be issued pursuant to the Option, the Company shall have the right to require
the recipient to remit to the Company an amount sufficient to satisfy federal, state, local or other withholding tax requirements if,
when, and to the extent required by law (whether so required to secure for the Company an otherwise available tax deduction or
otherwise) prior to the delivery of any certificate or certificates for such shares. The obligations of the Company under this Agreement
shall be conditional on satisfaction of all such withholding obligations and the Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the
right to deduct any such taxes from any payment of any kind otherwise due to the Optionee. However, in such cases the Optionee may
elect, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, to satisfy an applicable withholding requirement, in whole or in part, by having
the Company withhold shares to satisfy their tax obligations. The Optionee may only elect to have shares withheld having a Fair
Market Value on the date the tax is to be determined equal to the minimum statutory total tax which could be imposed on the
transaction. All elections shall be irrevocable, made in writing, signed by the Optionee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or
limitations that the Board of Directors deems appropriate.
 

In the event of any determination that the Company has failed to withhold a sum sufficient to pay all withholding
taxes due in connection with the exercise of this Option, the Optionee agrees to pay the Company the amount of such deficiency in
cash within five days after receiving a written demand from the Company to do so, whether or not Optionee is an employee of the
Company at that time.
 

(b)  At such time as the Optionee is required to pay to the Company an amount with respect to tax withholding
obligations as set forth in Section 8(a), the Optionee may elect prior to the date the amount of such withholding tax is determined to
make such payment, or such increased payment as the Optionee elects to make up to the maximum federal, state and local marginal
tax rates (including any related FICA obligation) applicable to the Optionee and the particular transaction in accordance with the
provisions of Section 8(a).
 

(c)  Any adverse consequences incurred by an Optionee with respect to the use of shares of Common Stock to pay
any part of the Option Price or of any tax in connection with the exercise of an Option shall be the sole responsibility of the Optionee.
 
29.                              Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares.
 

Shares shall not be issued with respect to the Option unless the exercise of the Option and the issuance and delivery of such
Shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all relevant provisions of law, including, without limitation, the Securities Act, the
Exchange Act, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and the requirements of any stock exchange or public trading market
upon which the Shares may then be listed, and shall be further subject to the approval of counsel for the Company with respect to such
compliance. As a condition to the exercise of the Option, the
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Company may require the Optionee to represent and warrant at the time of any such exercise that the Shares are being purchased only
for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a
representation is required by any of the aforementioned relevant provisions of law.
 
30.                              Notices and Other Communications.
 

Any notice, demand, request or other communication hereunder to any party shall be deemed to be sufficient if contained in a
written instrument delivered in person or duly sent by first class registered, certified or overnight mail, postage prepaid, or telecopied
with a confirmation copy by regular, certified or overnight mail, addressed or telecopied, as the case may be, (i) if to the Optionee, at
his residence address last filed with the Company and (ii) if to the Company, at its principal place of business, addressed to the
attention of its Chief Executive Officer or Secretary, or to such other address or telecopier number or electronic mail address, as the
case may be, as the addressee may have designated by notice to the addressor. All such notices, requests, demands and other
communications shall be deemed to have been received: (i) in the case of personal delivery, on the date of such delivery; (ii) in the
case of mailing, when received by the addressee; (iii) in the case of facsimile transmission, when confirmed by facsimile machine
report; and (iv) in the case of electronic mail, when directed to an electronic mail address at which the receiving party has consented to
receive notice, provided, that such consent is deemed revoked if the sender is unable to deliver by electronic transmission two
consecutive notices and such inability becomes known to the secretary or assistant secretary of the Company or to the transfer agent,
or other person responsible for giving notice.
 
Dated as of the 28th day of November 2007.
 
 

 

MOSYS, INC.
  
  
 

By: /s/ Mehdi Bathaee
   
   
 

Its: Chief Operating Officer
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OPTIONEE

 
The Optionee acknowledges receipt of copies of the Agreement and represents that he is familiar with the terms and

provisions thereof, and hereby accepts this Option subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Agreement.  The Optionee hereby
agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Board of Directors upon any questions arising
under the Agreement.
 

 

/s/ Leonard Perham
 

Optionee
 
Date:  December 4, 2007
 
 
 

[CONSENT OF SPOUSE/DOMESTIC PARTNER
 

I,                                                   , spouse/domestic partner of the Optionee who executed the foregoing Agreement, hereby
agree that my spouse’s/domestic partner’s interest in the shares of Common Stock subject to said Agreement shall be irrevocably
bound by the Agreement’s terms.  I further agree that my community property interest in such shares, if any, shall similarly be bound
by said Agreement and that such consent is binding upon my executors, administrators, heirs and assigns.  I agree to execute and
deliver such documents as may be necessary to carry out the intent of said Agreement and this consent.
 
 

 

]
 

Spouse/Domestic Partner
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APPENDIX I

 
MOSYS, INC.

 
NOTICE OF EXERCISE OF STOCK OPTION

 
I _____________________________________ (print legibly) hereby elect to exercise the following stock options(s) granted

to me by MOSYS, INC. (the “Company”).  All shares being purchased are fully vested and exercisable pursuant to Section 3 of the
listed Option Agreement.

 
1. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
2. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
3. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
4. ____________ Shares at $ ____________ per share (Grant date): ____________ )
 

Cashexercise in the amount of $ ____________________
Shares should be issued to me as follows:
                Name: ________________________________________________
 

 
If you choose to include your spouse, you must designate below how you wish your shares to be registered by checking the

appropriate box.  If we receive no designation, the shares will be designated as Joint Tenants.
                                               ________ Joint Tenants                                                                                                                                                                                                            ________ Community Property
                                               ________ Tenants in Common                                                                                                                                                                          ________ Tenancy by Entirety
 

 
Verification by__________________________________________Stock Administration
 
Certificate to be delivered to (complete item 1 or 2 below)
1.              Employee ________                                                        Home Address:    __________________________________________________________
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              __________________________________________________________
2.              (Insert Name of Second Broker)  ________________________________________________
                                                Acct #:  ________________________________________________
                Contact Name & Number: ________________________________________________
 

 

Signature: ________________________________________Date: ________________________________________

Social Security No.: ___________________________________________

[For Company Use Only]
 

As of the date set forth above, the above named person has the vested right to exercise the number of shares set forth above.

Date: ____________________________                                                           ____________________________________________

 
Amount due Company: $ ____________
 

 

MoSys, Inc.
 

755 N. Mathilda Avenue
 

Sunnyvale, California 94085
 

(408) 731-1800
 

Attn: Stock Administration
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December 21, 2007
 
Mr. James Sullivan
 
Dear Jim:
 

I am pleased to offer you a position with MoSys Inc. (“MoSys” or the “Company”) as Chief Financial Officer, an exempt
position in which you will report directly to me. Your semimonthly compensation will be $8,125.00 dollars, which is equal to
$195,000.00 annually.

 
In addition, you will be granted an option to purchase 190,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to approval

by the Compensation Committee of the Board and your execution of the Company’s standard Stock Option Agreement. The terms of
such option shall be in accordance with the terms of the Company’s stock option plan.  Accordingly, the options will vest 25% at the
end of one year of employment and 2.0833% per month thereafter.  The per share exercise price of the option shall be the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant as determined by the Compensation Committee.

 
Upon the commencement of your employment, the Company will enter into a Change-in-Control agreement with you, a copy

of which is attached for your reference.
 
You will also be eligible to participate in the Company’s employee benefit plans including our standard major medical,

dental, life, short and long term disability, vision, flexible benefit plan, paid holidays, personal time off (PTO) and the Company’s
401(k) plan.

 
You should be aware that your employment with the Company is for no specified period and constitutes at will employment. 

As a result, you are free to resign at any time, for any reason or for no reason.  Similarly, the Company is free to conclude its
employment relationship with you at any time, with or without cause.

 
For purposes of federal immigration law, you will be required to provide to the Company documentary evidence of your

identity and eligibility for employment in the United States.  Such documentation must be provided to us within three (3) business
days of your date of hire, or our employment relationship with you may be terminated.

 
In the event of any dispute or claim relating to or arising out of our employment relationship, you and the Company agree

that all such disputes shall be fully and finally resolved by binding arbitration conducted in Santa Clara County, California.  However,
we agree that this arbitration provision shall not apply to any disputes or claims relating to or arising out of the misuse or
misappropriation of the Company’s trade secrets or proprietary information.
 

To indicate your acceptance of the Company’s offer, please sign and date this letter in the space provided below and return it
to Human Resources on or before close of business December 28, 2007.  This letter, along with the agreement relating to proprietary
rights between you and the Company, set forth the terms of your employment with the Company and supersede any prior
representations or agreements, whether written or oral.  This letter may not be modified or amended
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except by a written agreement, signed by the Company and by you.

 
Jim, we believe that you can make a great contribution to MoSys and we all look forward to working with you.
 
 

   

Sincerely,
    
   

/s/Monte Crawford
    
   

Monte Crawford, Esq.
   

On Behalf of Len Perham
   

Chief Executive Officer
    
    
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO

   

This    28th     day of December, 2007
   

    
    
/s/ James Sullivan

    

James Sullivan
    

    
    
Start date: January 18, 2008
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MOSYS, INC.
CHANGE-IN-CONTROL AGREEMENT

 
THIS CHANGE-IN-CONTROL AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), made and entered into as of January 18, 2008, by

and between MoSys Inc., a Delaware corporation (“MoSys”), and James Sullivan (the “Officer”).
 

WHEREAS, MoSys considers it essential to its best interests to foster the continued employment of key management personnel
and recognizes the distraction and disruption that the possibility of a Change-in-Control (as defined in Section 1(d) below) may raise
to the detriment of MoSys and its stockholders; and

 
WHEREAS, MoSys has determined to take appropriate steps to reinforce and encourage the continued attention and dedication

of key management personnel to their assigned duties in the face of a possible Change-in-Control;
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein, MoSys and the Officer

hereby agree as follows:
 

1.             DEFINITIONS
 

(a)           “Base Salary” shall mean the annual salary of the Officer at the time of termination of his employment within the
application of this Agreement.

 
(b)           “Beneficiary” shall mean (i) the person or persons named by the Officer, by notice to MoSys, to receive any

compensation or benefit payable under this Agreement or (ii) in the event of his death, if no such person is named and survives the
Officer, his estate.

 
(c)           “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of MoSys.
 
(d)           “Change-in-Control” means the occurrence of any of the following:
 

(i) an acquisition after the Effective Date by an individual, an entity or a group in one or more related transactions
(excluding MoSys or an employee benefit plan of MoSys or a corporation controlled by MoSys’ stockholders) of 45 percent or more
of MoSys’ common stock or voting securities; or

 
(ii) consummation of a complete liquidation or dissolution of MoSys or a merger, consolidation, reorganization or

sale of all or substantially all of MoSys’ assets (collectively, a “Business Combination”) other than a Business Combination in which
(A) the stockholders of MoSys receive 50 percent or more of the stock of the corporation resulting from the Business Combination
and (B) at least a majority of the board of directors of such resulting corporation were incumbent directors of MoSys immediately
prior to the consummation of the Business Combination, and (C) after which no individual, entity or group (excluding any corporation
or other entity resulting from the Business Combination or any employee benefit plan of such corporation or of MoSys) who did not
own 45 percent or more of the stock of the resulting
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corporation or other entity immediately before the Business Combination owns 45 percent or more of the stock of such resulting
corporation or other entity.

 
(e)           “Good Reason” means, without the Officer’s prior written consent or acquiescence:
 

(i)  assignment to the Officer of duties incompatible with the Officer’s position, failure to maintain the Officer in
this position and its reporting relationship or a substantial diminution in the nature of the Officer’s authority or responsibilities;

 
(ii)  reduction in the Officer’s then current Base Salary or in the bonus or incentive compensation opportunities or

benefits coverage available during the term of this Agreement, except pursuant to an across-the-board reduction similarly affecting all
senior executives of MoSys;

 
(iii)  termination of the Officer’s employment, for any reason other than death, disability, voluntary termination or

Misconduct (as defined below);
 
(iv)  relocation of the Officer’s principal place of business to a location more than 30 miles from the location of such

office on the date of this Agreement;
 
(v)  MoSys’s failure to pay the Officer any material amounts otherwise vested and due the Officer hereunder or

under any plan, program or policy of MoSys; or
 
(vi)  failure of a successor to MoSys following a Change-in-Control to expressly assume or affirm MoSys’s

obligations under this Agreement as specified in Section 6.
 

(f)            “Misconduct” means the commission of any act of fraud, embezzlement or dishonesty or other violation of
MoSys’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Employees, Executive Officers and Directors by the Officer, any unauthorized use
or disclosure by the Officer of confidential information or trade secrets of MoSys or other breach by the Officer of a material
agreement between the Company and the Officer, or any other intentional misconduct by the Officer adversely affecting the business
affairs of MoSys in a material manner.

 
(g)           “MoSys” when used herein shall be deemed to refer to MoSys and any entity or entities that succeed to the assets

and properties of MoSys following a Change-in-Control, or any other corporation or other entity which is a subsidiary or parent of
such successor entity or entities for whom the Officer is employed at any time within two years following the Change-in-Control.

 
2.             TERM OF AGREEMENT
 

This Agreement shall be effective immediately upon its execution by MoSys and the Officer (the “Effective Date”) and shall
remain in effect until the earliest to occur of:  (a) termination of the Officer’s employment with MoSys following a Change-in-Control
(i) by reason of death or disability, (ii) by the Officer other than for Good Reason, or (iii) by MoSys for Misconduct, or (b) two years
after the date of a Change-in-Control.
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3.             CHANGE IN CONTROL BENEFITS
 

In the event of termination of the Officer’s employment by the Officer for Good Reason within two years following a
Change-in-Control, the Officer will be entitled to the following:

 
(a)           Salary and Benefits:
 

(i)  his Base Salary through the date of termination;
 
(ii)  payment in lieu of any unused vacation, in accordance with MoSys’s vacation policy and applicable laws;
 
(iii)  any other compensation or benefits, including without limitation any benefits under long-term incentive

compensation plans, any benefits under equity grants and awards and employee benefits under plans that have vested through the date
of termination or to which the Officer may then be entitled in accordance with the applicable terms of each grant, award or plan; and

 
(iv)  reimbursement of any business expenses incurred by the Officer through the date of termination but not yet

paid to the Officer.
 

(b)           Stock Option Acceleration:
 

(i)During the first year of MoSys employment of Officer, immediate and unconditional vesting of 50 percent of the
then unvested stock options and stock awards previously granted to the Officer and, for the one-year period following termination, the
right to exercise any stock options or other awards held by him.

 
(ii)After the first year of MoSys employment of the Officer, immediate and unconditional vesting of one year of the

remaining then unvested stock options and stock awards previously granted to the Officer and, for the one-year period following
termination, the right to exercise any stock options or other awards held by him.

 
(c)           Release.  MoSys will require, as a condition of receiving the Change-in-Control payments under subsection (b)

above, that the Officer execute a general release substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A, which upon execution shall be
deemed incorporated herein by reference as a material part of this Agreement.

 
4.             NO MITIGATION
 

MoSys agrees that if the Officer’s employment with MoSys terminates, the Officer will not be obligated to seek other
employment or to attempt to reduce any amount payable to the Officer under this Agreement. Further, no amount of any payment
under this Agreement shall be reduced by any compensation earned by the Officer as the result of employment by a subsequent
employer or otherwise.
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5.             NOTICES
 

Any notice or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to
have been duly given when delivered by hand, electronic transmission (with a copy following by hand, mail or overnight courier), by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested or by overnight courier addressed to the other party. All notices
shall be addressed as follows, or to such other address or addresses as may be substituted by notice in writing:
 

To MoSys Inc.:
 

To the Officer:
   
   
755 N Mathilda Drive

  

Suite 100
  

Sunnyvale, CA 94085
  

Attention: Chairman, Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors

 

Fax:

Fax: (408) 731-1893
  

   
 
6.             SUCCESSORS
 

(a)           MoSys’s Successors.  Any successor to MoSys (whether direct or indirect and whether by purchase, lease, merger,
consolidation, liquidation or otherwise) or to all or substantially all of MoSys’s business and/or assets shall assume MoSys’s
obligations under this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent as MoSys would be required to perform such obligations
in the absence of a succession.

 
(b)           Officer’s Successors.  Without the written consent of MoSys, the Officer can not assign or transfer this Agreement

or any right or obligation under this Agreement to any other person or entity.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms of this
Agreement and all rights of the Officer under this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the Officer’s
personal or legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributes, devisees and legatees.

 
7.             GENERAL PROVISIONS
 

(a)           Amendments.  No provision of this Agreement may be amended, modified or waived unless such amendment,
modification or waiver shall be agreed to in writing and signed by the Officer and by a member of the Compensation Committee of
the Board.

 
(b)           Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of

competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall be unaffected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect
to the fullest extent permitted by law.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid,
void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any
way.
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(c)           Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted and governed in accordance with the laws of the

state of California without regard to its conflicts of laws rules.
 
(d)           Inconsistencies.  The terms of this Agreement supersede any inconsistent prior promises, policies, representations,

understandings, arrangements or agreements between the parties, whether by employment contract or otherwise.
 
(e)           Survival.  Notwithstanding the termination of the term of this Agreement, the duties and obligations of MoSys, if

any, following the termination of the Officer’s employment following a Change-in-Control shall survive indefinitely.
 
(f)            Withholding.  MoSys may deduct and withhold from any payments hereunder the amount that MoSys, in its

reasonable judgment, is required to deduct and withhold for any federal, state or local income or employment taxes.
 
(g)           No Other Compensation; Employee at Will.  Except as provided in Section 3 above, no amount or benefit shall

be payable to the Officer under this Agreement in respect of termination of the Officer’s employment within two years following a
Change-in-Control.  This Agreement shall not be construed as creating an express or implied contract of employment and, except as
otherwise agreed in writing between the Officer and MoSys, the Officer is and shall remain an “employee at will” and shall not have
any right to be retained in the employ of MoSys.

 
(h)           Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts.
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.
 
 

 

MOSYS INC.
  
 

By: /s/ Len Perham
 

Len Perham
  
 

Title: CEO
  
  
 

James Sullivan
  
  
 

/s/ James Sullivan
 

(Signature)
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EXHIBIT A

RELEASE AGREEMENT
 

In consideration of the benefits I will receive under MoSys Inc.’s Change-in-Control Agreement, I hereby release, acquit and
forever discharge MoSys Inc. (the “Company”), its parents, subsidiaries, predecessors, successors and affiliates, and each of their
respective officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys shareholders, and assigns (the “Released Parties”), of and from
any and all claims, liabilities, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, attorneys’ fees, damages, indemnities and obligations of
every kind and nature, in law, equity, or otherwise, known and unknown, suspected and unsuspected, disclosed and undisclosed,
arising out of or in any way related to agreements, events, acts or conduct at any time prior to and including the date I sign this
Release Agreement. This release of claims includes, but is not limited to:
 

   
 

• any and all claims and demands directly or indirectly arising out of or in any way connected with my employment with the
Company or the termination of that employment, including, but not limited to, claims, demands or agreements related to salary,
bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, personal time off, fringe benefits, expense reimbursements, sabbatical benefits, severance
benefits, stock, stock options, any other ownership or equity interest in the Company, or any other form of compensation or
benefit;

   
 

• claims pursuant to any federal, state or local law, statute, common law or cause of action including, but not limited to, Title VII
of the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, or any other statute, agreement or source of law, the federal Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended (“ADEA”), the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the
Family and Medical Leave Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, the Equal Pay Act, the Worker Adjustment and
Retraining Notification Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, as amended, and the California Labor Code;

   
 

• all tort law claims, including claims for fraud, misrepresentation, defamation, libel, emotional distress and breach of the implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing; and

   
 

• all claims arising under contract law, or the law of wrongful discharge, discrimination or harassment.
 
I represent that I have no lawsuits, claims or actions pending in my name, or on behalf of any other person or entity, against any

of the Released Parties. I agree that in the event I bring a claim covered by this release in which I seek damages against the Company
or in the event I seek to recover against the Company in any claims brought by a governmental agency on my behalf, this Agreement
shall serve as a complete defense to such claims.

 
ADEA Waiver and Release:  I acknowledge that I am knowingly and voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights I may have

under ADEA. I also acknowledge that the consideration given for the waiver and release herein is in addition to anything of value to
which I was already entitled. I further acknowledge that I have been advised by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (a) my
waiver and release do not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after
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the execution date of this Agreement; (b) I have been advised hereby that I have the right to consult with an attorney prior to executing
this Agreement; (c) I have 21 days from the date I receive this Agreement to consider this Agreement (although I voluntarily may
choose to execute this Agreement earlier); (d) I have seven days following the execution of this Agreement to revoke the Agreement;
and (e) this Agreement shall not be effective until the later of (i) the date upon which the revocation period has expired, which shall be
the eighth day after I execute this Agreement, or (ii) the date I return this Agreement, fully executed, to the Company.

 
I acknowledge that for this Release Agreement to be effective, I must sign and return it to the Company within 21 days after

the date I receive it and I must not revoke it at any time during the above-referenced seven-day revocation period.
 
I acknowledge that I have read and understand Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: “A general

release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release,
which if known by him must have materially affected his settlement with the debtor.” I hereby expressly waive and relinquish all
rights and benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar effect with respect to my release of any unknown or
unsuspected claims I may have against any of the Released Parties.

 
I understand that this Release Agreement, together with the Change-in-Control Agreement, constitutes the complete, final

and exclusive embodiment of the entire agreement between the Company and me with regard to the subject matter hereof. I am not
relying on any promise or representation by the Company that is not expressly stated in this Release Agreement.

 
 

 

James Sullivan
  
  

 

By:
 

  
 

Its:
 

  
 

Date:
 

 

 
 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED:
 
 
MOSYS INC.
 
 

By:
  

   
Its: CEO, Len Perham

 

   
Date:
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MoSys, Inc.
755 N. Mathilda Ave.

Suite 100
Sunnyvale, California  94085

 
February 21, 2008
 
Didier Lacroix
 
Dear Didier:
 

I am pleased to offer you a position with MoSys, Inc. (“MoSys” or the “Company”) as Vice President of Worldwide Sales
(“VP of Sales”), subject to ratification by the Company’s board of directors.  This offer letter (the “Agreement”) sets forth the terms
and conditions of the Company’s offer of employment.  This is intended to be a binding agreement, and if the terms contained in this
Agreement are acceptable to you, please acknowledge your acceptance by signing in the signature block, below.  The Company’s
offer of employment is conditioned upon: (1) your presenting evidence of your authorization to work in the United States and your
identity sufficient to allow the Company to complete the I-9 form required by law within three business days of the commencement of
your employment with the Company; (2) your consent to, and satisfactory completion of, a background check;  (3) your completion of
the Company’s standard Directors and Officers Questionnaire and the Company’s satisfactory review of your responses and (4) your
execution of the Company’s standard form of Employment Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement.
 

As VP of Sales, you will report directly to the Company’s CEO and President.  Your starting salary will be approximately
$8,333 semi-monthly ($200,000 on an annualized basis) for this exempt position.  You will also be eligible for a sales incentive
compensation plan (a “Sales Plan”), such Sales Plan to be mutually agreed upon by you and the Company’s CEO and President.  For
fiscal year 2008, your targeted incentive compensation under the Sales Plan will be $100,000 payable as follows:  1) a $25,000
non-recoverable draw for the first quarter of 2008, which will be paid on March 15, 2008, and 2) $25,000 per calendar quarter
beginning with the second quarter based on the achievement of bookings/sales goals for each of the remaining three fiscal quarters of
2008.  Your base salary and earned incentive compensation will be paid in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll procedures
and will be subject to applicable withholding required by law.

 
In addition, you will be granted an option to purchase 262,500 shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to approval

by the Compensation Committee of the board of directors and your execution of the Company’s standard form of stock option
agreement.  The options will vest 25% at the end of one year of employment and the remaining shares in thirty-six equal monthly
installments thereafter, subject in all events to your continuous employment by the Company.  The per share exercise price of the
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option shall be the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.  These options will be granted as new
employment inducement grants under the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules and not pursuant to the Company’s existing option plan.

 
Upon the commencement of your employment, the Company will enter into a Change-in-Control agreement with you, a copy

of which is attached for your reference, which in certain circumstances will provide for acceleration of vesting.
 

In the event of the termination of your employment without Cause (defined below) by the Company, you will be entitled to
severance of six months of base salary and medical benefit coverage for six  months following the date of termination of your
employment (the “Severance’). In addition, you will also be eligible to receive incentive compensation payments for sales objectives
achieved before the date of the termination of your employment, subject to the Company having collected the amounts due from
customers to which such incentive compensation payments pertain, during the six month period subsequent to the date of your
termination. You shall not be entitled to the Severance if your employment terminates during the first 90 days of your employment.  In
order to receive the Severance, you will have to execute the Company’s standard form of release agreement as then in effect.  Under
this Agreement, “Cause” means a good faith determination by me and/or the Board of Directors that your employment has been
terminated for any of the following reasons:  (i) willful act of fraud, embezzlement, dishonesty or other misconduct that materially
damages the Company; (ii) continued failure to perform your duties to the Company, to follow Company policy as set forth in writing
from time to time, or to follow the legal directives of your supervisor, in each case in a manner that results in material damage to the
Company, that is not corrected within 30 days following written notice thereof to you by the Company; (iii) misappropriation of any
material assets of the Company; (iv) conviction of, or a plea of “Guilty” or “no contest” to, a felony under the laws of the United
States or any state thereof; (v) willful and material breach of any agreement with the Company, that is not corrected within 30 days
following written notice thereof to you by the Company; and/or (vi) willful use or unauthorized disclosure of any proprietary
information or trade secrets of the Company or any other party to whom you owe an obligation of nondisclosure as a result of your
relationship with the Company.

 
You also will be eligible to participate in the Company’s employee benefit plans, including our standard major medical,

dental, life, short and long term disability, vision insurance benefits, our flexible benefit plan, paid holidays, personal time off (PTO)
and 401(k) plan.  You will be eligible for a $500 monthly car allowance. You will be reimbursed on a regular basis for reasonable,
necessary and properly documented business and travel expenses incurred for the purpose of conducting the Company’s business.

 
You should be aware that your employment with the Company is for no specified period and constitutes at-will employment. 

As a result, you are free to resign at any time, for any reason or for no reason.  Similarly, the Company is free to conclude its
employment relationship with you at any time, with or without Cause.

 
2

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



 
In the event of any dispute or claim relating to or arising out of our employment relationship, you and the Company agree

that all such disputes shall be fully and finally resolved by binding arbitration as provided in the Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate, a
copy of which is attached for your reference.  You agree to execute and deliver the Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate in connection with
your acceptance of this offer letter.

 
To indicate your acceptance of the Company’s offer, please sign and date this Agreement in the space provided below and

return it to me.  This offer will expire today, Thursday, February 21, 2008 at 5:00 p.m.
 
This  Agreement, along with the applicable stock option agreement and Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate between you and the

Company, together with the Company’s standard employment policies and procedures in effect from time to time constitute the entire
terms of your employment with the Company and supersede all prior representations or agreements, whether written or oral.  This
Agreement is to be governed by California law.  To the extent that any of the terms of this Agreement or any of the foregoing
agreements conflict with the Company’s standard employment policies and procedures in effect from time to time, the former shall
govern.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by a written agreement signed by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and you.

 
 

Sincerely,
  

   
/s/ Len Perham

  

   
  

Len Perham
  

President & CEO
   
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO

  

This     21st       day of February 2008
  

   
   
/s/ Didier Lacroix

  

Didier Lacroix
  

   
   
Start date: February 21, 2008
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Exhibit 10.29
 

MOSYS, INC.
CHANGE-IN-CONTROL AGREEMENT

 
THIS CHANGE-IN-CONTROL AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), made and entered into as of February 21, 2008, by

and between MoSys Inc., a Delaware corporation (“MoSys”), and Didier Lacroix (the “Officer”).
 

WHEREAS, MoSys considers it essential to its best interests to foster the continued employment of key management personnel
and recognizes the distraction and disruption that the possibility of a Change-in-Control (as defined in Section 1(d) below) may raise
to the detriment of MoSys and its stockholders; and

 
WHEREAS, MoSys has determined to take appropriate steps to reinforce and encourage the continued attention and dedication

of key management personnel to their assigned duties in the face of a possible Change-in-Control;
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein, MoSys and the Officer

hereby agree as follows:
 

1.            DEFINITIONS
 

(a)          “Base Salary” shall mean the annual salary of the Officer at the time of termination of his employment within the
application of this Agreement.

 
(b)          “Beneficiary” shall mean (i) the person or persons named by the Officer, by notice to MoSys, to receive any

compensation or benefit payable under this Agreement or (ii) in the event of his death, if no such person is named and survives the
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Officer, his estate.
 
(c)          “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of MoSys.
 
(d)          “Change-in-Control” means the occurrence of any of the following:
 

(i) an acquisition after the Effective Date by an individual, an entity or a group in one or more related transactions
(excluding MoSys or an employee benefit plan of MoSys or a corporation controlled by MoSys’ stockholders) of 45 percent or more
of MoSys’ common stock or voting securities; or

 
(ii) consummation of a complete liquidation or dissolution of MoSys or a merger, consolidation, reorganization or

sale of all or substantially all of MoSys’ assets (collectively, a “Business Combination”) other than a Business Combination in which
(A) the stockholders of MoSys receive 50 percent or more of the stock of the corporation resulting from the Business Combination
and (B) at least a majority of the board of directors of such resulting corporation were incumbent directors of MoSys immediately
prior to the consummation of the Business Combination, and (C) after which no individual, entity or group (excluding any corporation
or other entity resulting from the Business Combination or any employee benefit plan of such corporation or of MoSys) who did not
own 45 percent or more of the stock of the resulting
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corporation or other entity immediately before the Business Combination owns 45 percent or more of the stock of such resulting
corporation or other entity.

 
(e)          “Good Reason” means, without the Officer’s prior written consent or acquiescence:
 

(i)  assignment to the Officer of duties incompatible with the Officer’s position, failure to maintain the Officer in
this position and its reporting relationship or a substantial diminution in the nature of the Officer’s authority or responsibilities;

 
(ii)  reduction in the Officer’s then current Base Salary or in the bonus or incentive compensation opportunities or

benefits coverage available during the term of this Agreement, except pursuant to an across-the-board reduction similarly affecting all
senior executives of MoSys;

 
(iii)  termination of the Officer’s employment, for any reason other than death, disability, voluntary termination or

Misconduct (as defined below);
 
(iv)  relocation of the Officer’s principal place of business to a location more than 30 miles from the location of such

office on the date of this Agreement;
 
(v)  MoSys’s failure to pay the Officer any material amounts otherwise vested and due the Officer hereunder or

under any plan, program or policy of MoSys; or
 
(vi)  failure of a successor to MoSys following a Change-in-Control to expressly assume or affirm MoSys’s

obligations under this Agreement as specified in Section 6.
 

(f)           “Misconduct” means the commission of any act of fraud, embezzlement or dishonesty or other violation of MoSys’s
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Employees, Executive Officers and Directors by the Officer, any unauthorized use or
disclosure by the Officer of confidential information or trade secrets of MoSys or other breach by the Officer of a material agreement
between the Company and the Officer, or any other intentional misconduct by the Officer adversely affecting the business affairs of
MoSys in a material manner.

 
(g)          “MoSys” when used herein shall be deemed to refer to MoSys and any entity or entities that succeed to the assets

and properties of MoSys following a Change-in-Control, or any other corporation or other entity which is a subsidiary or parent of
such successor entity or entities for whom the Officer is employed at any time within two years following the Change-in-Control.

 
2.            TERM OF AGREEMENT
 

This Agreement shall be effective immediately upon its execution by MoSys and the Officer (the “Effective Date”) and shall
remain in effect until the earliest to occur of:  (a) termination of the Officer’s employment with MoSys following a Change-in-Control
(i) by reason of death or disability, (ii) by the Officer other than for Good Reason, or (iii) by MoSys for Misconduct, or (b) two years
after the date of a Change-in-Control.
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3.            CHANGE IN CONTROL BENEFITS
 

In the event of termination of the Officer’s employment by the Officer for Good Reason within two years following a
Change-in-Control, the Officer will be entitled to the following:

 
(a)           Salary and Benefits:
 

(i)  his Base Salary through the date of termination;
 
(ii)  payment in lieu of any unused vacation, in accordance with MoSys’s vacation policy and applicable laws;
 
(iii)  any other compensation or benefits, including without limitation any benefits under long-term incentive

compensation plans, any benefits under equity grants and awards and employee benefits under plans that have vested through the date
of termination or to which the Officer may then be entitled in accordance with the applicable terms of each grant, award or plan; and

 
(iv)  reimbursement of any business expenses incurred by the Officer through the date of termination but not yet

paid to the Officer.
 

(b)          Stock Option Acceleration:
 

(i)During the first year of MoSys employment of Officer, immediate and unconditional vesting of 50 percent of the
then unvested stock options and stock awards previously granted to the Officer and, for the one-year period following termination, the
right to exercise any stock options or other awards held by him.

 
(ii)After the first year of MoSys employment of the Officer, immediate and unconditional vesting of one year of the

remaining then unvested stock options and stock awards previously granted to the Officer and, for the one-year period following
termination, the right to exercise any stock options or other awards held by him.

 
(c)          Release.  MoSys will require, as a condition of receiving the Change-in-Control payments under

subsection (b) above, that the Officer execute a general release substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A, which upon execution
shall be deemed incorporated herein by reference as a material part of this Agreement.

 
4.            NO MITIGATION
 

MoSys agrees that if the Officer’s employment with MoSys terminates, the Officer will not be obligated to seek other
employment or to attempt to reduce any amount payable to the Officer under this Agreement. Further, no amount of any payment
under this Agreement shall be reduced by any compensation earned by the Officer as the result of employment by a subsequent
employer or otherwise.
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5.            NOTICES
 

Any notice or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to
have been duly given when delivered by hand, electronic transmission (with a copy following by hand, mail or overnight courier), by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested or by overnight courier addressed to the other party. All notices
shall be addressed as follows, or to such other address or addresses as may be substituted by notice in writing:
 

To MoSys Inc.:
 

To the Officer:
   
   
755 N Mathilda Drive

  

Suite 100
  

Sunnyvale, CA 94085
  

Attention: Chairman, Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors

 

Fax:

Fax: (408) 731-1893
  

   
 
6.            SUCCESSORS
 

(a)          MoSys’s Successors.  Any successor to MoSys (whether direct or indirect and whether by purchase, lease, merger,
consolidation, liquidation or otherwise) or to all or substantially all of MoSys’s business and/or assets shall assume MoSys’s
obligations under this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent as MoSys would be required to perform such obligations
in the absence of a succession.

 
(b)          Officer’s Successors.  Without the written consent of MoSys, the Officer can not assign or transfer this Agreement

or any right or obligation under this Agreement to any other person or entity.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms of this
Agreement and all rights of the Officer under this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the Officer’s
personal or legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributes, devisees and legatees.

 
7.            GENERAL PROVISIONS
 

(a)          Amendments.  No provision of this Agreement may be amended, modified or waived unless such amendment,
modification or waiver shall be agreed to in writing and signed by the Officer and by a member of the Compensation Committee of
the Board.

 
(b)          Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of

competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall be unaffected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect
to the fullest extent permitted by law.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid,
void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any
way.
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(c)          Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted and governed in accordance with the laws of the

state of California without regard to its conflicts of laws rules.
 
(d)          Inconsistencies.  The terms of this Agreement supersede any inconsistent prior promises, policies, representations,

understandings, arrangements or agreements between the parties, whether by employment contract or otherwise.
 
(e)          Survival.  Notwithstanding the termination of the term of this Agreement, the duties and obligations of MoSys, if

any, following the termination of the Officer’s employment following a Change-in-Control shall survive indefinitely.
 
(f)           Withholding.  MoSys may deduct and withhold from any payments hereunder the amount that MoSys, in its

reasonable judgment, is required to deduct and withhold for any federal, state or local income or employment taxes.
 
(g)          No Other Compensation; Employee at Will.  Except as provided in Section 3 above, no amount or benefit shall be

payable to the Officer under this Agreement in respect of termination of the Officer’s employment within two years following a
Change-in-Control.  This Agreement shall not be construed as creating an express or implied contract of employment and, except as
otherwise agreed in writing between the Officer and MoSys, the Officer is and shall remain an “employee at will” and shall not have
any right to be retained in the employ of MoSys.

 
(h)           Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts.
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.
 
 

 

MOSYS INC.
   

 

By: /s/ Len Perham
 

Len Perham
   
 

Title: CEO
   
   
 

Didier Lacroix
   
   
 

/s/ Didier Lacroix
 

(Signature)
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EXHIBIT A

RELEASE AGREEMENT
 

In consideration of the benefits I will receive under MoSys Inc.’s Change-in-Control Agreement, I hereby release, acquit and
forever discharge MoSys Inc. (the “Company”), its parents, subsidiaries, predecessors, successors and affiliates, and each of their
respective officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys shareholders, and assigns (the “Released Parties”), of and from
any and all claims, liabilities, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, attorneys’ fees, damages, indemnities and obligations of
every kind and nature, in law, equity, or otherwise, known and unknown, suspected and unsuspected, disclosed and undisclosed,
arising out of or in any way related to agreements, events, acts or conduct at any time prior to and including the date I sign this
Release Agreement. This release of claims includes, but is not limited to:
 

   
• any and all claims and demands directly or indirectly arising out of or in any way connected with my employment with the

Company or the termination of that employment, including, but not limited to, claims, demands or agreements related to salary,
bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, personal time off, fringe benefits, expense reimbursements, sabbatical benefits, severance
benefits, stock, stock options, any other ownership or equity interest in the Company, or any other form of compensation or
benefit;

   
• claims pursuant to any federal, state or local law, statute, common law or cause of action including, but not limited to, Title VII

of the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, or any other statute, agreement or source of law, the federal Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended (“ADEA”), the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the
Family and Medical Leave Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, the Equal Pay Act, the Worker Adjustment and
Retraining Notification Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, as amended, and the California Labor Code;

   
• all tort law claims, including claims for fraud, misrepresentation, defamation, libel, emotional distress and breach of the implied

covenant of good faith and fair dealing; and
   

• all claims arising under contract law, or the law of wrongful discharge, discrimination or harassment.
 
I represent that I have no lawsuits, claims or actions pending in my name, or on behalf of any other person or entity, against any

of the Released Parties. I agree that in the event I bring a claim covered by this release in which I seek damages against the Company
or in the event I seek to recover against the Company in any claims brought by a governmental agency on my behalf, this Agreement
shall serve as a complete defense to such claims.

 
ADEA Waiver and Release:  I acknowledge that I am knowingly and voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights I may have

under ADEA. I also acknowledge that the consideration given for the waiver and release herein is in addition to anything of value to
which I was already entitled. I further acknowledge that I have been advised by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (a) my
waiver and release do not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after
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the execution date of this Agreement; (b) I have been advised hereby that I have the right to consult with an attorney prior to executing
this Agreement; (c) I have 21 days from the date I receive this Agreement to consider this Agreement (although I voluntarily may
choose to execute this Agreement earlier); (d) I have seven days following the execution of this Agreement to revoke the Agreement;
and (e) this Agreement shall not be effective until the later of (i) the date upon which the revocation period has expired, which shall be
the eighth day after I execute this Agreement, or (ii) the date I return this Agreement, fully executed, to the Company.

 
I acknowledge that for this Release Agreement to be effective, I must sign and return it to the Company within 21 days after

the date I receive it and I must not revoke it at any time during the above-referenced seven-day revocation period.
 
I acknowledge that I have read and understand Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: “A general

release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release,
which if known by him must have materially affected his settlement with the debtor.” I hereby expressly waive and relinquish all
rights and benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar effect with respect to my release of any unknown or
unsuspected claims I may have against any of the Released Parties.

 
I understand that this Release Agreement, together with the Change-in-Control Agreement, constitutes the complete, final

and exclusive embodiment of the entire agreement between the Company and me with regard to the subject matter hereof. I am not
relying on any promise or representation by the Company that is not expressly stated in this Release Agreement.

 
 

 

Didier Lacroix  

   
   
 

By:
 

   
 

Its:
 

   
 

Date:
 

 

  
ACCEPTED AND AGREED:  

  
  
MOSYS INC.  

  
  
By:

  

 

  
Its: CEO, Len Perham  

  
Date:
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EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

NAME

 

JURISDICTION OF INCORPORATION

MoSys International, Inc.  California, USA
ATMOS Corporation  Canada
MoSys Europe EURL  France
MoSys Semiconductor (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.  China
MoSys Romania S.R.L.  Romania
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EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

        We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-64302, 333-104071, 333-118992, 333-123364,
333-132492, and 333-141264) of our reports dated March 14, 2008, relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of
MoSys, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and for the year then ended and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
which appear in MoSys, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/s/ Burr, Pilger & Mayer LLP

San Jose, California
March 14, 2008
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EXHIBIT 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

MoSys, Inc.
Sunnyvale, California

        We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-64302, 333-104071, 333-118992, 333-123364,
333-132492, and 333-141264) of MoSys, Inc. of our report dated March 12, 2007, relating to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of MoSys, Inc.
as of December 31, 2006 and for the two years ended December 31, 2006 appearing in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP

San Francisco, California
March 14, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

RULE 13a-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Leonard Perham, certify that:

1.
I have reviewed this Form 10-K of MoSys, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2007;

2.
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.
The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's fourth
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting; and

5.
The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 17, 2008   

/s/  LEONARD PERHAM      

Leonard Perham
President and Chief Executive Officer

  

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



QuickLinks

Exhibit 31.1

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



QuickLinks  -- Click here to rapidly navigate through this document

Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

RULE 13a-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, James W. Sullivan, certify that:

1.
I have reviewed this Form 10-K of MoSys, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2007;

2.
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.
The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's fourth
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting; and

5.
The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 17, 2008

/s/  JAMES W. SULLIVAN      

James W. Sullivan
Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer

  

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008



QuickLinks  -- Click here to rapidly navigate through this document

Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF CEO AND CFO FURNISHED PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. § 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
§ 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

        In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of MoSys, Inc. (the "Company") for the year ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), Leonard Perham, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and James W. Sullivan, Vice
President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
to the best of his knowledge, that:

        (1)   The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

        (2)   The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

  /s/  LEONARD PERHAM      

Leonard Perham
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 17, 2008

  /s/  JAMES W. SULLIVAN      

James W. Sullivan
Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer
March 17, 2008

        This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or otherwise required, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of § 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Source: MoSys, Inc., 10-K, March 17, 2008
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CERTIFICATION OF CEO AND CFO FURNISHED PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO § 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
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Created by 10KWizard     www.10KWizard.com
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